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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

Chairman’s Message

Dear Shareholders,

| am delighted to welcome you all to 20" Annual
General Meeting of your Company, Kamarajar
Port Limited. Hope you had the opportunity to go
through the 20" Annual Report of the Company
which included the Board’s Report and Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 31t March
2020 together with the report of the Statutory
Auditors and report and review of Comptroller &
Auditor General of India.

As you are aware, Cabinet Committee on Economic
Affairs had given ‘In-Principle’ approval on 28%
February 2019 for Strategic Disinvestment of 100%
equity shares of Government of India in Kamarajar
Port Limited to Chennai Port Trust in a single stage
process. Pursuant to the Cabinet approval, during
the year, the entire shareholding of your Company

held by Government of India, through Ministry of

Shipping (representing 66.67% of the paid-up share
capital ofthe Company) alongwiththemanagement
control of your Company was transferred to Chennai
Port Trust on 27.03.2020 in terms of Share Purchase
Agreement that was executed by and between
‘The President of India’ and ‘Chennai Port Trust’
on 25.03.2020. Consequently, your Company has
ceased to be a Government Company and is now a
Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Chennai Port Trust as
100% of the Paid-up Share Capital of your Company
is now held by Chennai Port Trust. | would like to
summarize some salient features of your Company’s
performance, for the year ended 315t March 2020.

Physical Performance and highlights during the
year 2019-20:

During the year 2019-20, the Company recorded
cargo handling of 31.75 MTPA as against 34.50 MTPA
in 2018-19. The main reason for shortfall of cargo
throughput of your Company is due to reduced
Thermal Coal demand on account of

a)

reduced demand from TANGEDCO plants
due to alternate power production through
renewable sources;

delay in commissioning of ongoing TANGEDCO
plants;

diversion of about 2.00 Million Tonnes Thermal
Coal of Mettur Power Plant (MTPS) through
other Port by TANGEDCO and direct movement
of Coal through rakes from the originating
Coalfield to MTPS.

Some of the performance highlights are:

KPL and ChPT jointly conducted the PCS 1X
Road show on 01.07.2019.

ISUZU Motors India Pvt. Ltd. has commenced
the trial export of automobiles through the
General Cargo Berth on 30.09.2019.

3 newly completed projects namely Road cum
Gate Complex, Container Pre-Parking Yard and
Guest House were inaugurated by Hon'ble
Minister for Shipping (Independent Charge) on
15" November 2019.

The vessel call of Feeder service between KPL
and Colombo by CMA CGM at Adani Ennore
Container Terminal at Kamarajar Port Limited
has commenced on 05.12.2019.

Renault India launched export of ‘Triber’ model
cars to South African Market from Kamarajar
Port on 24.12.2019.



e A new RoRo service by the National Shipping of
Saudi Arabia, M/s.BahriLogistics has commenced
at KPLs General Cargo Berth with the first RoRo
vessel M.V. Bahri Jeddah berthed on 26.12.2019.

o KPLhasexecutedanagreementwithTANGEDCO
for the use of Coal Berth facilities i.e., Coal Berth
Nos.3 and 4 on 14.01.2020.

Ease of doing business

As a part of the Initiatives of “Ease of doing business”,
your Company:

e hasimported one Mobile X-Ray Container Scanner
equipment through the RoRo vessel handled at
KPLs General Cargo Berth on 22.05.2019.

¢ has obtained a Technical & budgetary sanction
to develop a New Port Operation System (POS)
and Real Estate Module on SAP ERP System
to replace the legacy POMS and LMS system.
Slated for implementation in the next fiscal, this
will cover the entire Port Operations, including
vessels, cargo, port crafts, etc and seamlessly
merge it all in a single IT system.

Capital Expenditure

Your Company spent Rs.102.22 Crores for capacity
expansion during the financial year 2019-20 as
against the revised target of Rs.120 Crores set for
the year. Your Company capitalized the assets of
Dredging for LNG Berth during the year and Internal
Roads to the extent of completion.

Financial Performance

During the year under review, your Company registered
an operating income of Rs.703.18 Crores as against
Rs.707.98 Crores reported in the previous year reflecting
a marginal decrease of Rs.4.80 Crores. The otherincome
increased to Rs.30.50 Crores from Rs.9.19 Crores.

Your Company has reported a higher PBT (before
Extraordinary and Exceptional Items) of Rs.452.22
Crores as against Rs.432.26 Crores reported in the
previous year. The increase in PBT (after Extraordinary
and Exceptional Items) was Rs.104.14 Crores (4.62%).

However, the Company has reported a lower PAT of
Rs.249.03 Crores as against Rs.340.35 Crores reported
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in the previous year mainly due to rectification of
entries passed during the reporting period towards
withdrawal of excess MAT credit provided in the earlier
years and reworking of Deferred Tax.

MOU Performance

The Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the
Government of India setting Performance parameters
and targets for the year 2019-20 was signed on
30.04.2019.The MOU rating for FY 2019-20 is “Fair”.

As per the MOU guidelines, your Company had
submitted the Draft MoU 2020-21 to the Department
of Public Enterprises (DPE) through Ministry of
Shipping on 02.12.2019. However, consequent
to your Company ceasing to be a Government
Company signing of MoU with Ministry of Shipping
is not required. The MoU for the FY 2020-21 will now
be signed with Chennai Port Trust.

Dividend

The Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend
of Rs.6/- per share (i.e. 60%) highest ever, on the Equity
Shares of the Company of Rs.10/- each for the year
ended 31t March 2020, as against Rs.4/- Per Share paid
for 2018-19 towards Interim and Final Dividend.

New Projects & Developments

Your Port continues to invest in infrastructure
to increase its ability to provide services to its
customers keeping their future requirements in
mind. Accordingly, your Company has initiated
action for development of additional six berths/
terminals: - three berths to handle Coal, two berths
to handle Liquid Cargo, and one more berth to
handle Container (AECTPL Phase II).

Considering the increasing road traffic movement
of import/export of cargoes, your Port is executing
the Southern Port Access Road (Road widening from
2 lane to 4 lane) from Vallur to Port Main Gate at a
cost of Rs.195 Crores through TNRDC. Works are in
progress and expected completion is by June 2022.

Measures taken to contain the impact of COVID-19

Your Company is taking several precautions under
the guidance of Ministry of Shipping and Port
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Health Organization to prevent the outbreak of
Novel Corona Virus (COVID-19) throughout the Port
as summarized below:

a. Regular disinfection is being carried out at all
common contact points inside the port area
including administrative building, gates, crafts,
vehicles, canteen, Occupational Health Centre etc.

b. Regular monitoring of temperature for port
employees and monitoring of employees of
port users by the respective BOT operators.

c. All ship crew are being screened through PHO
since 01.02.2020.

d. Port Health Officer is giving clearance for every
SIGN ON/SIGN OFF based on the SOP’s.

Corporate Governance

Your Company gives high priority to core principles of
Corporate Governance and believes that its primary
goal is to protect investors; maintain fair, orderly, and
efficient operating environment in the Organisation.
To this end, your Company follows the guidelines
and standards set for the Board of Directors, financial
and non-financial disclosures thereby adding
ethical values in all its operations and actions which
safeguards interest of all stakeholders.

Your Company believes that a Company which
applies the core principles of good corporate gover-
nance like fairness, accountability, responsibility and
transparency, will usually outperform other companies
and will be able to attract investors, whose support
can help to finance further growth.

Your Company, being a debt listed Company,
also adheres to the norms set by SEBI, Secretarial
Standards issued by ICSI and the Companies Act,
2013 along with the Rules made there under.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

It has been your Company’s conscious and
continuous endeavor to contribute to the
community development and services. Towards its
commitment to the society, during the year under
review, your Company has undertaken projects in
line with adopted CSR Policy and requirements of
the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year 2019-20, your Company has spent
Rs.8.11 Crores towards various CSR activities namely
Construction of School Buildings, Construction of
Public Library Building, Construction of New Block
of Siddha Section in Govt. Primary Health Centre,
Construction of Anganwadi Centres, promoting
ecological conservation activities, etc.

Women Empowerment

Your Company’s human resource is represented by
17% of women employees. Women employees are
facilitated to perform and display their efficiencies
for the betterment of the organization as well as
selfimprovement. Various cultural, social, educative
and community activities, such as adult education,
blood donation camps, eye camps, etc. are being
organised regularly, mostly for the benefit of the
women residing in the neighbouring areas.
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 20" Annual
General Meeting of Members of Kamarajar Port
Limited will be held on Wednesday, the 16" day
of December 2020 at 11.00 A.M. through two way
Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual
Means (OAVM) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, the
Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year
ended 315 March 2020 and the reports of the
Board of Directors, the Auditors’ Report and
Comments of Comptroller and Auditor General
of India under Section 143 (6) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

2. To declare Dividend on equity shares for the
financial year 2019-20.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri
P. Raveendran (DIN: 07640613) who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment.

4, To pass with or without modification, the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution
for payment of remuneration to Statutory
Auditors:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 142(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, approval be and is hereby given
to the Board of Directors for fixing the remuneration
of the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to be
appointed by Comptroller and Auditor General of
India for the financial year 2020-21"

SPECIAL BUSINESS
5. Appointment of Shri Sunil Paliwal, LA.S.

(DIN: 01310101) as Chairman-cum-Managing
Director of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification, the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Articles
of Association of the Company and Section 196 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable rules, if any, Shri. Sunil Paliwal, l.A.S., (DIN:
01310101) who was appointed as Chairman-cum-
Managing Director of the Company by the Board
w.ef. 16.09.2019 in terms of Ministry of Shipping,
Government of India Letter No. PD-27/12/2017-PD-I/
PE-l (Office Order No. 32/2019) dated 19" August
2019, be and is hereby appointed as Chairman-cum-
Managing Director of the Company w.e.f 16.09.2019
for a period of 5 years on the terms and conditions
as stipulated in the order issued by Government
of India including the remuneration as set out in
the Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act
annexed to the Notice of this Annual General Meeting
with liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and
vary the terms and conditions of appointment and/
or remuneration, subject to the Companies Act,2013
or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof and shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

6. Appointment of Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao (DIN:
02435597) as an Independent Director of the
Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or

without modification, the following resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Articles
of Association of the Company and Sections 149,
152,161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Quialification of Directors) Rules,
2014 and other applicable rules, if any, Shri. V.M.V.
Subba Rao, (DIN: 02435597) who was appointed as
Non-Official Independent Director of the Company
by the Board w.e.f. 11.11.2019 in terms of Ministry
of Shipping, Government of India Letter No. PD-
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27/30/2017-PD-I dated 06" November, 2019 and
who meets the criteria of Independence as provided
in Section 149(6) of the Act and the details regarding
whose appointment and the terms and conditions
as stipulated in the order issued by Government
of India is given in Statement pursuant to Section
102 of the Act annexed to the Notice of this Annual
General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as
Non-Official Independent Director of the Company
w.e.f 11.11.2019 for a period of 3 years on the terms
and conditions as stipulated in the order issued by
Government of India and shall not be liable to retire
by rotation.”

7. Appointment of Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar
(DIN: 07526368) as a Nominee Director of the
Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or

without modification, the following resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Articles
of Association of the Company and Sections
149,152,161 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 and other applicable rules, if any, Shri S Balaji
Arunkumar (DIN: 07526368) Nominee of Chennai
Port Trust who has been inducted in the Board of
Kamarajar Port Limited w.e.f 04.09.2020, who holds
office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting
and the details regarding whose appointment is
given in Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the
Act annexed to the Notice of this Annual General
Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as Director of
the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

8. Appointment of Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma
(DIN: 03531392) as an Independent Director of
the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or

without modification, the following resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Articles
of Association of the Company and Sections 149,

Place : Chennai
Date : 10.11.2020

152,161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 and other applicable rules, if any, Capt. Anoop
Kumar Sharma, (DIN: 03531392) who has been
appointed as Additional Director (Non-Official
Independent Director) in the Board of Kamarajar
Port Limited on 10.11.2020, who holds office upto
the date of this Annual General Meeting and who
meets the criteria of Independence as provided in
Section 149(6) of the Act and the details regarding
whose appointment is given in Statement pursuant
to Section 102 of the Act annexed to the Notice
of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby
appointed as Non-Official Independent Director of
the Company for a period of 3 years w.e.f 10.11.2020
and shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

9. Appointment of Smt. Sarla Balagopal, IRTS
(Retd.) (DIN: 01572718) as an Independent
Director of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification, the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Articles
of Association of the Company and Sections 149,
152,161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Quialification of Directors) Rules,
2014 and other applicable rules, if any, Smt. Sarla
Balagopal, IRTS (Retd.) (DIN: 01572718) who has
been appointed as Additional Director (Non-Official
Independent Director) in the Board of Kamarajar
Port Limited on 10.11.2020, who holds office upto
the date of this Annual General Meeting and who
meets the criteria of Independence as provided in
Section 149(6) of the Act and the details regarding
whose appointment is given in Statement pursuant
to Section 102 of the Act annexed to the Notice
of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby
appointed as Non-Official Independent Director of
the Company for a period of 3 years w.e.f 10.11.2020
and shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

Jayalakshmi Srinivasan
Company Secretary



NOTES:

a) In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic,
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has
vide its circular dated May 05, 2020 read with
circulars dated April 08, 2020 and April 13, 2020
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”)
permitted the holding of the Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing
(VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without
the physical presence of the Members at a
common venue. Those wishing to participate
through VC or OAVM may do so in person. Proxy
cannot participate in the meeting through
VC or OAVM. Hence, Proxy Form, Attendance
Slip, Route Map are not annexed to the Notice.
Members participating through VC or OAVM
may cast their votes on the resolutions during
the meeting by show of hands oronly by sending
emails through their email addresses registered
with the Company in case of a Poll. The said
emails shall only be sent to the designated
email address circulated by the Company.

b) Corporate members intending to authorize their
representatives to participate and vote at the
meeting are requested to send a certified copy
of the Board resolution/such other documents
authorizing their representative to attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote.
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The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM
mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of
the commencement of the Meeting by following
the procedure mentioned in the Notice.
Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM
shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning
the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

All documents referred to in the Notice are open
for inspection at the Registered Office of the
Company on all working days, except Saturdays,
Sundays and holidays up to the date of the Annual
General Meeting and will be made available to
the members in electronic mode if requested.

The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant
to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of Item Nos. 5-9 is annexed hereto and
forms a part of this Notice.

Members are requested to notify immediately
any change of address.

Brief Resume of the Directors seeking
appointment at this Annual General Meeting is
attached hereto and forms part of the notice.

Instructions for attending the AGM through VC:

1.

Web link and log-in credentials for attending
AGM through VC/OAVM will be provided in the
e-mail forwarding the Notice and Annual Report.
Members can join Video Conference either
through Mobile/Laptop/Desktop.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 5

Shri Sunil Paliwal, .A.S., (TN: 1993) (DIN: 01310101) was
appointed as Chairman-cum-Managing Director of
the Company by the Board w.e.f. 16.09.2019 pursuant
to Ministry of Shipping, Government of India Letter No.

PD-27/12/2017-PD-I/PE-l (Office Order No. 32/2019)

dated 19" August 2019, for a period of 5 years from

the date of assumption of charge of the post, or until
further orders whichever is earlier. Pursuant to the

Company ceasing to be a Government Company

w.e.f 27.3.2020, approval of the Shareholders is to be

obtained at the Annual General Meeting.

Tenure, Terms and Conditions on deputation of

the appointment are as under:-

1. Period of Deputation: Shri Sunil Paliwal IAS
(TN:1993) will be on deputation from 16.09.2019
to 15.09.2024 or until further orders, whichever
is earlier.

2.

Pay: During the period, Shri Sunil Paliwal
IAS (TN:1993) will draw the pay at level 14
(Rs.1,44,200-Rs.2,18,200/-) of the Pay Matrix
plus deputation (duty) allowance thereon plus
personal pay, if any.

Deputation Allowance: Shri Sunil Paliwal IAS
(TN:1993) while on deputation will be eligible to
draw deputation allowance wherever admissible.
Dearness Allowance: Shri Sunil Paliwal IAS
(TN:1993) will be eligible to draw dearness
allowance at the Central Government rates.
House Rent Allowance/ Transport Allowance:
Shri Sunil Paliwal IAS (TN:1993) will be paid
House Rent Allowance/ Transport Allowance
at the rates applicable to him in the cadre post
under relevant rules.

Transfer TA/ Joining Time: Shri Sunil Paliwal
IAS (TN:1993) will be entitled to T.A. and Joining
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10.

11.

12.

Time both on joining the post on deputation
and on reversion under the rules of Kamarajar
Port Limited and which shall not be inferior
to the relevant provisions of AIS Rules. The
expenditure on this account will be borne by
the Kamarajar Port Limited.

. TA/DA for Journey On Duty: Shri Sunil Paliwal

IAS (TN:1993) will be paid Travelling Allowance
and Daily Allowance by the Kamarajar Port
Limited under its own rules/ regulations for the
journey undertaken by him in connection with
the official work under Kamarajar Port Limited
whether in India or abroad which shall not be
inferior to the relevant provisions of the All India
Services Rules.

Medical Facilities: Kamarajar Port Limited
shall afford to Shri Sunil Paliwal IAS (TN:1993)
medical facilities not inferior to those which are
admissible to an All India Service Officer of the
same status under Central Government rules on
the subject.

Leave and Pension: During the period of
Deputation, Shri Sunil Paliwal IAS (TN:1993)
will continue to be governed by All India
Service (Leave) Rules, 1955 and the All India
Services Officer (DCRB) Rules, 1958. The entire
expenditure in respect of leave taken during
and the end of deputation shall be borne by the
Kamarajar Port Limited. Shri Sunil Paliwal 1AS
(TN: 1993) shall not be allowed to join any of the
pension schemes of Kamarajar Port Limited.
Provident Fund: During the period of foreign
service, Shri Sunil Paliwal IAS (TN:1993) wiill
continue to subscribe to the AIS (Provident
Fund) Scheme to which he was subscribing at
the time of proceeding on foreign service in
accordance with the rules of such fund.

Conduct, Discipline and Appeal Rules: Shri
Sunil Paliwal IAS (TN:1993) will continue to be
governed by the All India Services (Conduct)
Rules, 1968 and All India Services (Discipline &
Appeal) Rules, 1969.

Leave Travel Concession: Kamarajar Port
Limited will allow Leave Travel Concession to
Shri Sunil Paliwal 1AS (TN:1993) as admissible
under its own rules/ regulations provided
these are not inferior to those admissible
to him under the AIS (LTC) Rules, 1975. The

13.

14.

15.

whole expenditure in this regard will be met
by Kamarajar Port Limited. This is, however,
subject to the conditions that the officer had
not already, before proceeding on deputation,
availed of the concession during the particular
block year period of his deputation.

Disability Leave: Kamarajar Port Limited will
be liable to pay leave emoluments in respect
of disability leave, if any, granted to Shri Sunil
Paliwal IAS (TN:1993) on account of any disability
incurred in and through Foreign Service even
though such disability manifests itself after the
termination of foreign service. The relevant AlS
rules will be applicable in such cases.
LeaveSalary/Pension Contributions:Kamarajar
Port Limited will pay to the Government of the
parent cadre of the member of the service leave
salary and pension contribution at the rates
in force from time to time in accordance with
the orders issued by the President under FR
116. The Payment of these contributions must
be paid annually within 15 days from the end
of each financial year or at the end of foreign
service if the deputation expires before the end
of a financial year. Delayed payment will attract
liability of payment of interest in terms of the
instructions continued in the Ministry of Finance’s
Notification No. F.1(1)- E.ll/83 dated the 10th
August, 1983, as amended from time to time.
Pending intimation of the rates of Leave Salary
and Pension Contributions by the concerned
Accountant General, Kamarajar Port Limited
shall pay Leave Salary and Pension Contributions
provisionally at the prescribed rates.

Group Insurance: If Shri Sunil Paliwal IAS
(TN:1993) has not opted out of the Central
Government Employees Group Insurance
Scheme, 1980, before 31.12.1981, the said
scheme as appended to the Schedule to the
AIS (Group Insurance) Rules, 1981, shall be
applicable to him. In that case, the required
amount will be deducted from his salary as
per prescribed rates as subscription towards
the Insurance Scheme which shall be remitted
to the concerned Accountant General by the
organization. If at any time the recovery of
subscription falls in arrears, the same shall be
recovered with interest admissible under the
Scheme on the accretions to the Saving Fund.
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16. Residuary Matters: In all the matters relating Shri Sunil Paliwal 1AS (TN:1993) shall be
to conditions of service and benefits/facilities governed by the existing rules, regulations and
and perquisites in the Kamarajar Port Limited orders of the Kamarajar Port Limited.
and not covered by Items 1 to 15 above,

His brief resume is as under:-

Particulars Details
Date of Birth and Age 25/11/1968; 52 years
Educational & Professional Qualification 1. B.Tech in Computer Science from IIT, Kanpur.
2. M.S. in Computer Science from University of Maryland,
USA.
3. MBA from University of Birmingham, UK.
Business / Occupation Employed

Shri Sunil Paliwal started his career as Sub Collector, Cuddalore
District and served as Additional Collector in Nagapattinam
District. He also worked as the Collector of Tirunelveli, Theni
and Kanniyakumari Districts.

He also held crucial portfolios in the Government of Tamil
Nadu such as Managing Director, Chennai Metropolitan Water
Supply and Sewerage Board (CMWSSB), Managing Director,
Tamil Nadu Road Development Company Limited (TNRDC),
Managing Director, Tamilnadu Industrial Development
Corporation, Secretary to Government, Commercial Taxes
& Registration Department and Commissioner for Milk
Production & Dairy Development and Managing Director,
Tamilnadu Co-operative Milk Producers’ Federation Ltd.
(Aavin), Principal Secretary to Government, Higher Education
Department and Principal Secretary to Government, Labour &
Employment Department.

Experience

Securities held in KPL
Relationship with other Directors/KMP of KPL
Directorship/ Membership in other Companies | Name of the Company

1 Equity Share of Rs. 10/- as a nominee of Chennai Port Trust

Not Applicable

Nature of interest/concern

Chennai Ennore Port Road | Nominee Director
Company Limited

Kanniyakumari Port Limited | Nominee Director

Sethusamudram Corporation | Nominee Director
Limited
Rs.3,83,739/- p.m.

Number of Meetings of the Board attended | Details provided in the Corporate Governance Report
during the year (Annexure IV of Board's report)

Remuneration last drawn

Shri Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S., (DIN: 01310101) shall not
be liable to retire by rotation. He is deemed to be
interested in proposed resolution to the extent of his
appointment as Chairman-cum-Managing Director
of the Company. No other Director or KMP and
their relative is interested or concerned in the said
resolution. Shri Sunil Paliwal, .A.S., is not disqualified
from being appointed as Director in terms of Section

164 of the Companies Act, 2013. No sitting fees will
be paid to Shri Sunil Paliwal L.A.S. for attending the
meeting of the Board or Committees thereof.

In view of his background and experience, it will be
in the interest of the Company that he continues as
Chairman-cum-Managing Director of the Company.
Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013, as approval of
the members is to be obtained, the same is brought
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to the Shareholders. Board of Directors recommends
the resolution for Members approval as Ordinary
Resolution.

Item No. 6

ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao (DIN: 02435597) was appointed as
Non-Official Independent Director of the Company by
the Board w.ef 11.11.2019 through circular resolution
pursuant to Ministry of Shipping, Government of India
Letter No. PD-27/30/2017-PD-l dated 6" November
2019. In the opinion of the Board, he fulfills the
conditions specified in the Act and the rules made there
His brief resume is as under:-

under for such an appointment and he is independent
of the management. He holds office up to the date of
this Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Tenure, Terms and Conditions of the appointment:
Pursuant to Ministry of Shipping, Government of
India letter No. PD-27/30/2017-PD-I dated 06%
November 2019, he has been appointed as Non-
Official Independent Director on the Board of
Kamarajar Port Ltd w.e.f. 11.11.2019 for a period of 3
yearsw.e.fthe date of notification of hisappointment
or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

Particulars

Details

Date of Birth and Age

10/04/1965; 55 Years

Educational & Professional Qualification

B.COM., F.C.A., DISA(ICAI)

Business / Occupation

Practicing Chartered Accountant

Experience

He is a fellow Member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and a Proprietor of V.M.V.S Rao & Co, Chartered Accountants,
Nellore with more than 27 years of experience in Accounts, Audit,
Taxation and Management Consultancy. He is a Qualified Anti
Money Laundering Specialist of ICAI and has qualified various
Professional Courses conducted by ICAI. He is Advisor in various
reputed Corporate Entities in Nellore/ Sri City etc. He is Technical
Reviewer of Financial Reporting Review Board (FRRB) of ICAl and
has specialisation in Indirect Taxes. Presently he has been co-
opted as Member of Indirect and GST Committee of SIRC of ICAI.
He has published various Articles in professional journals - BCAJ,
CASC, SIRC etc. He is Founder Secretary of Nellore branch of SIRC
of ICAl and has been instrumental in bringing the Branch Status,
Computer Lab & Examination Centre at Nellore branch.

Securities held in KPL

Nil

Relationship with other Directors/KMP of KPL

Not applicable

Directorship/ Membership in  other
Companies

Name of the Company | Nature of interest/concern

Enrica Enterprises Director

Private Limited

Remuneration last drawn

Not Applicable

Number of Meetings of the Board attended
during the year

Details provided in the Corporate Governance Report (Annexure
IV of Board’s Report)

Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao, (DIN: 02435597) shall not
be liable to retire by rotation. He is deemed to be
interested in proposed resolution to the extent
of his appointment as Non-Official Independent
Director. No other Director or KMP and their relative
is interested or concerned in the said resolution. He
is not disqualified from being appointed as Director
in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.
In view of his background and experience, it will be
in the interest of the Company that he continues as

Independent Director of the Company. Pursuant to the
Companies Act, 2013, as approval of the members is to
be obtained the same is brought to the Shareholders.
Board of Directors recommends the resolution for
Members approval as Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 7

Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar (DIN: 07526368), Nominee
Director of Chennai Port Trust was appointed as
Additional Director of the Company in the place of
Shri Cyril C George by the Board w.e.f 04.09.2020
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through Circular Resolution, pursuant to Chennai Remuneration Committee. In terms of Section 161 of
Port Trust letter No.ChPT/KPL CELL/2020/F dated the Companies Act, 2013 he shall hold office only up
28.08.2020 and recommendation of Nomination and to the date of this Annual General Meeting.
His brief resume is as under:-
Particulars Details

Date of Birth and Age 05/06/1971; 49 Years

Educational & Professional Qualification B.Law

Business / Occupation Deputy Chairman, Chennai Port Trust

Experience Indian Railway Traffic Service Officer of 1997 batch (LR.T.S).

He worked in Southern Railways & Southern Eastern Railway,
Bilaspur, for 17 years in operations, commercial and safety
wings. He has wide experience in operations, Traffic planning,
Rail Freight marketing and passenger time tabling. He has
also worked as Senior General Manager, Chennai CONCOR on
deputation for 2 years. Before joining as Deputy Chairman,
Chennai Port Trust, he has worked as Deputy Chairman,
Kolkata Port Trust (now called as Syama Prasad Mookerjee
Port) for more than 4 years and he was holding the charge of
Deputy Chairman, Haldia Dock Complex, Kolkata and Deputy
Chairman, Kolkata Dock Labour Board. Heis also the Managing
Director of Central Inland Water Transport Corporation Ltd
(CIWTC) and Director in Hooghly Dock and Port Engineers Ltd.
He graduated in Law from Madras University.

Securities held in KPL 1 Equity Share of Rs.10/- as a Nominee of Chennai Port Trust

Relationship with other Directors/KMP of KPL | Not applicable

Directorship/ Membership in other Companies | Name of the Company Nature of interest/ concern
Central Inland  Water | Managing Director

Transport Corpn Ltd.
Hooghly Dock & Port | Director
Engineers Ltd

Bhor Sagar Port Ltd. Nominee Director
Kolkatta Port Accretion Ltd | Nominee Director
Remuneration last drawn Not applicable
Number of Meetings of the Board attended | Corporate Governance Report (Annexure IV of Board’s
during the year Report) may be referred.
Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar (DIN: 07526368) is deemed Item No. 8
to be interested in proposed resolution to the extent Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma (DIN: 03531392) was
of his appointment as Director. No other Director or appointed as Additional Director (Non-Official
KMP and their relatives are interested or concerned Independent Director) of the Company by the
in the said resolution. He is liable to retire by rotation Board on 10.11.2020 pursuant to recommendation
and not disqualified from being appointed as Director of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. He
in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. holds office up to the date of this Annual General

Meeting. In the opinion of the Board, he fulfills the
conditions specified in the Act and the rules made
there under for such an appointment and he is
independent of the management.

In view of his background and experience, it will be
in the interest of the Company that he continues as
Director of the Company. Pursuant to the Companies
Act, 2013, as approval of the members is to be

obtained the same is brought to the Shareholders. Tenure, Termsand Conditions of theappointment:
Board of Directors recommends the resolution for Appointment will be for a period of 3 years w.e.f.
Members approval as Ordinary Resolution. 10.11.2020.
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His brief resume is as under:-

Particulars

Details

Date of Birth and Age

21/08/1960; 60 Years

Educational & Professional Qualification

Master (F.G.); Diploma in Marketing Management ; Fellow
of Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers; Executive Business
Leadership Program, ISB Hyderabad.

Business / Occupation

Professional

Experience

Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma was the Chairman & Managing
Director of The Shipping Corporation of IndiaLtd (SCI), a
Government of India ‘Navratna’ Public Sector Enterprise
& India’s largest Shipping Company. Prior to this he was
the Managing Director of M/s. Essar Shipping Ltd. Under
his stewardship at both the Companies, he established a
diversified leadership team, streamlined processes and ensure
balanced control in order to improve efficiency/ profitability
& good governance. During his exceptional career spanning
over 38 years, he was awarded Maritime Personality of the
year 2019; “National Maritime Day Award of Excellence, 2019”
for Lifetime exceptional and distinguished achievement and
performance at the senior functional level; “The Maritime
Standard Outstanding Achievement Award, 2018” for
Outstanding achievement and contribution to the industry
in India, Sri Lanka and the Middle East; “Indian Chamber of
Commerce Award” for outstanding contribution to the Indian
Public Sector Industry. He is a member of several high level
committees of International classification societies.

Securities held in KPL

Nil.

Relationship with other Directors/KMP of KPL

Not applicable

Directorship/ Membership in other Companies

Name of the Company Nature of interest/ concern

Dredging Corporation of
India Limited

Independent Director

Remuneration last drawn

Not applicable

during the year

Number of Meetings of the Board attended | Not applicable

Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma, (DIN: 03531392) shall
not be liable to retire by rotation. He is deemed to
be interested in proposed resolution to the extent
of his appointment as Non-Official Independent
Director. No other Director or KMP and their relative
is interested or concerned in the said resolution. He
is not disqualified from being appointed as Director
in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In view of his background and experience, it will be
in the interest of the Company that he continues as
Director of the Company. Pursuant to the Companies
Act, 2013, as approval of the members is to be
obtained the same is brought to the Shareholders.
Board of Directors recommends the resolution for
Members approval as Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 9

Smt. Sarla Balagopal (DIN: 01572718) was appointed
as Additional Director (Non-Official Independent
Director) of the Company by the Board on 10.11.2020
pursuant to recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. She holds office up
to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, she fulfills the
conditions specified in the Act and the rules made
there under for such an appointment and she is
independent of the management.

Tenure, Terms and Conditions of the appointment:

Appointment will be for a period of 3 years w.ef.
10.11.2020.
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Her brief resume is as under:-

Particulars Details
Date of Birth and Age

Educational & Professional Qualification

03/11/1955; 65 Years
M.A. (English Lit) M.Phil. (Public Administration)
Retired Government Servant

Business / Occupation

Experience She is a retired Indian Railway Traffic Service officer of 1982
Batch. In her career span of 32 years in Indian Railways, she
has held varied and important portfolios both at the field

level as well as at the policy making level in the Railway Board.

She headed the Commercial Department of Southern
Railway for over 5 years during which she undertook
various initiatives to increase freight earnings and improve
rail passenger interface.

She was the first CEO of Hassan Mangalore Rail Development
Company (HMRDC), a joint venture of the Ministry of
Railways and the Govt. of Karnataka, in Bengaluru. During
her tenure the broad gauge link between Bengaluru and
Mangalore was commissioned.

She also served as a Member on the Bench of the Railway
Rates Tribunal, Chennai.

She has expertise in costing and pricing of transportation
products, PPP (Public Private Partnership) projects and
contract management.

Securities held in KPL Nil.
Relationship with other Directors/KMP of KPL
Directorship/ Membership in other Companies | Name of the Company | Nature of interest/ concern

Not applicable

Remuneration last drawn Not applicable

Number of Meetings of the Board attended | Not applicable
during the year

Smt. Sarla Balagopal, (DIN: 01572718) shall not be
liable to retire by rotation. She is deemed to be
interested in proposed resolution to the extent
of her appointment as Non-Official Independent
Director. No other Director or KMP and their relative
is interested or concerned in the said resolution. She
is not disqualified from being appointed as Director
in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Place : Chennai
Date : 10.11.2020

In view of her background and experience, it will be
in the interest of the Company that she continues as
Director of the Company.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013, as approval of
the members is to be obtained the same is brought
to the Shareholders. Board of Directors recommends
the resolution for Members approval as Ordinary
Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Jayalakshmi Srinivasan
Company Secretary
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have the pleasure of presenting the
20" Annual Report on the performance of your
Company for the financial year ended 31 March
2020 along with Audited Statements of Accounts,
Auditor’s Report & Report on review of accounts by
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

1.0 STRATEGIC SALE OF SHAREHOLDING OF
GOVERNMENT OF INDIA

Pursuant to the In-Principle approval of Cabinet Committee
on Economic Affairs for Strategic Disinvestment of 100%
equity shares of Government of India in Kamarajar Port
Limited to Chennai Port Trust in a single stage process,
the entire shareholding of the Company held by the
Government of India, through Ministry of Shipping
(representing 66.67% of the paid-up share capital of
the Company) along with the management control of
your Company was transferred to Chennai Port Trust on
27.03.2020 in terms of Share Purchase Agreement that
was executed by and betweenThe President of India’and
‘Chennai Port Trust’on 25.03.2020. Consequently, your
Company has now become a Wholly Owned Subsidiary
of Chennai Port Trust as 100% of the Paid-up Share
Capital of your Company is now held by Chennai Port
Trust and thereby your Company has now ceased to
be a Government Company.

2.0 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Rs. in crores)

Particulars 2019-20 [ 2018-19

Income from Operations 703.18 707.98
Other Income 30.50 9.19
Total Income 733.68 71717
Operating Expenses 144.68 146.19
Finance Costs 84.65 91.15
Depreciation and Amortization 52.13 4757
Total Expenses 281.46 284.91
Profit Before Extraordinary & 452.22 432.26
Exceptional Items

Exceptional ltems (-) 423 88.41
Profit Before Tax 447.99 343.85
Taxes 198.96 3.50
Profit After Tax 249.03 340.35
Other Comprehensive Income 0.23 0.20
Total Comprehensive Income 249.26 340.15

3.0 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, your Company registered an
operatingincome of Rs.703.18 Crores as against Rs.707.98
Crores reported in the previous year reflecting a marginal
decrease of Rs.4.80 Crores. The other income increased
to Rs.30.50 Crores from Rs.9.19 Crores. The Company
has reported a higher PBT (before Extraordinary and
Exceptional ltems) of Rs.452.22 Crores as against Rs.432.26
Crores reported in the previous year.The increase in PBT
(after Extraordinary and Exceptional Iltems) was Rs.104.14
Crores (4.62%). However, the Company has reported a
lower PAT of Rs.249.03 Crores as against Rs.340.35 Crores
reported in the previous Year mainly due to rectification
of entries passed during the reporting period towards
withdrawal of excess MAT credit provided in the earlier
year and reworking of Deferred Tax.

4.0 PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE & HIGHLIGHTS

¢ Sinceinception, your Company has handled 17,29,405
units of automobiles in 1,102 RoRo vessels.

e KPL has imported one Mobile X-Ray Container
Scanner equipment through the RoRo vessel
handled at KPL's General Cargo Berthon 22.05.2019.
The installation of Mobile X-Ray Container Scanner
system at six Major Ports in India is one of the major
initiatives of Ease of Doing Business under the
Ministry of Shipping, Govt. of India.

e KPL and ChPT jointly conducted the PCS 1X Road
show on 01.07.2019.

e [SUZU Motors India Pvt. Ltd. has commenced the
trial export of automobiles through the General
Cargo Berth on 30.09.2019.

o KPL hasexecuted the agreement withTANGEDCO
for the use of Coal Berth facilities i.e., Coal Berth
Nos.3 and 4 on 14.01.2020.

Signing of Agreement between KPL and TANGEDCO



¢ A new RoRo service by the National Shipping of
Saudi Arabia, M/s. BahriLogistics has commenced
at KPL's General Cargo Berth with the first RoRo
vessel M.V. Bahri Jeddah berthed on 26.12.2019

e The vessel call of Feeder service between KPL
and Colombo by CMA CGM at Adani Ennore
Container Terminal at Kamarajar Port Limited has
commenced on 05.12.2019.

e Renault India launched export of ‘Triber’ new
model cars to South African Market at Kamarajar
Port on 24.12.2019.

Shri Sunil Paliwal I.A.S, CMD of KPL along with Shri Venkatram

Mamillapalle, Country CEO & MD, Renault India Operations flagged

off the first car for export from General Cargo Berth of KPL.

e 3 newly constructed projects namely Road cum
Gate Complex, Container Pre-Parking Yard and Guest
House were inaugurated on 15" November 2019.

Inauguration of Guest House by Shri Mansukh Mandaviya,
Honorable Minister of State for Shipping (Independent Charge)
and Chemicals & Fertilizers on 15™ November 2019.

5.0 DIVIDEND

For the financial year 2019-20, Board of Directors
in their meeting held on 9" September 2020
recommended dividend @ 60% on paid up equity
share capital absorbing an amount of Rs.180 crores
(Rs.6.00 per share). The dividend will be paid, subject
to the approval of Members at the Annual General
Meeting.

20" ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

6.0 TRANSFER TO RESERVES
6.1 General Reserve:

Your Company has not transferred any amount to
General Reserve during the year as it is not mandatory
to transfer any amount before declaration of dividend
under the Companies Act, 2013. The balance as on
31t March 2020 remains at Rs.79.02 Crores.

6.2 Debenture/Bond Redemption Reserve:

Your Company has transferred Rs.8.63 Crores to
Debenture/Bond Redemption Reserve pursuant to
Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the balance
as on 31t March, 2020 stood at Rs.62.67 Crores.

7.0 FINANCE

During the reporting year, your Company has not
availed/ raised any loan/ FCL borrowings.

Your Company has repaid scheduled installments of
Foreign Currency Loan (FCL) amounting to Rs.80.70
crores availed from Axis Bank which had become
due during the year and also served the monthly
interest payments.

Your Company has repaid scheduled installments of
term loans availed earlier from Chennai Port Trust
amounting to Rs.23.01 Crores which had become
due during the current year and served quarterly
interest payments.

Your Company has promptly discharged the annual
interest obligation to the tune of Rs.6.86 crores and
Rs.32.25 crores on Tax Free Bonds Issued during the
financial years 2012-13 and 2013-14 respectively on
the due dates.

7.1 Ratings

As per the offer document of tax free bonds issued
by your Company, your Company has to carry
out the annual surveillance of Credit Ratings.
Accordingly, the requisite details were furnished to
Credit Rating Agencies for annual surveillance.

The Credit Rating Agencies have reaffirmed the
ratings during annual surveillance as detailed
below:

Credit Rating Agencies | Ratings/Outlook
CRISIL AA/ Stable
CARE AA/ Stable
ICRA AA/ Stable
Brick Work AA+/ Stable
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7.2 Particulars of transaction made with Related
Parties

No Related Party Transactions were entered into
during the financial year.

7.3 Material changes and commitments affecting
financial position between the end of the
financial year and date of report

There are no material changes and commitments
affecting financial position of your Company
between the end of financial year and date of
report.

7.4 Change in the nature of business, if any

There has been no change in the business of the
Company during the Financial Year.

7.5 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees

Your Company has not given any Loans and
Guarantees or provided any Security under Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7.6 Investments

During the year, your Company has invested in
10,000 shares of Dredging Corporation in India in
the secondary marketinvolving Rs.25,04,116.71/-as
per the directions of Ministry of Shipping. Details of
the same are contained in the financial statements.

7.7 Capital Expenditure

Your Company spent Rs.102.22 Crores for capacity
expansion during the financial year 2019-20 as
against the revised target of Rs.120 Crores set for
the year. Your Company capitalized the assets
of Dredging for LNG Berth during the year and
Internal Roads to the extent of completion.

7.8 Fixed Deposits

During the year under review, your Company has not
accepted any fixed deposits, nor has any outstanding
unclaimed or unpaid deposits as on 31.03.2020.

8.0 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

Your Company has adopted policies and procedures
for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its
business and adheres to the Company’s policies, for
safeguarding its assets, for preventing and detecting
frauds and errors, for accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation

of reliable financial disclosures. Internal control
procedures are also considered sufficient to provide a
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability
of the Financial Statements. The internal control and
governance processes are duly reviewed by the
Internal Auditor for their adequacy and effectiveness.

9.0 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)
9.1 MOU Performance

The Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the
Government of India setting Performance parameters
and targets for the year 2019-20 was signed on
30.04.2019.The MOU rating for FY 2019-20 is “Fair".

9.2 MOU 2020-21

As per the MOU guidelines, your Company had
submitted the Draft MoU 2020-21 to Department
of Public Enterprises (DPE) through Ministry of
Shipping on 02.12.2019. However, consequent
to your Company ceasing to be a Government
Company signing of MoU with Ministry of Shipping
is not required. The MoU for the FY 2020-21 will now
be signed with Chennai Port Trust and the draft MoU
has been sent to Chennai Port Trust on 27.07.2020.

10.0 VISITS OF COMMITTEES / COMMISSIONS

10.1 Visit Of Parliamentary Standing Committee
On Subordinate Legislation (Rajya Sabha)

The Committee on Subordinate Legislation, Rajya
Sabha headed by Hon’ble Chairman of the Committee
Dr.T. Subbarami Reddy, M.P. was held on 21.01.2020
at Chennai.
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Study visit of the Committee on Subordinate Legislation Rajya
Sabha to Chennai

10.2 Visit of National Commission for Scheduled
Tribes

National Commission for Scheduled Tribes under
the Chairmanship of Shri Nand Kumar Sai, Hon'ble
Chairperson and Miss Anusuiya Uikey Hon'ble Vice



Chairperson visited Chennaion 06.07.2019 and held
discussions with the officials of Kamarajar Port Limited
regarding implementation of Reservation Policy and
various Constitutional safeguards for Scheduled Tribes.

11.0 OPERATIONS

Your Company was conceived to do Coal business
for TNEB (TANGEDCO) to handle Thermal Coal in
Coal Berths 1 & 2. Your Company which was looked
upon initially as a mono commodity Port to handle
the Coal requirements of TNEB, has over the years,
diversified its cargo basket and has become an all
cargo handling Port by strengthening its presence
through PPP-BOT/Captive Operators with modern
State of Art port facilities. Currently its 8 operational
berths give it a capacity of 54.44 Million Tonnes Per
Annum of handling capacity. However, the cargo
basket has the predominance of Coal which still
constitutes 64% of the total cargo while Liquid
Bulk accounts for 14%, Automobile and associated
Capital Goods 8% and Container 8%.

Your Company has invested in and built a portfolio
that has strengthened its upstream and downstream
integration and also has infrastructure facilities
provided for evacuation of cargoes through rail and
road, which facilitates faster and speedy evacuation.
The closed conveyors connected directly from Jetty
to Stack yards of Coal ensure environment-friendly
transfer of potentially polluting cargo and keeps
your Port and surroundings clean.

The details of the Port facilities are as follows:
11.1 Cargo Throughput

During the year 2019-20, the Company recorded
cargo handling of 31.75 MTPA as against 34.50 MTPA
in 2018-19. The main reason for shortfall of cargo
throughput of your Company is due to reduced
Thermal coal demand on account of

a) reduced demand from TANGEDCO plants
due to alternate power production through
renewable sources;

b)  delayin commissioning of ongoing TANGEDCO
plants;

c)  diversion of about 2.00 Million Tonnes Thermal
Coal of Mettur Power plant to nearby Port at
Karaikal and direct movement of Coal through
rakes from the originating Coalfield itself.
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11.2 Cargo Handling Capacity of Your Company

Presently the Cargo handling capacity is 54.44
Million Tonnes Per Annum with 8 operational berths.
Out of the 8 operational berths, three berths are for
handling bulk Coal, two berths are for handling
Liquid Cargo (POL, LPG & LNG), one berth each to
handle Container, Multi Cargo and Automobile
export/import and associated capital goods.

I. The details of the operational berths are as
follows:

(i) Bulk Terminals (Coal)

The capacity of the three berths to handle Bulk
cargo i.e. Coal is 26 Million Tonnes per annum as
detailed below:

Two coal berths of 16 MTPA capacity (CB1 & CB2)
constructed to handle Thermal Coal by coastal/
import for TNEB (TANGEDCO) and NTECL (Joint
Venture of TNEB and NTPC) for Thermal Power
Plants at North Chennai, Ennore, Mettur and Vallur.

Your Company developed one Common User Coal
Terminal of 10 MTPA capacity under PPP mode with
M/s. Chettinad International Coal Terminal Pvt. Ltd
(CICTPL) as the BOT Operator. The revenue share
offered to your Company is 52.524%. Terminal
handles Thermal and Coking Coal of various users
in the hinterland.

Your Company handled 19.31 Million Tonnes of
Thermal Coal and 0.95 Million Tonnes of Coking
Coal, totally 20.26 Million Tonnes in the three Bulk
Terminal/Berths in the FY 2019-20.

(ii) Liquid Terminals

Two Liquid Terminals have been created by your
Company through PPP and captive mode to handle
POL/LPG, LNG, etc., with a total capacity of SMTPA.
Marine Liquid Terminal-1 of 3 MTPA capacity,
developed by your Company on PPP mode, was
commissioned in January 2009. M/s. Ennore Tank
Terminals Private Limited (ETTPL) is the BOT Operator
for Marine Liquid Terminal. The Terminal handles POL,
LPG, Chemicals, etc. for Qil Sector PSUs and other
users. Your Company is receiving 21.678% revenue
share from the BOT operator. The total cargo handled
during the year 2019-20 at MLT-1 is 4.72 Million Tonnes.
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Your Company granted Concession for the
development of 5 MTPA capacity LNG Terminal
for import, storage and re-gasification of LNG. The
Terminal has been built by the nation’s largest fuel
retailer Indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL) as the
lead partner of the Joint Venture at a cost of Rs.5,151
croreinside the Port on captive basis. The Terminal was
commissioned on 26.02.2019 and total cargo handled
during the year 2019-20is 0.51 Million Tonnes.

Totally 5.23 Million Tonnes of liquid cargo (POL, LPG,
LNG and Chemicals) was handled by your Company
during 2019-20.

(iii) Container Terminal

Your Company has awarded Concession for the
development of Container Terminal with a capacity
of 1.4 Million TEUs under PPP mode. The developer
M/s. Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd,,
Guijarat, who is the Concessionaire for the project,
has offered 37.00% revenue share. The first phase
of 400 m quay length with capacity of 15.44 MTPA
started handling vessels in October 2017. The total
cargo handled during the year 2019-20is 2.52 Million
Tonnes as against 1.10 Million Tonnes handled in the
year 2018-19.

(iv) Automobile Export/Import Terminal

Your Company has developed a berth and parking
space for import/export of automobile units. The
berth can accommodate the biggest car carrier with
a capacity of 8000 cars and has large car parking
facilities of 1,99,600 sg.m to park 13,500 cars at a time.
Your Company takes pride to be the lone entity to have
such huge parking facilities in the Indian Port Sector.
During the year 2019-20, your Company has handled
2.45 Million Tonnes of automobile cargo (1,99,651
units) as against 2.18 Million Tonnes of automobile
cargo (1,77,370 units) handled in the year 2018-19.
The major users of the terminal are RENAULT NISSAN,
TOYOTA and FORD.

(v) Multi Cargo Terminal

Your Company has developed Multi Cargo Terminal in
PPP Mode. The developer M/s. Chettinad International
Bulk Terminal Private Limited (CIBPTL), who is the BOT
Concessionaire for the project, has offered 36.00%
revenue share. The Terminal was commissioned during
August 2017. The total cargo handled during the year
2019-20 is 1.29 Million Tonnes as against 1.32 Million
Tonnes handled in the year 2018-19.

Il. Projects under Implementation:

The Port continues to invest in infrastructure
to increase its ability to provide services to its
customers keeping their future requirements in
mind. Accordingly, your Company has initiated
action for development of additional six berths/
terminals: - three berths to handle Coal, two berths
to handle Liquid Cargo, and one more berth to
handle container as detailed below:

(i) Bulk Terminal (Coal)

The capacity of the three berths to handle Bulk
cargo i.e. Coal is 30 Million Tonnes per annum are:

(@) CoalBerths3 &4

Considering the expansion of its existing Thermal
Power Plants and that of its JV, TANGEDCO had
requested KPL to establish 2 additional Coal Berths
(CB3 & CB4) at its own investment of Rs.500 Crores.
The Coal Berths have been constructed by KPL to
accommodate Capesize vessels of 18 m draft and
have capacity of 9 MTPA each. KPL has handed
over Coal Berth - 4 and Coal Berth - 3 to TANGEDCO
during August 2018 and June 2019 respectively,
for installation of mechanization like Unloaders,
Conveyor system etc. Mechanisation of the berths
by TANGEDCO is under progress.

(b) Modification of Iron Ore Terminal on as is where
is basis to also handle common user coal

KPL had signed an agreement for an Iron Ore
Terminal on a 30 years BOT basis in September 2006
with the Project Company SICAL Iron Ore Terminal
Limited (SIOTL). The BOT operator had developed
the first phase of 6 MTPA during 2010-11. However,
due to ban on export of Iron Ore, the Terminal was
never put to use. Consequently, modification of
existing Iron Ore Terminal on “as is where is” to also
handle Common User Coal was contemplated. After
obtaining necessary approvals from Government,
KPL initiated action for re-bidding process and Letter
of Intent was issued on 02.06.2016 for the quoted
revenue share of 52.524%. License Agreement was
signed on 11.07.2016 between KPL and SIOTL.

The Zero date for Modification of Iron Ore Terminal
work was declared on 20.07.2018. The modification
work was expected to be completed by July 2019;
however, extension was granted for completion



till May 2020. Due to Covid-19 pandemic, the
Concessionaire has invoked ‘Force Majeure’ clause.
Now, the project is expected to be commissioned
by the last quarter of 2020-21.

Ship Un-loader at Modified Iron Ore Terminal to also handle Coal

(ii) Liquid Terminals

Your Company has initiated action for development
of two additional Liquid Terminals through Captive
and PPP mode to handle POL and LPG etc. of total 6
MTPA capacity as detailed below:

(a) IOCL Captive Jetty

Your Company had signed an agreement on
9.6.2016 with IOCL for construction of Captive
Jetty to handle POL and LPG products at a project
cost of Rs.465 crores. The capacity of the Terminal
is 3 Million Tonnes per annum with provision for
expansion upto 5 Million Tonnes per annum. Due
to delay in obtaining the environmental clearance
and litigation by the existing BOT operator, the
construction of the project is yet to commence.
Environmental clearance was obtained on
30.10.2018 and location of the jetty has now been
finalized. As part of the Concession Agreement
obligations, the Concessionaire has submitted the
Performance Bank Guarantee for Rs.23.25 Cr in
January 2020 and IOCL is in the process of obtaining
the investment approval from its Board. The
construction of Terminal is expected to commence
by 3 quarter of 2020-21 and commissioning is
expected by March 2024,

(b) Marine Liquid Terminal 2

To meet the export/import demand of oil industry,
KPL has initiated action for development of 2
Marine Liquid Terminal consisting of berth and
tankage facilities in DBFOT mode at an investment
of Rs.393 Crores. The capacity of the Terminal is
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3 MTPA. After competitive bidding, KPL issued
Letter of Award (LoA) to Consortium of BPCL-HPCL
on 14.02.2018. Due to litigation by existing BOT
operator of MLT-1, the Concession Agreement is yet
to be signed.

(iii) Container Terminal - Phase 1 (stage 2)

As part of development of Container Terminal,
the Concessionaire M/s. Adani Ports and Special
Economic Zone Ltd., Gujarat has commenced the
construction of second stage terminal for 330m
quay length for a capacity of 0.6 Million TEUs during
January 2020.

Due to COVID-19 Pandemic, Ministry of Shipping
has declared Force Majeure w.e.f. 19.02.2020 till its
revocation by Competent Authority. The timeline
for completion of Phase-2 of Container Terminal
originally expected by September 2021 may thus
get delayed as work has stopped and site has been
demobilized by the Concessionaire.

12.0 INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT

As a Corporate Port, your Company has chosen
to function on “Landlord” model wherein the Port
will provide the basic infrastructure like road &
rail connectivity, dredged basin/channel, marine
services and other common utilities.

For the efficient performance of the port, effective
internal network of road and rail as well as external
connectivity to the National Highway and trunk
railway routes are essential to ensure faster receipt
and evacuation of cargo.

I. Road Connectivity

Your Company had initiated following measures
for development of port internal and external road
connectivity to facilitate incoming and outgoing
port cargoes for timely completion of projects:

(i) Internal Road Connectivity

To avoid congestion in the road traffic and parking
problems of truck drivers inside the port area, your
Company had initiated steps for developing the
internal roads, truck parking bays ata cost of Rs.51.55
Crores. The work was awarded to M/s. P&C Projects
Pvt Ltd and construction work has commenced and
it is expected to be completed by December 2020.



KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

(ii) External Road Connectivity
(a) Southern Port Access Road

Present road connectivity of Kamarajar Port to the
three National Highways (NH5, NH4 & NH45) is
through the Port Access Road, the NCTPS approach
road, Tiruvottiyur — Ponneri — Panchetty (TPP) Road,
the Inner Ring Road (IRR) and the Chennai Bypass
Road. Considering the increasing road traffic
movement of import/export of cargoes, KPL has
undertaken widening of the existing two lane road
starting from Vallur Junction (TPP road) to Kamarajar
Port Main entrance to four lane road. The proposal
comprising 4.8 km length of North ChennaiThermal
Power Station (NCTPS) Road belonging to Tamil
Nadu Generation and Distribution Corporation Ltd
(TANGEDCO) and 2.3 km length of Port Access Road
belonging to Kamarajar Port Limited.

Your Company has entrusted the work of Southern
Port Access Road on a turnkey basis to TNRDC at a
cost of Rs.195 Crores.

TNRDC has awarded the work for 1st Package i.e.
Road improvement from NCTPS junction to KPL
Main Gate (2.3 km) on 12.11.2018 and construction
work is under progress. Expected completion, for
this phase, is by December 2020.

Further, TNRDC has awarded the 2nd Package i.e.
Road improvement from Vallur Junction to NCTPS
junction (4.8 km) on 30.03.2020 and construction
work has commenced on 04.08.2020. Expected
completion for this phase is by June 2022.

(b) Northern Port Access Road

The Northern Port Access Road, which connects
Kamarajar Port to NH5 has a length of 21.148 km
with a 4.35 km SPUR Road to the existing Chennai
ORR. This Northern Port Access Road forms part of
the Chennai Peripheral Ring Road (CPRR). The State
Government has accorded administrative sanction
for Rs.951 Crore vide G.O. (Ms) No.33 Highways and
Minor Ports (HF2) Department dated 19.02.2016 for
Land Acquisition work. GO mandates that 50% of
the land acquisition cost for NPAR should be borne
equally by Kamarajar Port and Kattupalli Port. As
Kattupalli Port expressed its inability to bear its
portion of land acquisition cost, Kamarajar Port
informed the Government of Tamilnadu that in the

situation of Kattupalli Port not sharing the land
acquisition cost, KPL too would like to be treated at
par and hence the entire land acquisition cost could
be borne by the GoTN.

The State Government has accorded administrative
sanction for Rs.2673.42 Crore vide G.O.(Ms) No.37
Highways and Minor Ports (HF2) Department dated
8.3.2016 for the construction of NPAR. JICA (Japan
International Cooperation Agency) is the funding
agency for this project. Land acquisition process is
in progress. The project is being executed by TNRDC.

Northern Port Access Road is expected to play
an important role in evacuating the cargo from
Kamarajar Port in future.

Il. Rail Connectivity

Presently, Kamarajar Port is connected by rail to
the mainline at Attipattu and Attipattu Pudunagar
Stations located in the Chennai — Gudur Section
of the Southern Railway on the Chennai - Delhi/
Kolkata route. KPL developed the railway facilities
connecting the stackyards of the Coal and Iron Ore
Terminals to the existing NCTPS railway line.

(i) Internal Rail Connectivity to Container & Multi
Cargo Terminals

An independent railway line exists for providing rail
connectivity to Container and Multi Cargo Terminals.
This line takes off from the current Railway Siding
leading to NCTPS into KPL premises. Development
of Rail Yard work was completed at a project cost of
Rs.42 Crores and inaugurated on 09.06.2017. Your
Company handled its first Rake of Container rail
on 23.10.2018 at the newly developed dedicated
Railway Siding for Containers inside the Port.
The first consignment consisting of 59 imported
Containers was evacuated from KPL Railway Siding
to ICD Whitefield, Bengaluru.

(ii) External Rail Connectivity
(a) Southern Rail Connectivity

To ease congestion in rail bound traffic, your
Company has entered into agreement with Indian
Port Rail & Ropeway Corporation Limited (IPRRCL)
for enhancement of existing single line rail
connectivity from Holding yard No.1 to Container
Yard at a project cost of Rs.75.00 Crore.



IPRRCL has awarded contract for major and minor
bridge construction and track formation work during
2018. IPRRCL could obtain all necessary clearances
from different agencies like IWAI, MoEF, Railways,
CTE from Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Board only in
March 2020. It has commenced work in May 2020. The
project is expected to be completed by March 2022.

(b) Northern Rail Connectivity

Given the Master Plan regarding capacity
augmentation, futuristic need for rail and road
infrastructureandthe needforadvance planningand
participative action for such critical projects which
otherwise would become difficult to implement
on account of land acquisition issues, KPL has been
pursuing the Northern Rail Link project intending
to connect the Port from Northern side to main line
of Chennai — Gudur Section near Minjur Station.
During the configuration of the Project while KPL
was in discussion with GoTN for land acquisition
for its Northern Rail Link, it has been observed that
KattupalliPorthasalsoapproachedthe GoTNforland
acquisition for their Rail Connectivity from Minjur
broadly along the same schematic alignment as that
of KPL. Government of Tamil Nadu had expressed its
difficulty in land acquisition for the projects of KPL
and Kattupalli Port separately and has suggested to
utilize 30 meters ROW in the existing ROW for the
Northern Port Access Road. The proposal is under
final stage of discussion. IPRCL has been associated
in the Project for preparation of DPR.

lll. Dredging Plan

As per the Concession Agreement entered with SIOTL
on 11.07.2016, KPL has to carry out the associated
Capital Dredging alongside the SIOTL berth upto a
depth of (-) 18m CD, basin (-)18.5m CD, Approach
Channel (-)19m CD and Entrance Channel (-) 20m
CD. Your Company carried out the Capital Dredging
in basin (-)18.5m CD and channel (-)19m/20m
CD during 2014. Due to siltation in the basin and
channel, maintenance dredging is needed. Further,
maintenance dredging for maintaining the dredging
depth near CB1, CB-2, MLT-1 and GCB berth area
and sand trap is required for providing the declared
depth. Accordingly, your Company has initiated the
Dredging Plan Phase IVA i.e Capital and Maintenance
Dredging at Kamarajar Port. Your Company appointed

20" ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

NTCPWC as a Technical Consultant for dredging plan
of phase IV (A). The project cost of Rs.153.50 Crores
has been approved by the Board of your Company.
Ministry of Shipping has accorded approval for
awarding the work to DCl on nhomination basis on
24.12.2019. Pursuant to condition stipulated in MOEF
& CCapproval for SIOTL project, work was awarded to
DCl on 23.06.2020 for the contract value of Rs.121.77
Crores after completion of fish breeding season.The
Dredging work is in progress.

13.0 INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

No man days were lost during the year due to any
strike or stoppage of work. The labour situation at
the port was normal.

14.0 HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT
14.1 Manpower

The manpower details with respect to all employees
as on 31.03.2020 of your Company are given below:

SC ST | OBC | Others | Total

Officers 12 3 29 22 66
Staff 9 1 20 6 36
Total 21 4 49 28 102

14.2 Representation of SCs/STs/ OBCs and Minorities

Orders issued by the Central Government from
time to time on reservation of posts in favour of
the Scheduled Caste, Scheduled Tribes, Other
Backward Classes, and Minorities etc. are followed
meticulously in your organisation.

Liaison Officers for SC/ST and OBC have
been appointed to ensure compliance and
implementation of the reservation orders in the
organization.

14.3 Training Programme

For the year 2019-20, MOU signed with Ministry of
Shipping contains 2 HR Parameter viz.,

(i) Talent Management & career progression by
imparting at least 1 week training to at least 10%
Executives (EO & above) in Centres of Excellence
within India e.g. lITs, lIMs, NITs, ICAI, etc.

(i)  Capability Development Programs for
Executives to build their technical & managerial
competencies for higher positions with
special focus on Web learning programs (No.
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of programs) with 6 Nos. of Executives to be
imparted training and 3 programs for achieving
Excellent grading respectively.

In accordance with the MOU target, 16 Executives of
KPL attended training in Centre of Excellence like JNPT-
APEGC, IIT Mumbai, ASCI, CWPRS Pune, AMET University
and Coast Guard and 3 Executives have enrolled for
web learning programs through SAP India. With this
nomination, Excellent Grading w.r.t. training has been
achieved in MOU for the year 2019-20.

Some of the training programmes attended by the
employees during the year are Dredging Management,
Efficient Design of Ports, Terminals, Waterways and
Coastal Structures, Strategic Management, IMO Level
1 & 2, Mathematical Modelling, Marine Services, RTI,
Cyber Security, EPF, Hindi Workshops, etc.

During the year 277 man days of training was
imparted to its employees with an expenditure of
Rs.14.67 lakhs (approx.)

14.4 Grievance Redressal Mechanism

Your Company has in place a grievance redressal
procedure for Executives as well as non-executive
employees. There was NIL grievance received for the
year under review.

15.0 HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

Your Port is committed to providing a safe and
healthy work environment for its users, contractors
& employees. Health, Safety and Environment is
priority and is not being compromised at any cost.

Your Port meets the requirements of all applicable
legislation and regulations with respect to matters
of occupational health and safety in the workplace
and requires the same from any contractor it
engages. Further, your Port believes that health and
safety in the workplace is a shared responsibility
and workers are expected to exercise and promote
good safety practices.

15.1 Health

As a welfare measure, periodical health check-
ups were provided to employees and their family
members. Port organized a medical camp on
03.03.2020 in which 160 people comprising of
KPL Employees, BOT Operators and SHG Women
participated. Your Company is running Occupational

Health Centre equipped with trained paramedical
staff and ambulance service round the clock (24 x
7) basis to provide the first aid during emergency
to the employees of the Company and other BOT
Operators and port users.

15.2 Safety

Your Port gives utmost importance to Safety in its
work places. To sensitize employees, stakeholders
and port users to improve the health and safety
performance in your Port, National Safety Week was
celebrated during first week of March 2020 in your
Company.

Your Port has a safety committee and quarterly
safety committee meetings are being conducted
regularly in association with Inspectorate of Dock
Safety along with BOT Operators and Stevedores.

Training programmes on Fire fighting for port users
(14 nos.), mock drills at berths and port users (14
nos.), mutual aid drills with neighbouring industries
namely IPPL & IOCL (02 nos.) and medical camps at
Occupational Health Centre (02 nos.) were conducted.
Port has also conducted an awareness programme
on Coronavirus in association with Port Health
Organisation (under Ministry of Health and Family
Welfare), Chennai.

During the last five years no fatal accidents occurred
in your Port.

Your Port ensures that the employees follow an
accurate reporting system and comply with all the
statutory requirements. The built in safety gadgets
are regularly inspected and certified. Strict vigil is
maintained for ensuring the use of proper PPE during
the work. Port is having a Disaster/Crisis Management
Plan comprising of all mitigation measures.

15.3 Environment

Your Company endeavors to remain as eco-
friendly port serving the various needs of the
maritime industry. Port is regularly monitoring the
environment. Port has engaged M/s. Hubert Enviro
Care Systems (P) Ltd, a NABL accredited/MoEF & CC
recognised laboratory for sampling and testing of
various environmental parameters like ambient air,
marine water quality, sediment and noise. Various
BOT operators inside the Port are also monitoring



the environment. The environmental quality reports
are forwarded to State Pollution Control Board.

Port has formulated “Waste Oil, Sewage & Other
Wastes Reception Facilities Policy 2019” for the
disposal of ship generated waste oil, sewage and
other wastes through approved recyclers.

Your Port conducted a coastal cleanup day on
21.09.2019 in which employees of KPL, CISF
personnel and BOT Operators actively participated.

15.4 Solid Waste Management

Your port has appointed a contractor for the
collection, segregation and disposal of solid waste
generated from the ships and inside port. The
segregated wastes are sent to Pollution Control
Board approved re-cyclers for further beneficial use.

16.0 DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT
OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 AND
WOMEN EMPOWERMENT

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment
at workplace and complies with the provisions of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and
the Rules there under for prevention and redressal of
complaints of sexual harassment at workplace.

As per provisions of Section 4 of “The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, an Internal
Committee has been constituted in your Company
for dealing with the complaints on sexual
harassment of women at workplace. No case of any
harassment has been reported at any time in your
Company and specifically no complaints of sexual
harassments were received during the year 2019-20.

There are a total of 17 women employees, which
is approximately 17 % of its total workforce of
102 as on 31.03.2020. International Women’s Day
was celebrated on 6™ March 2020 with the active
participation of women employees in various
Games and Programmes to mark the day.

17.0 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY &
SUSTAINABILITY

It has been your Company’s conscious and continuous
endeavorto contribute to the community development
and services. Towards its commitment to the society,
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during the year under review, your Company has
undertaken projects in line with adopted CSR Policy
and requirement of the Companies Act, 2013. CSR
budget outlay for this financial year is Rs.8.31 Crores
and the unspent CSR funds carried over from the
previous financial year is Rs.12.73 Crores. Hence, the
total cumulative outlay available for this financial year
2019-20is Rs.21.04 Crores. Out of this outlay, Rs.8.11
Crores has been spent towards various CSR activities
viz., Construction of School Buildings, Construction
of Public Library Building, Construction of New Block
of Siddha Section in Govt. Primary Health Centre,
Construction of Anganwadi Centres, promoting
ecological conservation activities, etc.

Shri Sunil Paliwal I.A.S., CMD, KPL inaugurated the 12 classrooms
constructed under the CSR Initiative at Nutakki, Guntur District,
Andhra Pradesh.

The details of CSR and Sustainability Development
initiatives taken by your Company are enclosed as
Annexure-l & A and forms part of the Board’s Report.

17.1 Additional Disclosure CSR initiatives of
District Collector, Tiruvallur for the year
2016-17

Rs.4.60 Crores was contributed to the District
Collector, Tiruvallur for 28 CSR initiatives disclosed
in the Annual Report 2016-17 for implementation
by District Administration of Tiruvallur. Out of 28
initiatives the District Collector, Tiruvallur reported
that 10 Nos. of activities/proposals were taken up
for execution at a cost of Rs.1,44,95,000/- Out of 10
Nos. of CSR activities, 8 works have been completed
and balance works are in progress and the same will
be completed tentatively by 30.11.2020 (Annexure
IB). In lieu of the balance 18 activities (disclosed in
the Annual Report 2016-17 and not undertaken for
administrative reasons), District Collector, Tiruvallur
had made request for 31 Nos. of activities/proposals
at a cost of Rs.315.15 Lakhs due to the urgent
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local needs and the fact that some of the works
were already taken up. The list of 31 Nos. of CSR
activities is given in Annexure- IC. Out of 31 Nos. of
CSR activities, 29 works have been completed and
balance works are in progress and the same will be
completed tentatively by 30.11.2020.

18.0 RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Your Company, for its future growth and to improve
and expand its operations, upgraded the Kamarajar
Port Physical Model by installing new equipment
for wave generation (RSWG) and Data Acquisition
System at CWPRS, Pune. Further, your Company
is the shareholder for Setting up of National
Technology Centre for Ports, Waterways and Coasts
(NTCPWC) at Indian Institute of Technology Madras
at Chennai.

Your Company assigned the technical study to
NTCPWC for conducting 3D Full Bridge Real-time
Ship Navigation Simulation Study for verifying
berth Maneuvering concerns at the upcoming I0CL
Captive Jetty. NTCPWC conducted the study during
January 2020 in the presence of our Company
Pilots and confirmed that the present location is
safe for berth Maneuvering. The Centre will be
host to several technological arms to support the
Port and Inland Waterways sector and will provide
solutions to a variety of problems being faced in
the industry through scientific research. It will also
carry out valuable education, applied research and
technology transfer in maritime transportation at
the local, regional, national and international levels.

19.0 PUBLIC PROCUREMENT POLICY

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises has notified the Public Procurement
Policy and in terms of the said notification, 89.58%
of annual value of goods or services are procured
from Micro and Small Enterprises as against 20%
mandated in the policy. Details of the procurement
from MSE's owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs/women
entrepreneurs etc. are given below:

Percentage target for procurement as mandated in
the policy.

Sl. . Target
No. Particulars (%)
1 |% of procurement from MSE's| 25
(including MSE's owned by SC/
ST entrepreneurs) out of total

procurement.

2 % of procurement from only MSE's 4
owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs out of
total procurement.

3 [ % of procurement from only MSE's 3
owned by Women entrepreneurs out
of total procurement

Details of procurement as per plan vis a vis Actuals:

s PLAN ACTUAL
Nc; Particulars Rs. in - Rs. in .
Cr. Cr.

1 Total Annual 83 7373
Procurement
Total value of goods
and services procured

2 |from MSE's (including| 2.075| 25 | 6.605 |89.58
MSE's owned by SC/
ST entrepreneurs)
Total value of goods
and services procured

3 |[from only MSE's|0.332| 4 | 1.419 [19.25
owned by SC/ST
entrepreneurs

Total value of goods
and services procured
4 |from only MSE's|0.249| 3
owned by Women
entrepreneurs

0.0574] 0.78

20.0 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management Policy adopted by the Company
provides a framework to identify, assess and manage
potential risks and opportunities. It provides a way for
managers to make informed management decisions.

Some of the objectives of a Risk Management
Framework are given below:

» A focused approach in identifying the obstacles
& managing them will help the Organizations to
perform better.

» Introduce a structured risk management
initiative across the Organization to identify
potential risks that may adversely affect the



objectives of the Organization, plan for their
mitigation with specific responsibility.

A\

Implement such a plan with targeted date and
review periodically.

Improve strategic decision making;
Improve business performance;
Reduce operational surprises and losses;

YV V VYV V

Promote a more innovate and less risk averse
culture;

A\

Improve deployment of capital;

A\

Provide a sound basis for integrated risk
management and internal control as
components of good corporate governance;

» Seizing opportunities.

The risks are identified; evaluated and mitigating
plans are reviewed and monitored from time to time.

21.0 WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

With the object of conducting the affairs of its
constituents in a fair and transparent manner
the Company has put in place a “Whistle Blower
Policy” for employees to report to the management
instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct
or ethics policy by adopting highest standards
of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical
behavior. Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism
has been hosted on the website of your Company.
Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao, Independent Director is the
Ombudsperson. No complaints have been received
under the Policy during the year.

22.0 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Terms and Conditions of Remuneration
were determined by the Government of India
as your Company was a Government Company
till 27.3.2020. Subsequent to disinvestment of
entire Shareholding held by Government of India
to Chennai Port Trust, the Company ceased to
be Government Company and is a Subsidiary of
Chennai Port Trust, an autonomous body under
Ministry of Shipping, Government of India. All the
KMP’s and employees continue to be governed by
DPE pay structure. Other details are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of
Board’s Report.
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23.0 RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

Your Company has implemented the Right to
Information Act, 2005 by providing information
to the citizens of India and is also maintaining
accountability and transparency in working.

The information required to be provided as per
Section 4(1)(b) of the Right to Information Act, 2005
has been posted on the website of the Company
www.kamarajarport.in. During the year, Institute of
Secretariat Training & Management, Department of
Personnel & Training, New Delhi has submitted an
audit report on proactive disclosure under Right
to Information Act, 2005 and the Audit Report is
uploaded inyour Company’s website. Your Company
has designated a Public Information Officer, and an
Appellate Authority to look after the compliances of
RTI Act, 2005. The details of designated officers are
available in the Company’s website.

During the year, 50 applications were received and
attended to under the Act. Three appeals were
received and the same were disposed off within the
stipulated time.

24.0 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Your Company has always been at the forefront in
technology adoption for better business process
management and providing value to the business.
Your Company has undertaken many IT initiatives to
carry out all business processes and service delivery
through IT systems and I[T-enabled services and
realize the digital transformation propounded by the
Government of India. Your Company maintained 99
percent uptime of SAP operations during this year.

During 2019-20 some of the IT systems implemented
and initiatives taken by your Company are:

e Engaged M/s PricewaterhouseCoopers
(PWC) for SAP System Audit and Consulting
for Implementation of Information Security
Management Systems (ISMS) including IT Security
Audit towards achieving IT/Cyber Security audit
compliance and achieving ISO 27001:2013
standards. M/s Pricewaterhouse Coopers (PWC)
has submitted a Risk Assessment report along
with policy documents. Risk Mitigation strategy
preparation is in the final stage based on Risk
Assessment. Presently, the second phase of Audit
is in progress. The entire activity including ISMS
Roll-out is expected to be completed by first
quarter of 2021-22. On successful completion,
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action will be initiated towards external audit and
process of obtaining the ISO-27001 Certification.

e Initiated action for establishing a new Modular
data centre infrastructure complying with 1SO
27001:2013 standards. Technical requirement
specification and budgetary estimates have
been arrived at. The supply and commissioning
is planned for the fourth quarter of 2020-21.

e Obtained a Technical & Budgetary sanction to
develop a New Port Operation System (POS)
and Real Estate Module on SAP ERP System to
replace the legacy POMS and LMS system. Slated
forimplementation in the next fiscal, this will cover
the entire Port Operations, including vessels, cargo,
port crafts, etc and seamlessly merge these in a
single IT system.

25.0 IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE

Your Company has made focused efforts for the
propagation and implementation of the official
language policy of the Government of India.

e  Official Language Implementation Committee
headed by CMD met every quarter for effective
implementation of Raj Bhasha.

e  Allthe Rules/Regulations/Manuals/Forms done
in bilingual.

e All the rubber stamps, sign boards, seals,
letterheads, Name plates, official description on
vehicles, visiting cards, etc. done in bi-lingual.

e  Resolutions are done in bi-lingual.

o  KPL celebrated Hindi Fortnight commencing from
03.09.2019 to 13.09.2019 along with Chennai Port
Trust. Various competitions were conducted during
the fortnight, wherein KPL employees took active
part in the competitions. CMD, KPL distributed
prizes to the winners of the competitions on the
H|nd| Day Celebration held on 13.09.2019.
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Hindi Day Celebrations

e In order to boost the morale and for effective
implementation of Raj Bhasha, CS & BD
department and CS department which made
more contribution bagged the award with a
shield on the Hindi Fortnight Celebrations.

Corporate Strategy & Business Development (CS&BD) Department
receiving the Award

CS & Legal Department receiving the Award

e  Hindiworkshops were conducted every quarter
to give wide publicity on progressive use of Hindi.
An article was published on the Hindi Workshop
held on 26.11.2019 in Daily Hindi Milap magazine.

e  Rajbhashawing of Ministry of Shipping inspected
KPL w.r.t.implementation of Hindi on 24.10.2019.

e  Employees were incentivized on successful
completion of Prabodh, Praveen and Pragya
Exams held during May 2019/Nov 2019.

e Important milestone has been achieved in KPL
as 15 employees of KPL have gained working
knowledge in Hindi and have been entrusted with
the task of implementing the Official Language
in their departments.

26.0 CHANGES IN DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONS

During the year under review,

e Pursuant to Office Order No. 32/2019 issued
by Ministry of Shipping Vide Letter No. PD-
27/12/2017-PD-I/PE-l dated 19™ August 2019,



Shri Sunil Paliwal, LLA.S. was appointed as
Chairman-cum-Managing Director in Kamarajar
Port Limited for a period of five years from the
date of assumption of charge of the post, or until
further orders, whichever is earlier. Consequently,
Shri P. Raveendran, IRTS, Chairman-cum-
Managing Director (I/C) handed over the charge
and Shri Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S., assumed the charge
as Chairman-cum-Managing Director of your
Company on 16.09.2019.

e Pursuant to Ministry of Shipping Letter No. PD-
27/12/2017-PD-l dated 06" November 2019,
Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao was appointed as Non-
Official Independent Director on the Board of
Kamarajar Port Limited for a period of 3 years
w.e.f. the date of notification of his appointment
or until further orders, whichever is earlier.
Consequently, the Board in its meeting held
on 13" November 2019 has taken note of
appointment of Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao, as Non-
Official Independent Director of KPL w.ef.
11.11.2019.

e Smt.L.Victoria Gowri ceased to be a Non-Official
Independent Director in the Board of KPL w.e.f.
31.01.2020 consequent to expiry of tenure.

e (Consequent to the Strategic Sale of entire
shareholding held by Government of India in
Kamarajar Port Limited, to Chennai Port Trust,
Shri H. N Aswath, Nominee of the Government
of India resigned w.e.f 27.3.2020 and in his place
Shri Cyril C George, Nominee of Chennai Port
Trust was inducted in the Board of Kamarajar
Port Limited w.e.f 27.03.2020.

e Pursuant to Chennai Port Trust Letter No. ChPT/
KPL CELL/2020/F dated 28.08.2020, Shri S. Balaji
Arunkumar, Deputy Chairman, ChPT was
appointed as Nominee Director of Chennai Port
Trust w.e.f. 04.09.2020 on the Board of Kamarajar
Port Limited in place of Shri Cyril C George.

27.0 NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board met 7 times during the Financial Year,
the details of which are given in the Corporate
Governance Report that forms part of this Annual
Report. The intervening gap between any two
meetings was within the period of 120 days as
prescribed by the Companies’ Act, 2013.
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28.0 DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Your Company has received necessary Declaration
from each of the Independent Directors of the
Company during the year 2019-20 conforming that
they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed
under 149 (6) of Companies Act 2013, the SEBI
(listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations 2015 and DPE guidelines.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Director
appointed during the year possess the requisite
integrity, expertise and experience required to
discharge the duties as Independent Director.

The Independent Director appointed during the
year has taken and successfully qualified the online
proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the
Institute notified under sub-section (1) of section
150 of the Companies Act, 2013.

29.0 COMMITTEES

Detailed note on committees including CSR, Audit
Committee and Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is provided in Corporate Governance
Report which forms part of Annual Report.

30.0 VIGILANCE

The Vigilance Division in Kamarajar Port Limited
is headed by Shri PRavindra Babu, IRSME, Chief
Vigilance Officer, Chennai Port Trust, who is holding
additional charge of CVO, KPL from 20.09.2018. He s
assisted by a Manager from Operations Department.

The Vigilance Division scrutinizes the documents
with respect to the work contract executed by the
departments. Procedural lapses, deviations from
tendering norms and shortcomings in contract
works are pointed outto the concerned departments
for corrective actions. The recovery of money is also
advised in fitting cases.

The CVC guidelines/notifications are circulated to
the departments. The Annual Immovable Property
Returns submitted by the officers of KPL are
scrutinized by the Vigilance Division. Clarifications
are sought for the abnormalities, if any, from the
concerned officers. The Audit reports are studied at
Vigilance Division and departments are advised to
take necessary corrective action, wherever required.

30.1 Vigilance Awareness Week, 2019

As per Central Vigilance Commission’s direction,
Kamarajar Port Limited observed Vigilance
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Awareness Week from 28.10.2019 to 02.11.2019 in
the theme of “Integrity - A way of life” Essay and
Slogan writing competitions were held with the
active participation from KPL staff. Lectures were
organized on vigilance related topics to create more
awareness on Vigilance.

The Chief Guest, Shri M.N. Manjunatha, I.PS. Addl.
DGP/Chairman-cum-Managing Director of Tamil
Nadu Police Housing Corporation and a recipient of
President’s Police Medal for Meritorious Services in
2008 and for Distinguished Services in 2018 gave an
elaborate lecture on the topic.

Observance of Vigilance Awareness Week — 2019
30.2 Adoption of Integrity Pact

The Central Vigilance Commission has been promoting
integrity, transparency, equity and competitiveness in
Government/PSU transactions as a part of vigilance
administration and superintendence. Public procurement
is a major area of concern for the Central Vigilance
Commission and various steps have been taken to
put proper systems in place. The Commission has
recommended adoption of Integrity Pact and provided
basic guidelines for its implementation in respect of
major procurements in the Government Organizations.
Further the Commission has recommended for the
appointment of Independent External Monitors (IEMs)
for the implementation of Integrity Pact and also
advised the organisations to fix a threshold value for the
contracts/procurement which are to be brought under
the Integrity Pact. The Pact envisages an agreement
between the prospective vendors/bidders and the
Employer/Principal committing the persons/officials
of both parties, not to exercise any corrupt influence
on any aspect of the contract.

The KPL Board had approved the Vigilance
department’s proposal of Integrity Pact in the Board

meeting held on 21.02.2015. The threshold value
for contracts/ procurement to be covered under
Integrity Pact has been fixed as Rs.1 Crore and
above. The CVC had appointed the following two
retired officers as Independent External Monitors
(IEMs) for implementing the Integrity Pact in KPL.

1) Shri.V.Kannan, Former CMD, Vijaya Bank.

2) Shri.R.Kuppan, IRSME(1980 batch)
Former Principal Chief Mechanical Engineer.

Integrity Pact covers all phases of the contract i.e
from the stage of Notice Inviting Tender (NIT) till the
conclusion of the contract. All the Departments were
advised to incorporate Integrity Pact clause in the
tender documents for works/procurements having
value more than the threshold value of Rs.1 Crore.

Integrity Pact has already been implemented in the
PPP projects and other contract works in Kamarajar
Port Limited as advised by the Ministry of Shipping.
The IEMs reviewed the implementation of Integrity
Pact in respect of all works having a threshold value
of Rs.1 crore in KPL on 24.09.2019.

31.0 NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME
OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT
VENTURES ORASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING
THE YEAR

During the year no Company has become or ceased
to be its Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate
Company of KPL.

32.0 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Your Directors state that:-

(@) in the preparation of the annual accounts,
the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit
of the Company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the



provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) thedirectors had prepared the annual accounts
on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are
adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

33.0 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As your Company was a Government Company
till 27.3.2020, the provisions of Section 197(12)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Rules
were not applicable till then in view of the Gazette
Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 05.06.15 issued by
Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

34.0 AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India, New Delhi has appointed
M/s. B.Thiyagarajan & Co., Chartered Accountants as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for auditing the
books of accounts of the Company for the period
ended 31 March 2020.

34.1 Statutory Auditors’ Report

The Statutory Auditor of the Company, M/s.
B. Thiyagaran & Co., Chartered Accountants, have
given an unqualified report on the accounts
of the Company for the financial year 2019-20.
The Emphasis of matters and Notes on financial
statement referred to in the Auditor’s Report are
self-explanatory and do not call for any further
comments.

34.2 Review Of Accounts By Comptroller And
Auditor General Of India

Under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act,
2013, the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
reported that “nothing significant has come to my
knowledge which would give rise to any comment
upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report”.
A copy of the report of C&AG is annexed herewith.
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35.0 SECRETARIAL AUDIT

M/s. S Dhanapal & Associates, practicing Company
Secretaries was appointed to conduct Secretarial
Audit of your Company for the Financial Year 2019-
20 as required under Section 204 of the Companies’
Act, 2013 and rules there under.

The Secretarial Auditors have reported that during the
period under review, your Company has complied in
accordance with the requirements to be met with the
applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc to a required extent except
appointment of Independent directors and all related
Compliances. The Secretarial Auditor’s Report for the
financial year 2019-20 forms part of this Boards'Report
as Annexure - Il.

35.1 Reply to the comments of Secretarial Auditor

Asyour Company was a public sector undertakingtill
27™ March 2020, the appointment of Directors was
to be made by Govt. of India and your Company had
been regularly following up with the Ministry in this
regard. Subsequent to your Company becoming a
subsidiary of Chennai Port Trust, your Company
has taken up the matter with Chennai Port Trust for
appointment of remaining Independent Directors
on the Board. Once the remaining Independent
Directors are appointed, all related requirements
will be complied with.

36.0 SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED
BY REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant and material orders passed
by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and Company'’s operations
in future.

37.0 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of Notification No. G.S.R. 538(E) dated 28
August 2020, the copy of the Annual Return for the
year 2018-19 is available at www.kamarajarport.in/
upload/uploadfiles/files/MGT-7%200f%2018-19%20
and%20Extract%20for%202019%20final. pdf. The Extract
of Annual Return for the year 2019-20 is also available
in the same weblink.

38.0 DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

Your Company had appointed M/s. SBICAP Trustees
Company Ltd. and M/s. Catalyst Trusteeship Ltd. (formerly
known as GDA Trusteeship Ltd.) as Debenture Trustees
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for Tax Free bonds issued during the Financial Years
2012-13 and 2013-14 respectively. The contact details
of the Debenture Trustees are detailed below:-

Debenture Trustees
SBICAP Trustee Catalyst Trusteeship
Company Ltd., Limited,

Mistry Bhavan, 4™ Floor, GDA House, Plot No.85,
122, Dinshaw Vachha Road, | Bhusari Colony (Right),
Churchgate, Mumbai - 400 020 | Paud Road, Pune - 411 038.
Phone : 022-4302 5555 Ph: 020 - 25280081
Fax:022-4302 5500 Fax:020-25280275

39.0 REPORT ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(m)
of the Companies Act, 2013 information regarding
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign
Exchange earnings and outgo is given at Annexure
- Il to this report.

40.0 REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As per the guidelines of Government of India, Department
of Public Enterprises, a report on Corporate Governance
& Certificate on Corporate Governance for the year
ended 315 March 2020 is enclosed as Annexure - IV
to this report.

40.1 Secretarial Standards

Your Company is in compliance with the revised
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board
of Directors (5S-1) and Secretarial Standards on General

Place : Chennai
Date :09.09.2020

Meetings (SS-2) with effect from 1st October 2017.
40.2 Cost Records

The Central Government has not prescribed the

maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)

of the Companies Act, 2013 for the Company.

41.0 REPORT ON MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

A report on Management Discussion and Analysis is
enclosed at Annexure -V.

42.0 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to place on record their
gratitude for the support and guidance received
from the Ministry of Shipping, Government of
India and Chennai Port Trust and appreciates the
co-operation received from TANGEDCO/TNEB,
TNPCB, GoTN and Gol, particularly the Ministry
of Environment & Forests, Department of Public
Enterprises, Indian Port Association, Ministry of
Finance and Indian Railways/Southern Railways.

Your Directors gratefully acknowledge the
continued support and cooperation received
from the Comptroller & Auditor General of India,
Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and Secretarial
Auditor. Your Directors thank the Port Users, BOT
Concessionaires, Contractors and Bankers for their
continued support and assistance. Your Directors
wish to place on record their appreciation of the
continued excellent work done by all the employees
of the Company during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-
Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S.,
Chairman cum Managing Director
(DIN:01310101)
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ANNEXURE-I

CSR ACTIVITIES OF KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED FORTHE YEAR 2019-20

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy,
including overview of projects or Programmes
proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects
or Programmes.

Some of the Strategies & Thrust areas as outlined in the
Policy are:

» KPL shall consistently strive to meet the expectations
of the society by supporting initiatives for improving
infrastructure/quality of life of society/community
without compromising on ecological issues on
sustainable basis consistent with the CSR provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, Schedule VII of the Act,
CSR rules, the Guidelines issued by DPE and the policy
directions issued by the Government from time to time.

KPL as a socially responsible corporate port would like
to endeavor to -

e Promote and leverage green technologies to
produce goods and services that contribute to
social and environmental sustainability

o TakeupCSRprojectsby priority totheissueswhich
are in the National Development Agenda like safe
drinking water, provision of Toilets especially for
girls, health and sanitation and education, etc,,
with the main focus to address the basic needs
of the deprived, under privileged and weaker
sections of the society which consists of SC, ST,
OBCs, minorities, BPL families, old and aged,
woman/girl child and physically challenged, etc.

The CSR policy may be accessed on the Company’s website
at http/www.kamarajarport.in/content/innerpage/
corporate-social-responsibility-csr.php

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee as on | Shri. Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S, — Chairman
31.03.2020 Shri P. Raveendran, IRTS - Member
Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao, FCA, DISA(ICAI) - Member
3. Average Net profit of the Company for last|Rs.415.84 Cr
three financial years (PBT) (480.09+423.58+343.85) /3
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure Rs. 8.31 Crs

(2% of the average Net profit)

5. Details of CSR spent for the financial year:

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year

(b) Amount unspent, if any:

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during
the financial year is detailed below:

Rs.21.04 Crs (Rs.12.73*Crs+Rs.8.31Crs = Rs.21.04Crs)
* Unspent amount carried forward from the Previous year.

Rs.12.93 Crs (Rs.21.04Crs-Rs.8.11 Crs)

Rs.8.11 Crs
Manner in which the amount spent is annexed as Annexure 1A
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ANNEXURE-II

Suite No. 103, First Floor, Kaveri Complex

No. 96/104, Nungambakkam High Road

(Next to NABARD & ICICI Bank), Nungambakkam, Chennai - 600 034
Phone No. 044 - 4553 0256, 4553 0257/4265 2127

E-mail: csdhanapal@gmail.com, website: www.csdhanapal.com

S Dhanapal & Associates

Practising Company Secretaries

Partners

S. Dhanapal, B.Com., B.AB.L, F.CS

N. Ramanathan, B.Com., FC.S

Smita Chirimar, M.Com., F.C.S, DCG(ICSI)
R. Pratheepa, B.C.S., A.C.S

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,
Kamarajar Port Limited
(erstwhile Ennore Port Limited)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by
M/s. KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED (erstwhile Ennore
Port Limited), (hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted based on records
made available to us, in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion/understanding thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and
made available to us and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we, on strength of those records,
and information so provided, hereby report that
in our opinion and understandings, the Company,
during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31, 2020, appears to have complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also in our limited review, the Company has proper
and required Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minutes'
book, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and made available to
us, for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020
according to the applicable provisions of :

I.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder and the Companies Act, 1956
and the rules made thereunder as applicable;

[Il. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

lIl. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings to the applicable extent.

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and exchange
Board of India Act, 1992('SEBI ACT’);

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;
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d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with client;

g) TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

i)  The Company has identified and informed the
following laws as being specifically applicable
to the Company:

1. Indian Ports Act, 1908

2. International Convention for Safety of Life
at Sea, 1974

The Inland Vessels Act, 1917 (1 of 1917)
The Merchant Shipping Act, 1958 (44 of 1958)

Coastal Regulation Zone Notification, 2011

AR AN

Guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE) vide reference No. 18 (8)/2005-
GM dated May 14, 2010, namely Guidelines
on Corporate Governance for Central Public
Sector Enterprises (“DPE Guidelines”)

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India with respect
to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and
General Meetings (SS-2).

ii. The Listing Agreement entered into by the
Company with BSE Limited by the Company with
BSE Limited and The Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has
complied in accordance with the requirements to be
met with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned
above to a required extent except appointment of
independent directors & all related compliances.

It is reported by the Company that they have a
risk management plan as required under the DPE
Guidelines but the Board is to periodically review
and take remedial action to implement the risk
management plan as a separate agenda and
further that the Company has ceased to be covered
under the DPE Guidelines w.e.f. FY 2020-21 due to
disinvestment of Central Government’s stake in the
Company.

Itis represented to us that the Company has initiated
measures, wherever required, to address issues raised
by the statutory authorities and letters/notices
received by the Company during the financial year
under various enactments as applicable to the
Company.

We further report that, subject to the above lapses,

the related documents that we have come across
depict that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is
constituted as applicable with Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors and the changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule
the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the
dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that based on our limited review
of the compliance mechanism established by the
Company, there appear adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the
Company sought the approval of its members for
the following matters other than ordinary business
at the Annual General Meeting:



e Appointment of H N Aswath (DIN 7754393) as
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

We further report that our Audit was subjected only
to verifying adequacy of systems and procedures

Place : Chennai
Date :19.08.2020
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that are in place for ensuring proper compliance
by the Company and we are not responsible for
any lapses in those compliances on the part of the
Company.

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES
(A firm of Practicing Company Secretaries)

Sd/-
N. RAMANATHAN
(Partner)
FCS 6665 CP No. 11084
UDIN: FO06665B000594274

This Report is to be read with our testimony of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral

part of this report.

ANNEXURE - A

S Dhanapal & Associates

Practising Company Secretaries

To

The Members,

Kamarajar Port Limited
(erstwhile Ennore Port Limited),

Chennai

Management's Responsibility

a. maintenance of secretarial record is the
responsibility of the Management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on
our audit.

Auditor's Responsibility
b. Our responsibility was to express an opinion
on the secretarial records, standards and

procedures followed by the Company with
respect to secretarial compliances.

Place: Chennai
Date: 19.08.2020

¢. Webelieve that audit evidence and information
obtained from Company's management is
adequate and appropriate for us to provide a
basis for our opinion.

d. Where ever required, we have obtained
Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happenings of events and policies, appraisal
and processes etc.

Disclaimer

e. The Secretarial Audit is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES
(A firm of Practicing Company Secretaries)

Sd/-

N. RAMANATHAN
(Partner)
FCS 6665 CP No. 11084
UDIN: FO06665B000594274
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ANNEXURE -1l

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULE, 2014

A) Conservation of Energy :

(i) Steps taken or impact on Conservation of
Energy:

(@) To ensure effective utilization of electrical
energy, Energy Audit was conducted by M/s.
Greenserve Energy during February 2020 and
provided detailed presentation of the report
and data collected to KPL management. The
following energy conservation measures were
recommended by the auditor.

1. Arresting of Air conditioner duct leakages inside
false ceiling in both 2"* and 3" floor of Jawahar
Building at Trade Facilitation Center.

2. Installing of occupancy sensor in toilet
and board rooms and motion sensor in the
corridor outside the Chairman’s chamber and
other walkways to improve the operational
effectiveness of lighting.

3. Installation of additional 40KW new solar
power plant in Signal Station and renovation of
existing storage system.

4. Installing new substation near signal station
which will help in reduction of distribution losses.

The above said recommendations will be

implemented in phased manner after obtaining

approval from the competent authority.

(b) Impacts:

» Energy Efficient.

» Environment friendly.

» Reduce distribution losses and conserve energy

» About 10,980 units (KWh) power consumption

was saved compared to previous year i.e
2018-19.

(ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing
alternate sources of energy:

YourCompany is exploring possibilities for settingup
of Solar Power Plant in the Premises. In addition, to
conserve energy and to reduce power requirement
wherever possible, consolidation is practiced as per
the requirement.

(iii) Capital Investment on energy conservation
equipments:
Nil.

B) Technology Absorption:

i) SAP ERP System

KPL has successfully implemented SAP S/4 HANA
1610 ERP system covering various functional areas
like, Budget, Accounts & Finance, HR & Payroll,
Material Management, Project Systems, etc.

e The SAP S/4 HANA 1610 ERP System at KPL has
been declared completely deployed in May 2018.
The SAP ERP System covers all business functions of
Finance & Accounts, HR & Payroll, Project Systems
and Material Management and File Lifecycle
Management (FLM) and all transactions are being
carried out in SAP.

e Employees’ Requests/claims and Loans are
also being made through the SAP-ESS portal.
Employees Annual Performance Appraisal is also
being carried out through the SAP-ESS Portal.

e Post deployment enhancements have also
been implemented for SMS alerts, e-mail alerts,
automatic data transfer from legacy systems
such as POMS, LMS.

e Business Intelligence/Business Objects (BI/BO)
has been implemented providing graphical
presentation/dashboards for port statistics.

e Plans are being drawn to develop the entire
Port Operating System in SAP itself which will
enhance the overall IT utilization and take
KPL forward in terms of increasing the overall
productivity, enhance the customer services,
service level commitments, utilization of
resources in optimal level, etc.

ii) Benefits

Business processes and functionalities of HR/
Payroll, Finance & Accounting, Purchase & Contracts
and Project Systems (WBS), Employee Requests/
Claim and Loan processes are made online through
Employee Self Service (ESS) Portal. These had
resulted in increased transactional efficiency and
productivity leading to cost reduction.



iiii)

a)

b)

c)

In case of imported technology (imported
during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year
The details of technology imported:

Not applicable

The year of import:

Not applicable

Whether the technology been fully absorbed:
Not applicable

Place: Chennai
Date : 09.09.2020
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d) Ifnotfullyabsorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reason thereof:
Not applicable

iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and
Development:
NIL

C) Foreign Exchange Earnings & outgo:

Foreign Exchange Earnings is Nil and Foreign
Exchange outflow is Rs.103.84 Crores towards debt
services of Foreign Currency Loan.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-
Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S.,
Chairman cum Managing Director
(DIN:01310101)
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ANNEXURE - IV

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.0 BRIEFSTATEMENTONCOMPANY’SPHILOSOPHY
ON THE CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance refers to rules, practices &
processes used to direct and manage Company.
Good Corporate Governance is a set of fiduciary and
managerial responsibilities that binds a Company’s
management, shareholders, and the board within a
larger societal context defined by legal, regulatory,
competitive, economic, ethical, and other societal
forces. Your Company gives high priority to core
principles of Corporate Governance and believes that
its primary goal is to protect investors; maintain fair,
orderly, and efficient operating environment in the
Organisation. To this end the Company follows the
guidelines and standards set for the Board of Directors,
financial and non-financial disclosures thereby adding
ethical values in all its operations and actions which
safeguards interest of all stakeholders.

2.0 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.1 Composition and category of the Board of
Directors as on 31.03.2020

Executive Director
Shri Sunil Paliwal, Chairman-cum-Managing Director
Nominee Directors

Shri P. Raveendran, Nominee Director of Chennai
Port Trust (ChPT)

Shri Cyril C George, Nominee Director of Chennai
Port Trust (ChPT)

Non- official Part time (Independent) Directors
Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao

During the year and till the signing of Boards’'Report,
the following changes took place in the Board:

a) ShriA.K.Saran ceased to be a Nominee Director
of Government of India w.e.f. 15.05.2019 and in
his place Shri H. N. Aswath was appointed as
Nominee Director of Government of India w.e.f.
15.05.2019. Subsequently, pursuant to the sale
of entire Shares held by Gol in KPL to ChPT, he
resigned as Government Nominee Director w.e.f.
27.03.2020 and Shri Cyril C George, Dy Chairman
Chennai Port has been appointed in his place as
Nominee Director representing Chennai Port Trust
in the Board of KPL w.e.f 27.03.2020. Subsequently,

pursuant to the communication received from
Chennai Port Trust vide its letter No.ChPT/KPL
CELL/2020/F dated 28.08.2020 for replacing
Shri Cyril C George, Nominee Director of ChPT
in KPL Board with Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar,
Deputy Chairman, ChPT and pursuant to the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar, Deputy
Chairman, ChPT was appointed as Nominee
Director of Chennai Port on the Board of KPL in
place of Shri Cyril C George w.e.f 04.09.2020.

Vide letter No. PD-27/12/2017-PD-1/PE-1 and Office
Order No. 26/2019 dated 14.06.2019, the tenure
of Shri P. Raveendran as Chairman Cum Managing
Director additional Charge was extended for a
period of one year w.e.f. 08.06.2019, or till the
appointment of regular incumbent to the post,
or until further orders, whichever is the earliest
Subsequently vide letter No PD-27/12/2017-PD-1/
PE-1 and Office order No. 32/2019 dated 19 August
2019, Ministry of Shipping, Government of India
communicated the approval of the Appointment
Committee of the Cabinet (ACC), Ministry of
Personnel OM.No.1/3/2019-EO(SM-I) dated 14t
August 2019 for the appointment of Shri Sunil
Paliwal, IAS (TN: 1993) as CMD of KPL for a period
of 5 years from the date of assumption of charge
of the post, or until further orders, whichever is
earlier. Shri Sunil Paliwal took charge as CMD w.e f.
16.09.2019.

Vide letter No. PD-27/30/2017-PD-1 dated 06.11.2019
Ministry of Shipping conveyed the approval of
ACCfor appointment of ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao as
Non-Official Independent Director on the Board
of Kamarajar Port Limited, for a period of 3 years
w.e.f. the date of notification of his appointment
or until further orders, whichever is earlier. He was
appointed in the Board w.e.f 11.11.2019.

Smt. L. Victoria Gowri ceased to be an
Independent Director consequent to the
completion of her tenure on 31.01.2020.

Shri P. Raveendran retires by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible offers himself for reappointment.



f) Pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made there under, proposal for appointment of
Shri Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S., Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao and
Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar as Directors are being
made at the Annual General Meeting for the
approval of Shareholders. A brief profile of the
Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed
at the forthcoming AGM is provided in the Notice
to the AGM.

2.2 Evaluation of Board’s Performance.

A statement indicating the manner in which formal
annual evaluation has been made by the Board of
its own performance and that of its Committees and
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individual directors is not required for a Government
Company as the evaluation of Directors is made by
the concerned Ministry. Your Company has been a
Government Company, upto 27" March 2020 and
accordingly this requirement was not applicable for
the FY 2019-20.

2.3 No. of Board Meetings held with dates of the

Meeting:

During the financial year 2019-20, 7 (Seven) Nos. of
Board meetings were held on 24.05.2019, 26.08.2019,
21.10.2019, 13.11.2019, 03.01.2020, 06.03.2020 and
27.03.2020.

24 Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings, Last AGM, Number of Directorship and
Membership / Chairmanship of Committee held by each of them

No. of Board .
Meeting held oth No. of Committees
duringthe [ No.of Board | LastAGM DirectorseI:i as across all Companies*
Name of Director Designation of the Director tenure of Meeting attended on 31¢ March
respective Attended 2020 As Member** [ As Chairman**
Director in F.Y. Ason31* Ason31%
2019-20 March 2020 March 2020
Shri Sunil Paliwal Chairman-cum-Managing 5 5 wEx 2 M -AC- KPL AC- SCL
Director w.e.f 16.09.2019 M- SRC -KPL
Shri P. Raveendran Chairman-cum-Managing 2 2
Director w.e.f 13.06.2018
t0 16.09.2019 M -AC- KPL
Nominee Director of 5 5 Yes 3 M-AC-SCL SRC-KPL
Chennai Port Trust (w.e.f
16.09.2019)
Shri H.N. Aswath Nominee Director of Govt. 7 7 Yes HEX HEX HHRER
of India (w.e.f 15.05.2019
t0 27.03.2020)
Shri Cyril C George Nominee Director of NA NA b 2 0 0
Chennai Port Trust (w.e.f.
27.03.2020 to 04.09.2020)
Smt L. Victoria Gowri Independent Director 5 5 Yes Fr*X FH*X FREX
(upto 31.01.2020)
ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao Independent Director 4 4 wH* 1 Nil AC-KPL
(w.ef11.11.2019)

Notes : M-Member, AC - Audit Committee, SRC - Stakeholder Relationship Committee, SCL- Sethusamudram Corporation Limited
* Chairmanship/Membership of the AC and SRC of Public Limited Companies (including KPL).
** As per the data/details made available during their tenure in the Company/ Committee.

***was not Director on the date of AGM
***¥* was not Director as on 31.03.2020

3.0 COMMITTEE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Various Board level Committees have been constituted
in compliance with various rules, regulations, Acts as
may be applicable. Committees after due deliberations
gives its recommendations to the Board for approval.

The Minutes of the meetings of the various Committees
are placed before the Board for information pursuant to

the Secretarial Standards. Various Committees of Board
are as under:

3.1 Audit Committee

A. Terms of reference:

The role and terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is in accordance with Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Guidelines on Corporate
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Governance for CPSEs issued by DPE. It inter-alia
includes among others:

e review and monitoring the auditor’s
independence and performance, effectiveness
of audit process;

o oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
process and disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct,
sufficient and credible;

e reviewing with the management the half-
yearly and annual financial statements before
submission to Board;

e reviewing with the management, external
and internal auditors the adequacy of internal
control systems,

e reviewing the adequacy of internal audit
function,

e reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors,
discussion with external auditors,

e scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and
investments,

e review of the functioning of the Whistle Blower
Mechanism etc.

B. Composition of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company comprised of
the following members as on 31.03.2020:

Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao - Chairman
Shri Sunil Paliwal - Member
Shri P. Raveendran - Member

During the year 2019-20, Shri AK. Saran ceased
to be Member of the Committee on 15.05.2019.
Shri H. N. Aswath was inducted as member of the
Audit Committee w.ef 17.05.2019 and ceased
w.e.f 27.03.2020. Shri Sunil Paliwal was inducted
as member of the Audit Committee w.e.f 21.10.2019.
Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao was inducted as Chairman of the
Audit Committee w.e.f 24.12.2019. Smt L.Victoria Gowri
ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee w.e.f.
31.01.2020 on completion of her tenure.

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the
Audit Committee. Shri M. Gunasekaran, General
Manager (Finance)-cum-CFO acts as the Nodal
Officer to the Audit Committee.

C. Meetings and Attendance during the year
During the year 2019-20, four Audit Committee
meetings were held on 24.05.2019, 26.08.2019,
13.11.2019 and 06.03.2020.

Attendance of the Audit Committee Meetings
during the year 2019-20:

Members | N O ipate. | _atiended
ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao 1 1
Shri Sunil Paliwal 2 2
Shri P. Raveendran 4 4
Smt L. Victoria Gowri 3 3
Shri H.N. Aswath 3 3

Head of Finance, Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors
and Senior Executives from various functions
were invited in the Audit Committee meetings for
interacting with the members of the Audit Committee.

3.2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Your Company was a Government Company till 27
March 2020. In a Government Company, appointment
and terms and conditions of remuneration of Whole-
time Directors are determined by Government of India
through the Administrative Ministry. The remuneration
of Part-time official Directors is governed by their
respective Government rules. Sitting fees are paid
to Independent Directors. The pay scales of the other
employees are fixed in line with guidelines issued by
the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE).

A. Terms of reference:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
been constituted for the purpose of determining
the quantum of Annual Bonus/Variable Pay and
policy for distribution across the Executives and
staff within the limits as prescribed under the
DPE guidelines. DPE guidelines were applicable
upto 27" March 2020. The Committee also gives
recommendation to the Board for appointment of
Directors pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013.

B. Composition of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

Presently, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is comprised of the following Members:

ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao - Chairman
Shri P. Raveendran - Member
Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar - Member
Shri Sunil Paliwal - Member

During the year 2019-20, Shri H. N. Aswath was
inducted as member of this Committee w.ef
17.05.2019 and ceased w.e.f 27.03.2020. Shri V.M.V.
Subba Rao was inducted as Chairman of this
Committee w.ef 24.12.2019. Smt L.Victoria Gowri



ceased to be a member of this Committee w.e.f.
31.01.2020 on completion of her tenure. Shri Cyril C
George was inducted as member of this Committee
w.ef 11.05.2020. Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar was
inducted as member of this Committee w.ef
09.09.2020 in place of Shri Cyril C George.

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
C. Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the year 2019-20, two Nomination and
Remuneration Committee meetings were held on
26.08.2019 and 27.03.2020.

Attendance during the year 2019-20:

Members No. of Meetings held Meetings
during tenure attended
Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao 1 1
Smt. L.Victoria Gowri 1 1
Shri P Raveendran 2 2
Shri H. N. Aswath 2 2

Remuneration received by Functional Directors

Details of remuneration of functional directors of
the Company paid for the financial year 2019-20:
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B. Composition of the Committee

The Share Allotment and Share Transfer Committee
as on date is as follows

Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar - Chairman
Shri Sunil Paliwal - Member

During the year 2019-20, Shri H. N. Aswath was inducted
as Chairman of this Committee w.e.f 24.05.2019 and
ceased w.e.f 27.03.2020. Shri P Raveendran was inducted
as member of this Committee w.e.f 24.05.2019. Shri P.
Raveendran ceased to be a member w.e.f21.10.2019
and Shri Sunil Paliwal was inducted as member of this
Committee w.e.f21.10.2019. Smt L.Victoria Gowri was
inducted as member of this Committee w.e.f 24.05.2019
and ceased w.e.f 31.01.2020. Shri Cyril C George
was inducted as Chairman of this Committee w.e.f
11.05.2020. ShriS. Balaji Arunkumar was inducted as
Chairman of this Committee w.e.f 09.09.2020 in place of
Shri Cyril C George.

C. Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the year 2019-20, three Share Allotment and
Share Transfer Committee meeting were held on
06.09.2019, 03.01.2020 and 27.03.2020.

Attendance during the year 2019-20:

*  Not applicable - as he was holding additional charge as CMD

** The total remuneration mentioned above does not include value of
perquisites under Section 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and Provident
Fund (including employer’s contribution)

3.3 Share Allotment and Share Transfer Committee
A. Terms of Reference

Share Allotment and Share Transfer Committee
had been constituted to complete all formalities
involved in the allotment of shares and/or other
securities issued by the Company from time to time
including the signing and issue of share certificates
and to give effect to and complete all formalities
involved in the transfer of the Company’s shares
and/or other securities from time to time.

e ] Meetings
Salary Members Meetings held 9
Bonus / . attended
Name of the & Other Commission | Total (Rs.) during tenure
Directors Allowances ’ Shri H. N. Aswath 3 3
/ PRP (Rs.) - pT—
(Rs.) Shri Sunil Paliwal 2 2
Shri P Raveendran* Shri P Raveendran 1 1
upto 15.09.2019 - Smt. L. Victoria Gowri 2 2
Shri Sunil Paliwal 27,71,671 27,7671 3.4 Stakeholder Relationship Committee.
from 16.09.2019

A. Terms of reference:

Stakeholder Relationship Committee looksinto redressal
of complaints/grievances of bondholders pertaining to
non receipt of interest/transfer/transmission of bonds

and other miscellaneous complaints.

B. Composition

As on 31.03.2020, the Stakeholder Relationship

Committee is comprised of the following Members
Shri P. Raveendran - Chairman

Shri Sunil Paliwal - Member

During the year 2019-20,

e Shri P. Raveendran ceased to be a member of
this Committee w.e.f 25.09.2019 and was again
inducted as Chairman on 24.12.2019.
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e Shri Sunil Paliwal was inducted as a member of
this Committee w.e.f 25.09.2019.

e Smt L.Victoria Gowri ceased to be Chairperson/
member of this Committee w.e.f 24.12.2019.

e Shri M Gunasekaran ceased to be a member of
this Committee w.e.f. 24.12.2019.

e Shri H. N. Aswath was inducted as member of
this Committee w.ef 24.12.2019 and ceased
w.e.f 27.03.2020

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the

Stakeholder Relationship Committee.

C Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the year 2019-20, four Stakeholder

Relationship Committee meetings were held on

24.05.2019, 26.08.2019, 21.10.2019 and 06.03.2020

D Attendance during the year 2019-20:

be a member of this Committee w.e.f. 31.01.2020
on completion of her tenure. Shri Cyril C George
was inducted as member of this Committee w.e.f
11.05.2020. Subsequently, Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar
was inducted as member of this Committee w.e.f
09.09.2020 in place of Shri Cyril C George. The
Board Level Committee on CSR and Sustainability
Development as on 09.09.2020 is given below.

Shri Sunil Paliwal - Chairman
Shri P. Raveendran - Member
ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao - Member
Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar - Member

Shri P. Radhakrishnan, DGM(C) acts as the Nodal
Officer. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to
the CSR Committee.

C. Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the year under review, four Meetings of the

Members Entitled to Meeting Committee on CSR and Sustainable Development were
attend attended
Shri P Raveendran 3 3 heldon 26.08.2019,21.10.2019,13.11.2019and 06.03.2020.
Shri Sunil Paliwal 2 2 Members Entitled to Meeting
Smt. L.Victoria Gowri 3 3 attend attended
Shri H. N. Aswath 1 1 Shri Sunil Paliwal 3 3
Shri M. Gunasekaran 3 2 Shri P Raveendran 4 4
3.5 Board Level Committee on CSR and shriH. N Asvyath - 4 4
Sustainability Development Sm?’ L Victoria Gowri 3 3
Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao 1 1

A. Terms of reference:

Terms of reference includes inter aliarecommending
proposals, amount of expenditure to be incurred to
the Board. CSR policy is available on the website of
the Company.

B. Composition:

TheBoard Level CommitteeonCSRand Sustainability
Development of the Company comprised of the
following members as on 31.03.2020:

Shri Sunil Paliwal - Chairman
Shri P Raveendran - Member
Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao - Member

During the year 2019-20, Shri H. N. Aswath was
inducted as Member of the Committee w.elf.
17.05.2019 and ceased w.e.f 27.03.2020. Shri Sunil
Paliwal was inducted as Chairman of this Committee
w.e.f 25.09.2019 in the place of Shri P Raveendran
who ceased to be Chairman of this Committee
w.e.f 25.09.2019 but continues to be member of
this Committee w.e.f 25.09.2019. Shri V.M.V. Subba
Rao was inducted as a member of this Committee
w.ef 24.12.2019. Smt L.Victoria Gowri ceased to

4.0 GENERAL BODY MEETING

The date, time and place of the AGMs held during
the preceding three years and special resolution
passed thereat are as under:

Special
Resolution
passed

Year Date Time Place

2018-19 (06.09.2019 | 12.15 p.m | Board Room at the
Registered office of the -NIL-
Company - 600 001

2017-18 [ 24.09.2018 | 11.00 a.m | Board Room at the
Registered office of the -NIL-
Company - 600 001

2016-17 [ 21.09.2017 | 11.30 a.m | Board Room at the
Registered office of the -NIL-
Company - 600 001

5.0 DISCLOSURES

(i) Related Party Transactions are set out in Note
No. 30 (12) to the notes forming part of the
financial statement for the year ended 31
March 2020 in the Annual Report.

(i)  The Company has not received any Presidential
directives during the FY 2019-20 and also in the
last three financial years.



(iii)

Note no.15 of Notes to Accounts refers to the
Government of India’s disinvestment of the
entire Equity shares held in the Company to
Chennai Port Trust through Share Purchase
Agreement entered on 25.03.2020.
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Order No. 32/2019) dated 19" August, 2019 has
communicated that “In pursuance of Appointment
Committee of the Cabinet (ACC), Ministry of Personnel
OM No. 1/3/2019-EO(SM-I) dated 14 August 2019,
ShriSunil Paliwal, IAS (TN: 1993) is hereby appointed

as Chairman-cum-Managing Director (JS level) in
Kamarajar Port Limited at Level 14 (Rs. 1,44,200-
2,18,200) of the pay matrix for a period of five years
from the date of assumption of Charge of the post
or until further orders, whichever is the earlier”.

6.0 CODE OF CONDUCT

As part of Kamarajar Port’s persisting endeavor to set a
high standard of conduct for its employees a “Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics” has been laid down for
all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel.
All Board Members and Senior Management personnel
have affirmed compliance with Kamarajar Port’s “Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics” for the financial year
2019-20.

(iv) There was no case of non-compliance of
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 or any other
statutory laws, except appointment of requisite
independent directors. As the Company was a
Public Sector Undertaking until 27.3.2020 the
appointment of Directors had to be made by
Govt. of India and the Company was regularly
following up with the Ministry in this regard.
Subsequently, the Company has taken up
with Chennai Port Trust, the new Promoter
for appointment of Directors. The statutory
authorities have also not passed any strictures
or imposed penalty on the Company under any
Act/Rules during the last three financial years.

(v)  Your Company has a Whistle Blower Policy as
per the guidelines issued by the Department
of Public Enterprises (DPE) and no personnel of
the Company have been denied access to the
Audit Committee.

Declaration

As provided under the Guidelines on Corporate
Governance for CPSEs issued by Department of
Public Enterprises, all the Board Members and Senior
Management of the Company have confirmed
compliance with ‘Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics’for the year ended 31 March 2020.

(vi)  No item of expenditure was debited in books
of accounts which was not for the purpose of
the business. Further, no expense was incurred
which was personal in nature and was incurred

forthe Board of Directors and Top Management. For Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-
(Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S.,)
Chairman-Cum-Managing Director
(DIN:01310101)

(vii)  The Company has complied with the requirements
of DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance
except as stated in the compliance certificate
on Corporate Governance issued by Practicing
Company Secretary . The response for the same is
provided in Para 35.1 of the Directors'Report.

Chennai
30.04.2020

7.0 TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS

(viii) None of the Part time Directors of the Company
have pecuniary relationship or transaction with
the Company.

Your Company has a policy for Training of Directors
approved by the Board. The training policy for the
directors has the following objectives:

(ix)  Details of administrative & office expenses and o
financial expenses for the year under review
and for the previous year are available in annual
accounts.

Empower and equip the board with skills and
attitudes required to perform their challenging
tasks and play their role in a transparent,
objective and ethical manner as per the best
(x)  The Central Government has not prescribed the corporate governance practices.
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)

) e Promoting better understanding of professional
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the Company.

requirements as well as sensitization to
professional, socio-economic and political

environment in which work is done.

(xi)  Ministry of Shipping, Government of India vide
Letter No. PD-27/12/2017-PD-I/PE-I (Office
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e Promoting an environment conducive to learning
and development by serving as a role model for all
the other employees of the Company.

8.0 REVIEW OF COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE LAWS

The Board has periodically reviewed the compliance
report of all laws applicable to the Company and has
ensured compliance of all the applicable laws.

9.0 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Half-Yearly Results:  Pursuant to listing of Tax
Free Bonds in the Bombay Stock Exchange, the
Company intimated half-yearly financial results/
audited annual financial results during 2019-20 to
the Stock Exchange promptly after it was taken on
record and approved by the Board. These financial
results were published in the Business Standard all
Editions. The results were also sent to Debenture
Trustees and Bond Holders and displayed on the
website of the Company.

Website: The Company’s website is www.
kamarajarport.in. Annual Report and Audited
Financial statements including Directors’ Report
and Auditors’ Report are also available on the web-
site. Website displays major official news releases.

Place: Chennai
Date : 09.09.2020

Annual Report: Annual Report containing inter-alia,
Audited Accounts, Directors'Report, Auditors'Report,
Cash Flow Statement and other important information
is circulated to the members and others entitled thereto.

Compliance Officer: The Company has designated
Shri M.Gunasekaran, General Manager (Finance)
and Chief Financial Officer as Compliance Officer
for servicing Tax Free Bond holders. The email id
mguna@kplmail.in has been created for addressing
the queries of Bond holders.

Registrar and Transfer Agent : Details of Registrar
and Transfer Agent for Tax Free Bonds issued u/s
10 (15)(iv)(h) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the
financial years 2012-13 & 2013-14, are as under:
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd

C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai — 400083.

Public Issue-Shares and Bonds (Allotment) :

022 -4918 6200

Tel : 022 - 4918 6270/6000/6200

Fax: 022 - 4918 6060,

Email : bonds.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-
Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S.,
Chairman cum Managing Director
(DIN:01310101)
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Suite No. 103, First Floor, Kaveri Complex

No. 96/104, Nungambakkam High Road

(Next to NABARD & ICICI Bank), Nungambakkam, Chennai - 600 034
Phone No. 044 - 4553 0256, 4553 0257/4265 2127

E-mail: csdhanapal@gmail.com, website: www.csdhanapal.com

S Dhanapal & Associates

Practising Company Secretaries

Partners

S. Dhanapal, B.Com., B.AB.L, F.C.S

N. Ramanathan, B.Com., FC.S

Smita Chirimar, M.Com., F.C.S, DCG(ICSI)
R. Pratheepa, B.C.S., A.C.S

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(Under Guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprises)

To

The Shareholders
Kamarajar Port Limited, Chennai

We have examined the compliance of conditions
of Corporate Governance by KAMARAJAR PORT
LIMITED, Chennai ("The Company") for the financial
year ended March 31, 2020 as per the Guidelines
issued by the Department of Public Enterprises
(DPE), vide reference no. 18(8)/2005-GM dated 14th
May, 2010.

The Compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governanceistheresponsibility of the Management.
Our examination was limited to review of the
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted
by the Company, for ensuring the compliance with
the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither
an audit nor an expression of opinion of financial
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us,

Date :31.08.2020
Place : Chennai

we certify that the Company has largely complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance, as
per the guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE) vide reference no. 18(8)/2005-
GM dated 14th May 2010, except with regard to
appointment of Independent Directors and all
related compliances.

It is reported by the Company that they have a
risk management plan as required under the DPE
Guidelines but the Board is to periodically review
and take remedial action to implement the risk
management plan as a separate agenda and
further that the Company has ceased to be covered
under the DPE Guidelines w.e.f. FY 2020-21 due to
disinvestment of Central Government's stake in the
Company.

We state that such compliance is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES

(A Firm of Practising Company Secretaries)
Sd/-

SMITA CHIRIMAR

Partner

Membership No. F8137

CP #9357
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ANNEXURE-V

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Port Sector is an important fundamental sector
for national economic and social development
and is closely related to the development of
macro economy. Port plays an important role in
meeting the transportation needs of national
energy, raw materials and other bulk materials,
thereby supporting economic, social and trade
development, improving people’s living standards,
and enhancing the overall strength of the country.

India is richly endowed with natural maritime
advantages, with a 7,500-km coastline covering
13 states and union territories, a strategic location
on key international trade routes and 14,500 km
of navigable and potentially navigable waterways.
Maritime logistics has been an important
component of the Indian economy, accounting for
90 per cent of EXIM trade by volume and 72 per cent
by value.

Your Company provides highly integrated port
services of International Standards including
stevedoring, stacking, evacuation and also handles
various types of cargoes mainly Coal, Petroleum,
LPG, LNG, Chemicals, Automobiles, Containers,
General Cargoes and other goods.

1.0 Global Economy

Global economic activity significantly slowed in
2019 following strong growth in 2018 on account
of factors emanating from both advanced and
emerging economies. COVID-19 has upended the
global economy, and with it, international trade.
Global Trade was already slowing in 2019 before
the virus struck, weighed down by trade tensions
and slowing economic growth. World merchandise
trade registered a slight decline for the year of
0.1% in volume terms after rising by 2.9% in the
previous year. Meanwhile, the dollar value of world
merchandise exports in 2019 fell by 3% to US$ 18.89
trillion. (Source: WTO)

Trade tensions between China and the United
States re-escalated in August 2019, following the
announcement by the United States that it will
impose tariffs on a further $300 billion of Chinese

imports. In retaliation, China introduced additional
tariffs on $75 billion of imports from the United
States. As the trade disputes threaten to become
even more pervasive, the global growth outlook has
darkened. (Source: WTO)

1.1 Global Economy Outlook

The economic shock of the COVID-19 pandemic
inevitably invites comparisons to the global
financial crisis of 2008-09. These crises are similar in
certain respects but very different in others. As in
2008-09, governments have again intervened with
monetary and fiscal policy initiatives to counter the
downturn and provide temporary income support
to businesses and households. But restrictions on
movement and social distancing to slow the spread
of the disease mean that labor supply, transport
and travel are today directly affected in ways
they were not during the financial crisis. Under
these circumstances, forecasting requires strong
assumptions about the progress of the disease and
a greater reliance on estimated rather than reported
data. (Source WTO)

IMF June 2020 World Economic Outlook Report
projects the Global growth to be negative (-4.9%)
in 2020, 1.9 percentage points below the April
2020 World Economic Outlook (WEO) forecast.
The COVID-19 pandemic has had a more negative
impact on activity in the first half of 2020 than
anticipated, and the recovery is projected to be
more gradual than expected.

Hit by Covid-19 disruptions, world trade in goods
is likely to have registered a historic 18.5 per cent
fall in the second quarter of 2020 (year-on-year), at
par with the lows of the 2008-09 financial crisis, but
there are indications of a slight recovery in the third
quarter, according to the latest reading of the World
Trade Organization’s Goods Trade Barometer.

The Geneva-based WTO said that for 2021 it was
forecasting a rebound in global goods trade of
between 21% and 24%, depending largely on
the duration of the Coronavirus outbreak and the
effectiveness of policy responses.



The immediate goal is to bring the pandemic
under control and mitigate the economic damage
to people, companies and countries. Hence the
policymakers would start planning for the aftermath
of the pandemic. Under the optimistic scenario, the
recovery will be strong enough to bring trade close
to its pre-pandemic trend, while the pessimistic
scenario only envisages a partial recovery. Given the
level of uncertainties, it is worth emphasizing that
the initial trajectory does not necessarily determine
the subsequent recovery. For example, one could see
a sharp decline in 2020 trade volumes along the lines
of the pessimistic scenario, but an equally dramatic
rebound, bringing trade much closer to the line of
the optimistic scenario by 2020-21 or 2021-22.

During the last two decades China has become
crucial to the global economy. China’s rising
importance in the global economy is not only
related to its status as a manufacturer and exporter
of consumer products. China has become the main
supplier of intermediate inputs for manufacturing
companies abroad. A reduction in Chinese supply
of intermediate inputs can affect the productive
capacity and therefore the exports of any given
country depending on how reliant its industries are
on Chinese suppliers While there is still uncertainty
about the impact of the COVID-19 on China’s
productive capacity, the most recent statistics point
to a significant downturn. The full effect of COVID19
on global value chains will become clearer in the
coming months

2.0 Indian Economy

India’s economy has surged ahead in recent years.
The pressures of a growing economy have naturally
pushedits transport system to full capacity. Realizing
the urgency for resolving infrastructure constraints
decisively in the next two decades, the government
has set development targets and plans aiming to
sustain high levels of inclusive economic growth.

The movement of bulk commodities is one of the
major responsibilities of India’s transportation
system. Thermal coal alone accounts for around 61
percent of the freight volume on the Indian Railways
and 24 percent of the seaport freight mix. The
Sagarmala program aims to change the way logistics
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evacuation happens in India and to save logistics
costs nationwide for cargo handled and evacuated
through seaports. Augmenting the operational
efficiency of ports, optimizing logistics evacuation
and increasing port-led development for India can
help achieve this. The project could form around 2
percent of the country’s GDP from coastal states and
districts and create societal impact in the form of 10
million jobs, coastal community skill building, etc.

Five commodities contribute 80 percent of the total
export-import freight movement with dynamic
origin and destination points across the country.
They Include Coal, Petroleum, Oil and Lubricants
(POL), Iron Ore, Fertilizers and Containers.

Under the Sagarmala Programme, the government
has envisioned a total of 189 projects for
modernisation of ports involving an investment
of Rs 1.42 trillion (US$ 22 billion) by the year 2035.
Ministry of Shipping has set a target capacity of
over 3,130 MMT by 2020, which would be driven
by participation from the private sector. Non-major
ports are expected to generate over 50 per cent of
this capacity.

India’s cargo traffic handled by ports is expected
to reach 1,695 million metric tonnes by 2021-22,
according to a report of the National Transport
Development Policy Committee. Within the ports
sector, projects worth an investment of USS$ 10
billion have been identified and will be awarded
over the coming five years.

Further, the Government of India has allowed
foreign direct investment (FDI) of up to 100 per
cent under the automatic route for projects related
to the construction and maintenance of ports and
harbours. A 10-year tax holiday is extended to
enterprises engaged in the business of developing,
maintaining, and operating ports, inland waterways,
and inland ports. The government has also initiated
National Maritime Development Programme
(NMDP), an initiative to develop the maritime sector
with a planned outlay of US$ 11.8 billion.

In the Financial Year ended 31 March 2020,
cargo handling at India’s major ports grew by
a meagre 0.82 per cent as against 2.90 per cent
growth achieved in the previous financial year.
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Growth eased to 7.3 percentin the subsequent
quarter due to rising global volatility, largely from
financial volatility, normalized monetary policy
in advanced economies, externalities from trade
disputes, and investment rerouting. Further, the
Indian rupee suffered because of the crude price
shock, and conditions exacerbated as recovery
in some advanced economies caused faster
investment outflows. Ports handle almost 95% of
total international trade volume in India. With the
Government of India’s “Make in India” initiative for
rapid economic growth, it is expected that the share
of merchandize trade in India’s GDP would increase
substantially in the next 5 years.

2.1 Indian Economy Outlook

According to Asian Development Outlook (ADO),
Indian economy is expected to contract by 4%
during the current financial year 2020-21. Growth
in Indian GDP slowed to 3.1% in the first quarter of
2020, its slowest since early 2003. Economic growth
slowed to 4.2% in the whole of the last fiscal year
as both exports and investment started to contract.
The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) earlier in May has
projected that the impact of COVID-19 is more
severe than anticipated and the GDP growth during
2020-21 is likely to remain in the negative territory.

Washington headquartered World Bank projected
India’s economy to shrink by 3.2 per cent in the
current fiscal due to the coronavirus pandemic
that has hit a hard blow to the economy due to the
lockdown.

International rating agencies like Moody's Investors
Service, Fitch Rating and S&P Global Ratings have
all predicted a 4-5 per cent contraction in India’s
economic growth rate during April 2020 to March
2021 fiscal. Crisil has said this would be the country’s
fourth recession since Independence, first since
liberalisation, and perhaps the worst to date.

3.0 Indian Port Sector Performance

AsperIndian Ports Association datathe performance
of Major Ports are as follows

Traffic handled at Major Ports

(IN“000 TONNES)
PORTS APRILTO MARCH % VARIATION
AGAINST
2019-20 2018-19 PREV. YEAR

KOLKATA
Kolkata Dock System 17,303 18,551 -6.73
Haldia Dock Complex 46,680 45,212 3.25
TOTAL: KOLKATA 63,983| 63,763 0.35
PARADIP 1,12,689| 1,09,275 3.12
VISAKHAPATNAM 72,722 65,301 11.36
KAMARAJAR (ENNORE) 31,747 34,497 -7.97
CHENNAI 46,759| 53,012 -11.80
V.0. CHIDAMBARANAR 36,076 34,342 5.05
COCHIN 34,038 32,022 6.30
NEW MANGALORE 39,145 42,508 -7.91
MORMUGAOQ 16,019 17,683 941
MUMBAI 60,696| 60,588 0.18
INPT 68,449 70,706 -3.19
DEENDAYAL 1,22,499| 1,15,402 6.15
GRAND TOTAL: 7,04,822 | 6,99,099 0.82

India’s State-owned ports handled a combined
704.82 Million Tonnes (MT) of cargo in the year to
March 2020, registering a nominal growth of about
0.8 per cent, the slowest in eight years.

These Major ports have a capacity to handle
1,524.91 MT of cargo a year and the FY20 cargo
throughput translates into a capacity utilisation of
46.2 per cent. The existing capacity would thus be
able to cater to growth till at least 2025, according
to industry sources. In FY19, the 12 ports handled
699.10 MT of cargo including Containers registering
a growth of 2.9 per cent over the 679.37 MT handled
in FY18. Last time the Major ports posted a decline
in volumes was in FY12 when they handled 560.14
MT, down from 570.03 MT in FY11.

3.1 Indian Port Sector Performance Outlook

Cargo handled by the country’s major ports declined
by 19.68% to 141.92 MT in the first quarter of this FY20-
21.These Major ports had together handled 176.69 MT
of cargo during April-June period of 2018-19.

Ports like Chennai and Kamarajar saw their cargo
volumes nosedive about 40% during April-June
2020, while Kolkata suffered a drop of over 30%.
While Chennai Port saw 39.91% decline in cargo
handling to 7.28 MT, Kamarajar Port suffered a drop



of 39.41% to 5.16 MT in April-June 2020, as per IPA
data. Cargo handling at Cochin port slipped 33.78%
to 5.63 MT, while the same at JNPT declined 31.38%
to 12.09 MT. Kolkata port logged a fall of 27.26% to
11.72 MT. (Source : IPA)

According to ICRA, while all cargo segments are
vulnerable, container segment is expected to be more
adversely impacted. General cargo throughput may
witness 5-8 per cent contraction for full year 2020-21,
the container segment may witness a decline of 12-
15 per cent during the same period.

4.0 KPL’s Performance Overview

The cargoes at ports are divided into five major
categories, namely dry bulk cargo, liquid bulk cargo,
general cargo, containers and Ro-Ro vehicles.

Since commencement of the Port, the volume of
traffic handled has increased nearly 10 times from
3.40 million tons in 2001-02 to 34.50 million tons in
year 2018-19. The details of cargo handled during
the last five years are given under:

Traffic Handled at KPL in the last five years (Million Tonnes)
Cargo 2015-16 | 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2019-20
Coal TNEB 21.07 18.83 17.27 18.26 14.11
Coal Others 454 427 5.90 6.78 6.15
POL/ 3.99 417 444 483 472
Chemicals /

LPG

Iron ore NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Other Cargo 2.61 2.75 263 218 245
Container - - 0.05 1.10 2.52
Break bulk - - 0.16 1.32 1.29
LNG - - - 0.03 0.51

Total 32.21 30.02 3045 3450 31.75

4.1 Outlook

The main cargo handling in KPL is thermal coal
followed by Coke, POL, Containers, Automobiles,
LNG and break bulk.

The imposition of lockdown to check Covid-19 has
adversely impacted electricity demand and the
average thermal PLF since March 24, 2020.

Hence Power demand is expected to decline at
least 4-5% in fiscal 2020-21 due to slowing activity
and policy actions.
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It is estimated that containers, coal and other bulk
cargo could be the mostimpacted categories. Liquid
cargo like LNG and petroleum products would be
comparatively less affected as tumbling crude oil
prices would buoy demand growth

5.0 Industry  Structure, = Market-Scenario,
Opportunities & Threats, Outlook, Risks
and Concerns.

Industry Structure and Market Scenario:

India has 12 major and 205 notified minor and
intermediate ports. Under the National Perspective
Plan for Sagarmala, six new mega ports will be
developed in the country. The Indian ports and
shipping industry play a vital role in sustaining
growth in the country’s trade and commerce. India
is the sixteenth largest maritime country in the
world. The Indian Government plays an important
role in supporting the ports sector.

In FY20, major ports in India handled 704.82 million
tonnes (MT) of cargo traffic, implying a CAGR of
2.74 per cent during FY16-FY20. Cargo traffic at
non-major ports reached 447.21 MT in FY20 (till
December 2019).

The major ports had a capacity of 1,514.09 MT per
annum (MTPA) in FY19. The Government has taken
several measures to improve operational efficiency
through mechanisation, deepening the draft and
speedy evacuations.

(Source: https://www.ibef.org/industry/ports-india-shipping.aspx#:)

According to the ICRA report, “The ongoing
slowdown in coal imports is most likely attributable
to the economic slowdown in recent months
which has brought down the overall demand.
Power demand and consequently thermal power
generation has witnesses a decline in the last three
to four months which along with the slowdown in
other consuming industries is resulting in the fall in
coal demand supply gap. Growth in coal demand
is also stifled by the impact of higher generation
from newly added renewable capacities. Systemic
inventory with users is also possibly down on
account of lower ordering following the anticipation
of further slowdown in demand”.
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Overall container volume slowed down to 3.5 per cent
in April-February as against 11 per cent growth in the
corresponding period of FY19. Non major ports have
outperformed the major ports in terms of retaining
higher incremental cargo volumes. This is evident from
the relatively higher growth of 4.5 per cent registered
by them compared to 1.1 per cent by major ports. While
coal logged 13 per cent growth at non major ports,
it plunged 94 per cent at major ports. In container
growth too, the non-major ports scored higher with 5.8
per cent compared to 2.2 per cent for non-major ports.

Ports have been struggling due to a shortage
of workers to move cargoes, particularly for dry
bulk shipments. Vessel movements almost halted
because of the lockdown and quarantine measures
taken by the government to control coronavirus
pandemic and the resultant delays, due to
manpower shortage and logistics problems at the
ports.

Even though port services have been brought under
the‘essential services list; some vessels which came
alongside berths have encountered difficulties in
carrying out cargo operations as only 20-25% of
the total workforce were present. There is also a
shortage of trucks, which is badly affecting cargo
evacuation alongside berths and at storage yards.

After the surfacing of the deadly Coronavirus,
many industries such as chemicals, dyes &
pigments, pharmaceuticals, textiles, electronics
and automobiles run the possibility of short-term
supply disruptions due to a production shutdown
in China, a study by ICRA noted.

With the contagion spreading to more countries,
the supply disruptions could get more pronounced,
affecting export and import trade at ports.

“Portsthathaveasignificantexposuretotheaffected
cargo categories could see an impact on their cargo
volumes in the near term. The extent of the impact
will be dependent of the duration of slowdown in
consumer demand and industrial activities due to
Covid-19 and the pace of subsequent recovery”, the
report by ICRA noted.

5.1 Strength and Weakness

Strength:

e Landlord Model with adequate risk sharing with
PPP/ BOT operators

e Adequate connectivity, water front and land
available for expansion.

e Optimal mix of captive and common user
berths. 1st LNG Terminal on East Coast located
in KPL.

e Deep draft port designed to handle large vessels

e Being Corporate Port the Company is vested
with more operational and financial autonomy.

e With the current debt equity ratio, the Company
can raise funds for investments.

Weakness :

e More dependent on Thermal Coal, as
substantial revenues earnings from coal
handling.

As a mitigation measure development and operation
of other cargoes like Automobile, Container, POL etc.

Opportunities:

e Locatedin Port dependent industrialized region
(Auto, machinery, electronics, garments, power
and oil sectors in prominence)

e Policy impetus towards LPG consumption and
city Gas supply in Chennai and its suburbs.

e Expected growth in power sector in the region.

e Expansion of industries in the hinterland area.

Threats:

e Multiple ports in vicinity for the same hinterland
leading to excess capacity vis-a-vis Cargo
availability and intense competition.

e Excessive environmental activism in the area.

e Llonger rail link to potential hinterland in
Karnataka vis-a-vis Krishnapatnam Port.

Risks & Concerns

The Company has established a robust enterprise
risk and compliance management framework and
processes to ensure the achievement of strategic
objectives. The Risks are assessed and managed at
various levels. Listed below are some of key risks:
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Key Risks and their Profiling

Risk

Profile of Risk

Financial Risk

Within the scope of our normal business activities, we are exposed to financial risks that
affect our access to liquidity, availability of capital to achieve our growth objectives, foreign
currency and interest rate volatility. This risk has remained stable due to the Company’s
consistently strong balance sheet and available financing arrangements in place

Industry
capacity and
competition

The utilization of our operations is influenced by any available capacity to handle cargo
volumes. An increase in capacity can lead to intensified competition between nearby
ports, resulting in weak pricing power, loss of revenue.

We continue to repurpose and refit our ports and terminals in line with market demand
and use technology as much as possible to increase the traffic in our existing assets.

Major projects
planning

and project
management

Major projects contribute significantly to reshaping our portfolio and delivering our strategy.
We are involved in a number of high-value, long-term projects that can take months or years
to complete. These projects, due to their nature, are exposed to geopolitical events, forces
of nature, unforeseen site conditions, technology development and other external factors,
which can result in delays, quality issues or cost overruns. Failure to deliver these major
projects can expose the Company to the risk of reduced profitability and potential losses.

Project risks are constantly assessed, mitigated, managed and reported to the Project
Management Department (PMD) during the project planning and execution stage.

Environmental

There is a growing portfolio of legislation and government regulations aimed at tackling
climate change, which could have consequences on our development of new projects.
New legislation and other evolving practices could impact our developmental activity
resultantly affect the business. However, the proposed EIA notification 2020 is expected to
streamline the process of MoEF clearance for expansion and incremental capacity addition.

We are constantly reviewing and updating our standards to ensure leading and best practices
are applied. Operational terminals operators (BOT), play an important role in developing
strategies and actions to combat the adverse potential effects of climate change through
operation, modification of infrastructure and retrofitting, etc. India’s ports have been
constrained due to many developmental, procedural and policy related challenges.

Multiple
agency model

Dual institutional structure has led to development of major and non-major ports as
separate, unconnected entities. While India has a fairly extensive regulatory framework for
ports, its effectivenessis questionable. The main problem is that major and non-major ports
fall under different jurisdictions with continued uncertainty as to the ultimate scenario.

Efficiency:

Indian ports, especially the major ports have a lot of scope forimprovement in operational
efficiencies compared to international ports.

6.0 Segment wise Performance

6.1 Sales Performance

Management considers “Port Services” as single
reportable segment.
during the year 2019-20 was Rs.703.17 crores as 7.
against Rs. 707.98 crores during the same period in

previous year.

6.2 Quantity

During the year 2019-20, a quantity of 31.75 million
tonnes of cargo was handled as against 34.50 million

The income from services tonnes previous year.

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

The Company has an internal control system with
proper internal delegation of authority, supervision
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and checks and balances and procedures through
documented policy guidelines and manuals. This
system is reviewed and updated periodically in
order to improve upon it and to meet the business
requirements.

8. Discussion on Financial Performance with
respect to Operational Performance
- Refer Board’s Report

9. Material developments in Human Resources,
Industrial Relations front, in cluding number
of people employed
- Refer Board's Report

10. Environmental Protection and Conservation,
Technological conservation, Renewable energy
developments, Foreign Exchange conservation.
- Refer Board’s Report

Place: Chennai
Date : 09.09.2020

11. Corporate Social Responsibility
- Refer Board’s Report

12. Cautionary Statement

Statement in this ‘Management Discussion
and Analysis Report’ describing the objectives,
expectations, assumptions or predictions of the
Company may be forward looking statements
within the meaning of applicable rules and
regulations. Actual results may vary materially from
those expressed or implied by the forward looking
statements due to risks or uncertainties associated
therewith depending upon economic conditions,
government policies and other incidental factors.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance
on these forward-looking statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-
Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S.,
Chairman cum Managing Director
(DIN:01310101)
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Indian Audit and Accounts Department
Office of the Director General of Commercial Audit, Chennai

Dated 26.08.2020
No. DGCA/CHENNAI/CA-II/KPL 2-181/2020-21/ 80

To

The Chairman-cum-Managing Director,

Kamarajar Port Limited,

2nd Floor (North wing) & 3rd Floor,

Jawahar Building, 17, Rajaji Salai, Chennai - 600 001

Sir,

Sub:

Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6) (b) of the
Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of Kamarajar Port Limited, Chennai for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

EXXKXEXXXXX

| forward herewith comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 143(6) (b) of the
Companies Act, 2013 on the financial statements of Kamarajar Port Limited, Chennai, for the year ended 31
March 2020.

Five copies of Printed Annual Report of your Company may be arranged to be forwarded to this office. The date
of holding of Annual General Meeting may also be intimated

Receipt of this letter may kindly be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully,

Sd/-
(R. AMBALAVANAN)
DIRECTOR GENERAL OF COMMERCIAL AUDIT, CHENNAI

Encl: Audit Certificate

3feaa AT WA, T - 2, 139 HETCHT el AT, = - 600 034.
Indian Oil Bhavan, Level-2, 139, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Chennai - 600034
Tel: 044-28330147 Fax: 044-28330142/145 e-mail: mabchennai@cag.gov.in
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

The preparation of financial statements of Kamarajar Port Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 in
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit
Report dated 29 June 2020.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the
financial statements of Kamarajar Port Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 under section 143(6) (a) of
the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers
of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and Company personnel

and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise

to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors' report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(R.AMBALAVANAN)
DIRECTOR GENERAL OF COMMERCIAL AUDIT, CHENNAI

Place: Chennai
Date : 26 August 2020
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B. THIAGARAJAN & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members Kamarajar Port Limited

Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS
financial statements of Kamarajar Port Limited
("the Company'), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 315t 2020, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended on that date including summary of
the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as "the financial statements"),

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March
31t 2020, the profit and total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit of the financial
statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficienta and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matters

4. Reference is invited to Note 30(18) regarding

impact of management's evaluation of
the impact of the prevailing and emerging
circumstances  surrounding the Corona
(Covid-19) virus which have had a profound
impact on people's health and on our society
as a whole, as well as on the operational and
financial performance of organizations,

Reference is invited to Note 4a regarding
pending conveyance deed/registration deeds for
several of the immovable properties obtained by
the Company from Government/ Government
owned entities. Further,  consideration/
compensation payable to an agency is yet to be
finalized and have not been provided for,

Reference is invited to Note 11 regarding excess
payments of Rs.4509.49 Lakhs made to project
contractors included in Other Assets - Non-
Current and not capitalized till date pending
disputes referred to High Court of Madras.

Reference is invited to Note 30(16) regarding
balances of Trade Receivable, term Loans and
Advances, Service tax input credit/GST, Advance
tax and Tax deducted at source and Trade
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Payables as at 31* March 2020 to the extent
not subsequently adjusted/paid are subject to

significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters

confirmation and reconciliation.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the matters

referred to Paragraphs 4 to 8.
Key Audit Matters:

8. Key audit matters are those matters that, in
our professional judgment, were of most

were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Sl
No

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s response

1

Accuracy of recognition,
measurement, presentation and
disclosures of revenues and other
related balances in view of adoption
of Ind AS 115“Revenue from Contracts
with  Customers” (new revenue
accounting standard)

The application of the new revenue
accounting standard involves
certain key judgements relating to
identification of distinct performance
obligations, determination of
transaction price of the identified
performance obligations. The
application of the new revenue
accounting standard involves
certain key judgements relating to
identification of distinct performance
obligations and determination of
transaction price of the identified
performance obligations.

We evaluated management’s process to identify the impact
of adoption of the new standard and tested key controls by
selecting a sample of continuing and new contracts, and
tested the operating effectiveness of the internal control,
relating to identification of the distinct performance
obligations and determination of transaction price. We also
carried out a combination of procedures involving enquiry
and observation, reperformance and inspection of evidence
in respect of operation of these controls.

We performed the following procedures on the -selected
samples:

+ Read, analysed and identified the distinct performance
obligations in these contracts.

«  Compared these performance obligations with that
identified by the Company.

« Considered the terms of the contracts to determine the
transaction price including any variable consideration to
verify the transaction price used to compute revenue and
totest the basis of estimation of the variable consideration.

Uncertain Direct/indirect tax positions
and recoverability of tax receivables
as at March 31, 2020, assets in respect
of direct/indirect taxes including
MAT Credit entitlements, prepaid
taxes and CENVAT recoverable which
are pending for future set-offs/
adjudication.

Our in-house expert has reviewed the nature of the
amounts recoverable, the sustainability and the likelihood of
recoverability upon final resolution.

Information Other
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

9. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible

than the Financial

Activities but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

10. Our opinion on the financial statements does

for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information
included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board Report including Annexures
to Board’s Report and Annual report on CSR

not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider



11.

whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the
other information that we obtained prior to the
date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

12. The Management Discussion and Analysis,

Board Report including Annexures to Board'’s
Report and Annual report on CSR Activities
and Information to Shareholders is expected to
be made available to us after that date. When
we read the reports which, are expected to
be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance.

Management’s Responsibility for the

Financial Statements

13. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible

for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these
Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income,
changesinequity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementa
maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation
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and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

14. In  preparing the financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the
Company’sabilitytocontinueasagoing concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

15. The Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements

16. Ourobjectivesareto obtainreasonableassurance
about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

17. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatementsin
the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

18. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.
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We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal
financial controls relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management

Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether

19.

20.

the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated
with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

21.

22

23.

As required under section 143(5) of the Act,
2013, We give in the Annexure A, our report
on the directions/sub-directions issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016 (“The order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters
specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we
report that:



We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those
books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of
account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014;

In terms of Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th
June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the provisions of Section 164(2) dealing
with directors disqualification is not applicable
to a Government Company

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial control over financial reporting of the
Companyandtheoperating effectivenessofsuch

Place: Chennai
Date: 29-June-2020
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control, refer to our separate report in“Annexure
C". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

In terms of Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5%
June 2015, managerial remuneration u/s 197
read with Schedule V to the Act is not applicable
to a Government Company

With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s report in accordance with rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision,
as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company

For B. Thiagarajan & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN 004371S

Sd/-

Ram Srinivasan
Partner
M. No. 220112
UDIN: 20220112AAAABG1939
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B. THIAGARAJAN & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of ourIndependent Auditors Report of even date on the Financial Statement of Kamarajar
Port Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020.

1

Whether the Company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
IT system? If no, the implications of processing
of accounting transactions outside IT system on
the integrity of accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, maybe stated

The Company has system in place to process all
the accounting transactions through IT system

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loan/
interest etc. made by a lender to the Company due
to the Company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes,
the financial impact maybe stated

There are no cases of restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loan/
interest etc. made by a lender to the Company
due to the Company’s inability to repay the loan

Whether funds received/receivable for specific
schemes from Central/State agencies were
properly accounted for/utilized as per its term and
conditions? List the cases of Deviation

During the year under review, the Company has
not received funds for specific schemes from
Central/State agencies.

ANNEXURE - BTO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements"
of our Independent Auditors Report of even date on the Financial Statement of Kamarajar Port Limited for the

year ended 31 March 2020.

1.(@) The Company is maintaining proper records
including quantitative details of fixed assets.
In our opinion, the records require further
improvement with respect to updating of the
situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to
cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased
manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, fixed assets were physically verified
by the management during the year. According
to the information and explanations given to
us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(c) The Company owns land measuring 2,802.49
acres acquired from TIDCO (950.00 acres), TNEB

(1092.20 acres), Salt Department, Ministry of
Commerce, Government of India (712.42 acres)
and Government of Tamil Nadu (47.87 acres),
out of which 2,787.27 acres is under possession
of the Company and the balance 15.22 acres of
land is yet to take possession. Further, out of the
total land area owned, 2,008.34 acres including
297.98 acres procured from TIDCO, 995.05
acres from TANGEDCO, 682.66 acres from Salt
Department have been registered in the name
of the Company and patta has been obtained
for 32.65 acres procured from Government of
Tamil Nadu and the in respect of the balance,
registration is in process.

The Company is engaged in the development
and operation of port and is primarily rendering
port services. It does not hold any inventory



of goods. Thus, Para 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable.

As informed, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms
or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, the Company has not given
Loans, guarantees, investments or securities
in violation of Sections 185 & 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposits
within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, provisions
of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

As per the information and explanation given to
us, the Central Government has not prescribed the
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maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any
of the services rendered by the Company.

7. (a) According to the information and explanation

given to us and as per our verification of the
records of the Company, the Company has
been generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods
and services tax, cess and any other statutory
dues with the appropriate authorities and no
material statutory dues have been outstanding
for more than six months from the due date as
at the year end.

(b) According to the information and explanation

given to us and as per our verification of the
records of the Company, the following disputed
amounts of tax/ duty have not been deposited
with appropriate authorities as at 315 March 2020.

Amount Period to which Forum to which amount
Statute Nature of dues . .
(In Lakhs) amount relates is pending
Finance Act 1994 Service Tax Rs.305.71 ## |2012-13to Central Excise and Service
2015-16 Tax Appellate Tribunal
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax Rs.98.15 AY 2005-06 to Rectification pending with
AY 2012-13 assessing Officer
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax Rs. 525.63 AY 2002 - 03 to High Court of Madras
AY 2004-05,
AY 2012-13

## Out of this, Rs.16.75 Lakhs has been paid

8.

10.

11.

According to information and explanation given
to us and as per our verification of the records of
the Company, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its dues to bank/financial institution/
debenture holders during the year.

The Company has not raised money by way of
Initial Public offer or further public offer. The
term loans raised have been applied for the
purposes for which they were raised.

Accordingtotheinformationandexplanations
given to us and as per our verification of the
records of the Company, no fraud either on or
by the Company has been noticed or reported
by its officers or employees during the year.

In terms of Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated
5% June 2015, managerial remuneration u/s

12.

13.

14.

197 read with Schedule V to the Act is not
applicable to a Government Company

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and
accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and
details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has



KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

15.  Accordingtotheinformationandexplanations
given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company

Place: Chennai
Date: 29-June-2020

has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable.

16. The Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

For B. Thiagarajan & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN 004371S

Sd/-

Ram Srinivasan
Partner
M. No. 220112
UDIN: 20220112AAAABG1939

ANNEXURE-C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of M/s Kamarajar Port Limited
("the Company") as of 315*March 2020 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal

Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for
establishingand maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system overfinancial reportingand
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal



financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. ACompany’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are

Place: Chennai
Date: 29-June-2020
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being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 315 March 2020, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For B. Thiagarajan & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN 004371S

Sd/-

Ram Srinivasan
Partner
M. No. 220112
UDIN: 20220112AAAABG1939
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

CIN: U45203TN1999G0I1043322

Regd. Office: 2" Floor (North wing) & 3" Floor, Jawahar Building, 17, Rajaji Salai, Chennai - 600 001.
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31t MARCH 2020

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Note No As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 2,73,178.30 2,66,119.21
(b) Right- of- Use Assets 4A 1,575.22 1,661.24
(c) Capital work-in-progress 5 10,761.88 9,894.54
(d) Other intangible assets 6 608.86 759.84
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7 4,148.04 4,123.00
(i) Loans & Advances 8 408.74 335.94
(iii) Others 9 187.20 166.82
(f) Deferred Tax Assets 10 23,845.14 35,901.62
(g) Other non-current Assets 11 10,873.32 13,865.28
Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 12 4,816.59 3,038.16
(i) Cash & Cash Equivalents 13 9,920.80 3,183.93
(iii) Loans & Advances 8 52.94 82.13
(iv) Others 9 9.94 20.19
(b) Current Tax Assets 14 388.77 874.36
(c) Other Current Assets 11 2,018.77 2,647.70
Total Assets 3,42,794.51 3,42,673.96
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 15 30,000.00 30,000.00
(b) Other Equity 2,07,906.66 1,92,101.73
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 77,522.09 87,196.04
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 566.15 299.32
(b) Provisions 18 - -
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(d) Other non-current liabilities 19 8,334.98 10,780.22
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 20 1,229.15 5,523.20
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 12,047.45 11,468.23
(b) Other current liabilities 19 4,154.53 4,030.13
(c) Provisions 18 1,033.50 1,275.11
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,42,794.51 3,42,673.96
Notes to Accounts 30
Significant Accounting policies 1to3

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

For KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

SUNIL PALIWAL, I.AS.,
Chairman cum Managing Director
DIN: 01310101

M. GUNASEKARAN
Chief Financial Officer & Compliance Officer

Place: Chennai
Date : 29" June 2020

P. RAVEENDRAN
Director
DIN: 07640613

JAYALAKSHMI SRINIVASAN
Company Secretary

For B. THIAGARAJAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants,
FRN.004371S

RAM SRINIVASAN

Partner,

M.No. 220112

UDIN: 20220112AAAABG1939
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
CIN: U45203TN1999G0I1043322
Regd. Office: 2" Floor (North wing) & 3" Floor, Jawahar Building, 17, Rajaji Salai, Chennai - 600 001.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31t March 2020
(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Note No. Ll ULl e
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019

Income
i) Revenue From Operations 21 70,317.50 70,798.21
i) Other Income 22 3,050.49 918.73

Total Income 73,367.99 71,716.93
Expenses
i) Operating Cost 23 8,158.88 8,308.15
i) Employee Benefits 24 2,058.83 1,983.95
iiii) Finance Cost 25 8,464.84 9,114.93
iv) Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 26 5,213.04 4,756.75
v) Other Expenses 27 4,250.38 4,327.49

Total expenses 28,145.97 28,491.28
Profit before exceptional items and tax 45,222.02 43,225.65

Exceptional ltems 28 423.32 8,840.76
Profit Before Tax 44,798.70 34,384.90

Less : Tax expense

- Current Tax 10 7,827.23 7,338.00
- Deferred Tax 10 12,068.66 (6,988.49)

Profit for the period from continuing operations 24,902.81 34,035.38

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - -
Tax expense of discontinued operations - -
Profit from discontinued operations after tax
| Profit for the year 24,902.81 34,035.38
I Other Comprehensive Income
i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 34.88 (14.59)
Less: Income Tax on Above 10 (12.19) (4.88)
Other Comprehensive Income 22.69 (19.47)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 24,925.50 34,015.91
Earnings per equity share : 8.31 11.34
(1) Basic 29
(2) Diluted 8.31 11.34

Notes to Accounts 30

Significant Accounting policies 1to3

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

For KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED For B. THIAGARAJAN & CO.,
SUNIL PALIWAL, A.S., P. RAVEENDRAN Egﬂrtggi‘i;\?”“ta“ts'
Chairman cum Managing Director Director ’
DIN: 01310101 DIN: 07640613
RAM SRINIVASAN
M. GUNASEKARAN JAYALAKSHMI SRINIVASAN Partner,
Chief Financial Officer & Compliance Officer Company Secretary M.No. 220112

UDIN: 20220112AAAABG1939

Place: Chennai
Date : 29" June 2020
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
CIN: U45203TN1999G01043322

Regd. Office: 2" Floor (North wing) & 3" Floor, Jawahar Building, 17, Rajaji Salai, Chennai - 600 001.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FORTHE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2020
(Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
A.CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/Loss Before Tax 44,798.70 34,384.89
Adjustment for:-
Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 0.00
Depreciation 5,213.04 4,668.40
Interest & Finance Charges 7,730.35 10,314.43
Short Term gain on Mutual Funds (148.83) (349.55)
Interest Income (623.14) (290.96)
Dividend received (51.01)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 56,919.12 48,727.22
Adjustment for:-
Loans & Advances (Non-Current) (72.79) (6.59)
Other Assets (Non-Current) (20.37) 87.55
Other non-current Assets 2991.95 (232.85)
Trade Receivables (1,778.43) (201.31)
Loans & Advances 29.18 3.98
Other Assets 10.25 9.81
Other Current Assets 628.92 (1,497.26)
Other Financial Liabilities (Non-Current) 266.83 82.96
Other Non-current Liabilities (2,445.24) 1,105.94
Trade payables (4,294.05) (851.54)
Other Financial Liabilities 579.22 (2,649.86)
Other current liabilities 124.40 567.67
Provisions (309.99) 265.64
Current Tax Payments (7,341.63) (7,762.91)
Net Cash From Operating Activities 45,287.37 37,648.45
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed Assets (12,902.47) (15,098.42)
Investments made during the Year (25.04) (2.00)
Short Term gain on Mutual Funds 148.83 349.55
Interest Income 623.14 290.96
Dividend received 51.01
Net Cash From Investing Activities (12,104.53) (14,459.91)
C.CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid during the Year (9,041.68) (14,466.64)
Loans raised during the year 0.00 9,000.00
Loans repaid during the year (9,673.95) (8,927.09)
Interest & Finance Charges (7,730.35) (8,874.08)
Net Cash From Financing Activities (26,445.98) (23,267.81)
D. Net changes in Cash & Cash equivalents 6,736.86 (79.27)
E. Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents (Note No 13) 3,183.94 3,263.20
F. Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents (Note No 13) 9,920.80 3,183.94
For KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED For B. THIAGARAJAN & CO.,
SUNIL PALIWAL, LA.S., P. RAVEENDRAN Chartered Accountants,
. . . f FRN.004371S
Chairman cum Managing Director Director
DIN: 01310101 DIN: 07640613
RAM SRINIVASAN
M. GUNASEKARAN JAYALAKSHMI SRINIVASAN Partner,
Chief Financial Officer & Compliance Officer Company Secretary M.No. 220112

UDIN: 20220112AAAABG1939

Place : Chennai
Date : 29" June 2020
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Statement of Changes In Equity Balance as at 315 March, 2020

Equity Share Capital

(Rupees in lakhs)

Balance as at April 1,2020

Changes in share capital during the year

Balance as at Dec 31, 2020

30,000

0.00

30,000

Balance as at April 1,2019

Changes in share capital during the year

Balance as at Mar 31, 2019

30,000 0.00 30,000
Other Equity
For the year ended 315 Mar, 2020 (Rupees in lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus Other Components of Equity
Debenture Remeasurement
Particulars Redemption | General | Retained | of NetDefined FVTOCI - Total
Reserve Reserve | Earnings | benefit Liability/ [ Investments
Asset

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 5,404.44 | 7,902.00 | 1,80,776.87 (19.82) (1961.76) | 192101.73
Changes in accounting policy prior period errors 0.00 0.00 (33.50) 0.00 0.00 (33.50)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 0.00 0.00 24902.81 0.00 0.00| 24902.81
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 0.00 0.00 (22.69) 0.00 (22.69)
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 862.93 0.00 (862.93) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Final Dividend (Incl DDT) - F.Y. 2018-19 0.00 0.00 (9041.68) 0.00 0.00 | (9041.68)
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance at the end of the reporting period 6,267.37 | 7,902.00 | 1,95,741.57 (42.51) (1,961.76) | 2,07,906.66

Pursuant to Regulation 16 of the SEBI Debt Regulations and Section 71 C of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company creates Debenture
/ Bond Redemption Reserve (DRR) upto 25% of the value of bonds / debentures issued through public issue during the maturity period
of such bonds / debentures. Accordingly, during the year, the Company has created DRR amounting to Rs. 8,62,92,983/- (Previous year

Rs.8,62,92,983/-).
Other Equity

For the year ended 315 Mar, 2019 (Rupees in lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus

Other Components of Equity

Debenture Remeasurement
Particulars Redemption | General | Retained | of NetDefined FVTOCI - Total
Reserve | Reserve | Earnings | benefitLiability/ | Investments
Asset

Balance at the beginning of the reporting 454151 7,902.00( 16,2071.05 (1.51) (1,961.76) | 1,72,551.29
period

Changes in accounting policy prior period 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
errors

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 0.00 0.00 34,035.38 (18.31) 0.00 34,017.07
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 862.93 0.00 (862.93) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Dividend (incl DDT) of F.Y. 2017-18 0.00 0.00 (9,041.65) 0.00 0.00 | (9,041.65)
Interim Dividend (Incl DDT) - F.Y. 2018-19 0.00 0.00 (5,424.99) 0.00 0.00| (5424.99)
Balance at the end of the reporting period 5,404.44 | 7,902.00 | 1,80,776.86 (19.82) (1,961.76) | 1,92,101.73
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
CIN: U45203TN1999G0I1043322
Regd. Office: 2" Floor (North wing) & 3" Floor, Jawahar Building, 17, Rajaji Salai, Chennai - 600 001.

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Corporate Information:

Kamarajar Port Limited is a Public Limited Company
domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company
is operating mostly on landlord port model limiting
its functions to overall planning, development,
mobilization of investments for the development
of port and common infrastructure facilities. The
development and operations of the terminals are
mostly entrusted to private operators/captive users.

2. Basis of Preparation :

The Company has adopted Ind-AS, in accordance
with Notification dated February 16,2015 issued by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,
with effect from April 01, 2016 with a transition date
of April 01, 2015.

Allamounts included in the financial statements are
reported in Indian rupees (Rupees in Lacs) except
equity shares, which are expressed in numbers.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
3.1. Use of estimates and judgment:

The preparation of stand-alone financial statements
of the Company requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities.

3.2. Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian
rupees, the national currency of India, which is the
functional currency of the Company.

3.3. Revenue Recognition:

1 Revenue from services is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable
net of discounts and excluding taxes and
duties. Revenue from service rendered will be
recognised upon completion of services. Revenue
is recognised when following conditions are met

i) theamount of revenue can be measured reliably;

ii) It is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity;

iii) the costsincurred for the transaction and the costs
to complete the transaction can be measured
reliably.

iv) Nosignificantuncertainty exists as to its collection.
Revenue stream includes:

i) Vessel Related Income.

ii) Cargo related income.

iii) Revenue share and Licence fee arising from
Leasing of land and waterfront on BOT and other
port users / captive users.

iv) Composite Tariff.

Revenue recognition in respect of each stream of
revenue is described below:

i) Vessel Related Income

Vessel related income consists of income from
handling of the vessels. Revenue attributable to Vessel
related operations are recognized on completion of
the specific services.

ii) Cargo related income

Cargo related income consists of income from
rendering services with respect to cargo and are
recognised on completion of related services

iii) Leasing of land and waterfront on BOT/Captive
use basis.

a) Revenue share from BOT operators is calculated
at the quoted % on the gross revenue as per
concession / licence agreement on accrual basis
up to end of the financial year.

b) Income from Operating Lease which include
escalation clause in line with the general inflation
trends is accounted as per terms of the contract.

c) Income from other Operating Lease is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the term of lease.



d) Contingent Rent is recognized as income in the
period in which they accrue.

iv) Composite Tariff

Composite Tariff represents the income earned at
a composite tariff for the cargo handled by captive
users.

2 Dividend income from investments is recognized
when the Company’s right to receive payment is
established and it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transactions will flow
to the Company and the amount of income can
be measured reliably.

3 a) Interest income from financial instruments
is recognized when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows through
the expected life of the financial instruments
to that instrument’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

b) Interestincome on belated/disputed revenue
are recognised on realization basis.

3.4. Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are
capitalized until the property, plant and equipment
are ready for use, as intended by the Management. The
Company depreciates property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognized as an asset if, and only if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The cost of an item of PPE
is the cash price equivalent at the recognition date.

The cost of an item of PPE comprises:
i) Purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade

discounts, rebates, taxes/duties and cess on which
input credit for capital goods is availed.
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ii) Costs directly attributable to bringing the PPE to
the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

iii) The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which
itis located.

The amounts becoming payable by the Company on
account of uncontested arbitral awards on project
claims and interest on such awards up to the date
of commissioning of the asset are capitalized in the
year of award as additions during the year in the
respective asset category. The interest after the date
of commissioning of the asset on such awards payable
to the contractor is treated as revenue expenditure
in the year of award.

When parts of an item of Property, Plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components)
of property, Plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount
of Property, Plant and equipment and are stated at
net values under“Other Income/ Other Expenses”in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

The Company has chosen the cost model for
recognition and this model is applied to all class of
assets. After recognition as an asset, an item of PPE is
carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Major repairs and overhauling costs:

The Company recognises in the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, the cost of replacing
part of such an item when that cost is incurred, cost of
major repairs/ overhauling if the recognition criteria
are met. The carrying amount of replaced part is
derecognised and the cost of repairs is amortized
over the remaining useful life of the repair/ overhaul.

3.5. Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any.

Identifiable intangible assets are recognized when the
Company controls the asset; it is probable that future
economic benefits expected with the respective assets



KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

will flow to the Company for more than one economic
period; and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. Amortisation is provided on Straight Line
Method (SLM), which reflect the management’s
estimate of the useful life of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure
forms part of carrying value of another asset.

3.6. Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an item of PPE is allocated
on a straight line basis over its useful life as prescribed
in the manner specified in Schedule Il of Companies
Act, 2013.

For each part of an item of PPE with a cost that is
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset and
useful life of that part is different from remaining part
of the asset, is depreciated separately. Depreciation
on all such items is provided from the date they are
‘Available for Use' till the date of sale / disposal and
includes amortization of intangible assets. Freehold
land is not depreciated. An item of PPE is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.In
case of port specific assets, the depreciation is charged
at the rate as determined in accordance with the life of
those assets as per the practice prevailing in Major ports
in India. Depreciation on addition in value of assets due
to arbitral award is claimed over the remaining useful
life of the assets from the start of the financial year in
which such award is passed and accepted.

3.7. Borrowing Costs

The Company capitalises borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying asset as a part of the cost of
the asset. The Company recognises other borrowing
costs as an expense in the period in which it incurs
them. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale.

To the extent the Company borrows generally and
uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying

asset, amount of borrowing cost eligible for
capitalization is computed by applying a capitalization
rate to the expenditure incurred. The capitalization
rate is determined based on the weighted average
of borrowing costs, other than borrowings made
specifically towards purchase of a qualifying asset.
Borrowing costs also includes exchange differences
to the extent as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

3.8. Foreign Currency Transactions:

Transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency are recognized at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates prevailing at the reporting date.

Foreign currency monetary items (except where
realisability of overdue receivable is uncertain) are
converted using the closing rate as defined in the
Ind AS-21. Non-monetary items are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. The
exchange difference gain/loss is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.9. Government Grant

Government grants are recognised where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all related conditions are complied with. These
grants are classified as grants relating to assets or
revenue based on the nature of the grants.

Grants relating to depreciable assets are initially
recognised as deferred revenue and subsequently
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
asset generally in the same proportion in which
depreciation is charged on the depreciable assets
acquired out of such contribution. Changes in
estimates are recognised prospectively over the
remaining life of the assets.

Grants in the form of revenue grant are recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Grants in the form of non-monetary assets such as
land and other resources are recognised at fair value



and presented as deferred income which income is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over
the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption
of the benefit of the underlying asset.

3.10. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
A provision is reversed when it is no longer probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects ,when appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.

3.11. Contingent Liabilities / Assets:

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed
in Notes to the Accounts when the Company has
possible obligation due to past events and existence
of the obligation depends upon occurrence or non-
occurrence of future events not wholly within the
control of the Company.

Contingent liabilities are assessed continuously to
determine whether outflow of economic resources
have become probable. If the outflow becomes
probable then relative provision is recognized in the
financial statements.

Where an entity is jointly and severally liable for
an obligation, the part of the obligation that is
expected to be met by other parties is also treated as
a contingent liability. The entity recognises a provision
for the part of the obligation for which an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is probable,
exceptin the extremely rare circumstances where no
reliable estimate can be made.
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Contingent Assets:

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial
statement or disclosed in Notes.

3.12. Employee benéefits:
i) Defined Benefit Plan:

Provision for gratuity, leave encashment/availment
and other terminal benefits is made on the basis of
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling and the return on plan assets excluding
interest (if applicable), is reflected immediately in
the statement of financial position with a charge or
credit recognized in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement
recognized in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and will
not be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii) Defined Contribution Plan:

Contribution to Provident Fund is recorded as
expenses on accrual basis.

iii) Short Term Employee Benefits:

Short term employee benefits obligations are
measured on an undiscounted basis and expensed
as the related services are provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid
under short-term employee benefits if the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

3.13. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the Statement of Profitand Loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet
approach on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
itis nolonger probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to
be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

The break-up of the major components of the
deferred tax assets and liabilities as at balance sheet
date is arrived at after setting off deferred tax assets
and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.

3.14. Impairment:

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit/Fixed Assets) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its

recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognized immediately in Statement of Profitand
Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company
reviews the carryingamounts of its tangible, intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
forimpairment at least annually or whenever there is
an indication that the asset may be impaired.

3.15. Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per equity are computed by dividing
the net profit attributable to the equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per equity share is computed by dividing
the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity



shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
equity share and also the weighted average number
of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.16. Financial instruments:

i) Non-derivative financial instruments:

Non-derivative financial instruments consist of:

Financialassetsinclude cashand cashequivalents,
trade receivables, employee advances, other
advances, security deposits, investments in
equity securities and other eligible current/non-
current assets;

Financial liabilities include long/short-term loan,
borrowings, trade payables, security deposits,
retention monies and other eligible current/
non-current liabilities.

Non derivative financial instruments are
recognized initially at fair value including any
directly attributable transaction costs except
financial instrument measured at fair value
through Statement of Profit and Loss which are
initially measured at fair value. Financial assets
are derecognized when substantial risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset have
been transferred. In cases where substantial risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets
are neither transferred nor retained, financial
assets are derecognized only when the Company
has not retained control over the financial asset.

Subsequent to initial recognition, non-derivative
financial instruments are measured as described
below:

Investments in, equity securities (other than
Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and Associates) are
valued at their fair value. These investments
are measured at fair value and changes therein,
other than impairment losses, are recognized
in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income.
The impairment losses, if any, are reclassified
from Other Equity to Statement of Profit and
Loss. When an available for sale financial asset
is derecognized, the related cumulative gain or
loss recognised in Other Equity is transferred to
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b)

c)

d)

e)
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Loans and receivables

Loansand receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They
are presented as current assets, except for those
maturing later than 12 months after the reporting
date which are presented as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables are initially recognized at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Loans and receivables
comprise trade receivables, unbilled revenues,
staff advances, security deposits paid and other
assets.

The Company estimates the un-collectability
of accounts receivable by analysing historical
payment patterns, customer concentrations,
customer credit-worthiness and current
economic trends. If the financial condition of a
customer deteriorates, evaluation is made for
additional allowances required, if any.

Trade and other payables:

Trade and other payables are initially recognized
at fair value, and subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest
method. For these financial instruments, the
carrying amounts are approximate fair value due
to the short term maturity of these instruments.

Security Deposits

Security Deposits are initially recognized at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

Tax Free Bonds:

Tax free bonds are recognized initially at fair value
net of transaction costs. In subsequent periods,
Tax free bonds are presented at amortised
cost using effective interest method. Interest
expenses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as financial expenses over the life
of the tax free bonds using effective interest rate.



KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

ii) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at Fair Value through
Profit and Loss (FVTPL), are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have been affected. For Available
for Sale (AFS) equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

¢ Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

e Breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e Probability that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the
disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Certain categories of financial assets such as
trade receivables are assessed for impairment on
individual basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include companies
past experience of collecting payments, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount
of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables; such
impairment loss is reduced through the use of an
allowance account for respective financial asset. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent

recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of theimpairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and
Loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognized.

iii) De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another party. If the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Company continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognized in profit or loss.

3.17. Segment Information

The Chairman cum Managing Director (CMD) of the
Company is identified as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS-108, “Operating
Segments.” The CMD of the Company evaluates the
segments based on standalone financial statements.
The Management considers“Port Services”rendered
in India as a single reportable Business/Geographical
segment.



3.18. Prior Period

Errors of material amount relating to prior period(s)
are disclosed by a note with nature of prior period
errors, amount of correction of each such prior period
presented retrospectively, to the extent practicable
along with change in basic and diluted earnings per
share. However where retrospective restatement
is not practicable for a particular period then the
circumstances that lead to the existence of that
condition and the description of how and from
where the error is corrected are disclosed in Notes
on Accounts.

3.19. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-Use Assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets (“RoU
Assets”) at the commencement date of the lease
(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any re measurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation
is calculated using the estimated useful life of the
asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to
impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in
Section (I) Impairment of non-financial assets.
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ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company
recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on anindex or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred
to produce inventories) in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is re measured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option
to purchase the underlying asset. Lease liabilities has
been presented under the head “Other Financial
Liabilities” Lease liabilities has been presented under
the head “Other Financial Liabilities”.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption that are considered to be
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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As alessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating lease is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts
due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the Company’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the net investment outstanding in
respect of the lease.

3.20. Current/Non-Current Classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in
the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification.An asset is classified as current if:

(a) itis expected to be realized or sold or consumed in
the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c) itisexpected to be realized within twelve months
after the reporting period; or

(d) itis cash ora cash equivalent unless it is restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current if:

(a) itisexpected to be settled in normal operating
cycle;

(b) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c) it is expected to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period;

(d) it has no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between acquisition of
assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company’s normal operating
cycle is twelve months.

3.21. Dividend distribution to shareholders:

Dividends proposed by the board of directors are
recognized in the financial statements when approved
by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

3.22. Prepaid expenses

Revenue expenditure under each head are segregated
into current year and prepaid wherever the amount
exceeds Rs.20,000/-

3.23. Premia for foreclosure

Premia for foreclosure of loans or any part thereof is
recognised as finance cost in the year in which the
foreclosure is effected.

3.24. Liquidated damages

Liquidated damages is accounted on certainty basis.
In respect of Capital Projects, the same will be reduced
from the cost of asset and in all other cases, the same
is recognized as Other Income.

3.25. Statement of Cash Flows

Cash Flows are reported using the Indirect Method.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, at banks
and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and are
considered part of the Company’s cash management
system.



4. Property, Plant and Equipment
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(Rupees in lakhs)

Gross
carrying . Gro_ss Accumulated - . Accuml_lla.ted Carrying
Particulars valueas | Additions D_lsposall carrying depreciation as LS i leposall it Value as at
atApril1, adjustments |  value as at at April 1, 2019 fortheyear | adjustments | asatMar Mar 31,2020
2019 Mar 31,2020 31,2020

Land 5899447| 496161 63,956.08 - - - -] 63,956.08
Building,Sheds & Other | 11,22541| 1,159.99 -60.80| 12,324.60 889.29 300.64 -2.53 1,187.40| 11,137.20
Structures
Wharves & Boundaries | 64,369.47 53750 -421.07| 6448590 5,057.52 1,532.79 -12.99 6,577.32| 57,908.58
Roads 8,558.95 361.04 8,919.99 1,437.06 550.95 1,988.01 6,931.98
Railway Track & 7,660.95 7,660.95 1,765.42 493.64 2,259.06| 5401.89
Signalling System
Docks,Seawalls, Piers & | 57,581.56 56.30 57,637.86 11,143.33 753.87 11,897.20 | 45,740.66
Break Water
Navigational Aids 381.67 - 381.67 283.77 6.61 290.38 91.29
Vehicles 111.63 72.84 184.47 28.19 1391 4210 14237
Electrical Installations 1,716.76 145.26 1,862.02 925.07 13533 1,060.40 801.62
Installation For Water, 306.19 306.19 141.08 8.69 149.77 156.42
Communication & Fire
Syst
Electrical Appliance 19248 6.12 198.60 91.67 16.93 108.60 90.00
Office Equipment 177.98 11.05 189.03 129.99 14.80 144.79 4424
Furniture & Fittings 921.56 9.23 930.79 345.45 7411 419.56 511.23
Computers 849.36 7.30 856.66 305.09 121.79 426.88 429.78
Port Basin & Entrance 79,74349| 5177.27 84,920.76 4,669.10 800.89 5469.99| 79450.77
Channel
Plant & Machinery 1,099.46 - 1,099.46 567.80 160.35 728.15 371.31
Security Asset 53.71 11.38 65.09 46.07 6.14 52.21 12.88
Total 2,93,945.10| 12,516.89 | (481.87)| 3,05,980.12 27,825.91 4,991.44 (15.52) 32,801.82  2,73,178.30

a.  The Company owns land measuring 2802.49 acres acquired from GoTN, TNEB, TIDCO and Salt Department, Ministry of Commerce, out of which
2787.27 acres is under possession of the Company and the balance 15.22 acres of land is yet to take possession.

b.  The Company procured 950 acres of land from TIDCO, out of which 297.98 acres got registered in the name of the Company and the balance
registration is in progress. The Company procured 1092.20 acres of land from TANGEDCO, out of which 995.05 acres got registered in the name
of the Company and the balance registration is in progress. The Company procured 712.42 acres of land from Salt Department, out of which
682.66acres got registered in the name of the Company and the balance registration is in progress. The Company acquired 47.87 acres of land from
GoTN, out of which 32.65 acres for which Patta obtained in the name of Company and the balance is in progress.

¢ Land measuring in Sq.m. 134600, 542524, 472460, 384780 (Phase | &ll), 171611, 520000 (total measuring 550.05 acres) allotted to BOT operators
viz. M/s. Ennore Tank Terminals Private Limited, M/s. Chettinad International Coal Terminal Private Limited and M/s. SICAL Iron Ore Terminals
Limited, M/s. Adani Container Terminal Private Limited, M/s. Chettinad Bulk Terminal Private Limited and IOC LNG Private Ltd respectively.

Building, Sheds & Other Structures

Disposal / adjustments includes the Company had filed claim for refund of service tax paid on works contract forming part of “original works” on which
was pending before CESTAT Appeals. As a matter of abundant caution, recoverable in this regard was not recognised in the books of account and the
same was capitalised as part of cost of fixed assets. Vide order of dated 16.03.2020, refund has been sanctioned by the Government authority to th
extent of Rs.436.74 lakhs and the balance 45.12 lakh were recovered from the EPC contractor who failed to proivde the Tax challan. Accordingly, the
amount of Rs. 481.86 lakhs has been adjusted against the gross block of fixed assets as at 31 March, 2020. The cumulative depreciation impact of the
same amounts to Rs.15.52 lakhs, which has been adjusted against the depreciation for the year.
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Property, Plant and Equipment
(Rupees in lakhs)

Gro§s Gross Accumulated .
. carrying " Disposal/ carrying Accunjul_a = Depreciation | Disposal/ | depreciation i
Particulars valueas | Additions | . depreciation as . Value as at
atApril 1, adjustments |  value as at at April 1, 2018 fortheyear | adjustments | asatMar Mar 31,2019
2018 Mar 31,2019 31,2019
Land 59,033.03 0.00| (3855)| 5899447 0.00| 58994.47
Building,Sheds & Other 7883.37| 3,342.03 000 11,2254 648.21 241.08 0.00 889.29| 10,336.12
Structures
Wharves & Boundaries | 35,113.72| 29,255.75 0.00| 6436947 3643.14 1,414.38 0.00 5057.52| 59311.95
Roads 5064.55| 3,494.40 0.00 8,558.95 1098.03 339.03 0.00 1,437.06 7121.89
Railway Track & 7,247.71 413.24 0.00 7,660.95 1285.90 479.51 0.00 1,76542(  5895.53
Signalling System
Docks,Seawalls,Piers& | 53,155.23| 4,426.33 0.00| 57,581.56 10,389.54 753.79 000 11,14333| 4643823
Break Water
Navigational Aids 277.27 104.40 0.00 381.67 277.27 6.50 0.00 283.77 97.90
Vehicles 111.63 0.00 0.00 111.63 15.84 1235 0.00 28.19 8344
Electrical Installations 1,711.22 5.55 0.00 1,716.76 797.55 127.52 0.00 925.07 791.69
Installation For Water, 306.19 0.00 0.00 306.19 132.39 8.69 0.00 141.08 165.11
Communication & Fire
Syst
Electrical Appliance 187.13 5.35 0.00 192.48 74.74 16.93 0.00 91.67 100.81
Office Equipment 168.57 9.41 0.00 177.98 112.03 17.96 0.00 129.99 47.99
Furniture & Fittings 791.05 130.51 0.00 921.56 274.67 70.79 0.00 34545 576.11
Computers 71878 130.58 0.00 849.36 196.32 108.77 0.00 305.09 544.26
Port Basin & Entrance 79,743.49 0.00 0.00| 7974349 3,912.28 756.82 0.00 4,669.10| 7507439
Channel
Plant & Machinery 1,099.46 0.00 0.00 1,099.46 40744 160.35 0.00 567.80 531.66
Security Asset 53.71 0.00 0.00 53.71 40.13 5.94 0.00 46.07 7.64
Total 2,52,666.10 | 41,317.56| (38.55)| 2,93,945.11 23,305.48 4,520.41 0.00| 27,825.90| 2,66,119.21
4 (a) Right of Use Assets
(Rupees in lakhs)
Gross Gross Accumulated
" . . Accumulated L . . .
Particulars @rrying | o1 itions D_lsposall carrying depreciation as Depreciation leposall depreciation | Carrying Value as
val_ue asat adjustments | valueasat at April 1, 2019 fortheyear | adjustments | asatMar | atMar31,2020
April 1,2019 Mar 31,2020 ! 31,2020
Leased assets 2,002.42 - 2,002.42 341.18 86.02 - 427.20 1,575.22
of Registered
office
Total 2,002.42 0.00 0.00| 2,002.42 341.18 86.02 0.00 427.20 1,575.22
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(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Balanceasat | Additions/ Adjustemnts Capitalized Balance as at
April 1,2019 during the year during the year Mar, 312020
CWIP - Building,Sheds & Other Structures 1,810.17 790.39 -1,386.37 1,214.19
CWIP - Wharves & Boundaries 6.90 0.00 0.00 6.90
CWIP - Roads 859.28 3,741.38 -337.16 4,263.50
CWIP - Railway Track & Signalling System 2,709.93 1,196.12 0.00 3,906.05
CWIP -Docks,Seawalls,Piers & Break Water 2415 0.00 0.00 2415
CWIP -Navigational Aids 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CWIP -Vehicles 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CWIP -Electrical Installations 34.91 195.61 -167.54 62.98
CWIP - Installation For Water, Communication & Fire Sys 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CWIP - Electrical Appliance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CWIP - Office Equipment 4.50 11.38 -15.88 0.00
CWIP - Computers 0.32 0.04 -0.37 0.00
CWIP - Port Basin & Entrance Channel 4,443.98 877.87 -5,177.27 144.58
CWIP - Plant & Machinery 0.00 1,139.53 0.00 1,139.53
CWIP-Computer software 0.42 0.00 -0.42 0.00
Total 9,894.56 7,952.32 (7,085.03) 10,761.88
Capital Work- In- Progress
(Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars Balanceasat | Additions/Adjustemnts Capitalized Balance as at
April 1,2018 during the year during the year Mar, 312019
CWIP - Building, Sheds & Other Structures 3,206.77 1,945.43 -3,342.04 1,810.17
CWIP - Wharves & Boundaries 28,443.70 818.95 -29,255.75 6.90
CWIP - Roads 2,252.52 2,101.16 -3,494.40 859.28
CWIP - Railway Track & Signalling System 1,912.00 1,211.17 -413.24 2,709.93
CWIP - Docks, Seawalls, Piers & Break Water 24.15 0.00 0.00 24.15
CWIP - Navigational Aids 62.64 41.76 -104.40 0.00
CWIP - Vehicles 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CWIP - Electrical Installations 41.52 -1.26 -5.35 34.91
CWIP - Installation For Water, 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Communication & Fire Sys
CWIP - Electrical Appliance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CWIP - Office Equipment 0.00 5.25 -0.75 4,50
CWIP - Computers 82.37 14.12 -96.16 0.32
CWIP - Port Basin & Entrance Channel 144.58 4,299.40 0.00 4,443.98
CWIP - Plant & Machinery 0.00 0.00 -0.00 0.00
CWIP-Computer software 0.00 95.54 -95.12 0.42
CWIP - Furniture & Fittings 0.00 1.80 -1.80 0.00
Total 36,170.25 10,533.31 (36,809.02) 9,894.55




KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

6. Intangible Assets - Software

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Gross carrying value as at April 1 1,077.01 981.90
Additions 0.13 95.11
Disposal/adjustments 0.00
Gross carrying value as at Mar 31 1,077.14 1,077.01
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1 317.18 169.19
For the Year 151.10 147.99
On Disposal/adjustments
Accumulated depreciation as at Mar 31 468.28 317.18
Carrying Value as at Mar 31 608.86 759.84
7. Investments
(Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Non-Current
Investment in Shares-Quoted
10000 shares in Dredging corporation of India 25.04 0.00
(Market value as at 31t March 2020 - Rs.14,54,500/-)
Investment in Shares - Unquoted
Equity Shares of Sethusamudram Corporation Ltd 3,000.00 3,000.00
Less: Provision for Dimunition in value of Investments -3,000.00 -3,000.00
Equity Shares of Chennai Ennore Port Road Company Ltd 3,400.00 3,400.00
Equity Shares of Indian Port Rail Corporation Limited 720.00 720.00
Equity Shares of Kanniyakumari Port Limited 2.00 2.00
Investments in Renewable Energy Certificate 1.00 1.00
Total 4,148.04 4,123.00
Current
Investments in Liquid Funds 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00

#. As the dredging work is suspended from 14.09.2007 upon the direction of the Hon’ble Supreme Court
of India and as there is no further progress in the project since then, the Management has provided for
dimunition towards the Investments in Equity shares of Sethusamudram Corporation Limited.

8.Loans & Advances

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019

Long Term

Secured (considered good)

Advances to Employees (House Building Advance) 394.59 334.77
Advances to Employees (Vehicle Advance) 14.15 1.17
Total 408.74 335.94
Short Term

Secured (considered good)

Advances to Employees (House Building Advance) 4498 57.51
Advances to Employees (Vehicle Advance) 5.56 6.78
Advances to Employees (Others) 2.40 17.83
Total 52.94 82.13
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(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Long Term
Deposits 187.20 166.82
Interest accrued on: 0.00 0.00
-Advances to Related Parties 0.00 0.00
Total 187.20 166.82
Short Term
Interest accrued on:
-Short Term Deposits 9.94 20.19
-Advances to Related Parties 0.00 0.00
Income Receivable 0.00 0.00
Total 9.94 20.19
10. Tax Expense
Tax recognised in Statement of profit and loss (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Current income tax
Current year 7,827.23 7,338.00
0.00
Sub Total (A) 7,827.23 7,338.00
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 12,068.66 -6,988.49
Changes in tax rate
Change in accounting policy
Sub Total (B) 12,068.66 -6,988.49
Total (A+B) 19,895.89 349.51
Tax recognised in other comprehensive income
(Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Defined benefit plan acturial gains (losses) -12.19 -4.88
Dimunition in Value of Investments 0.00 0.00
Total -12.19 -4.88

* The Company is claiming exemption U/s 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company is paying Tax under MAT
Provisions of the Income Tax Act. Effective Tax rate of 17.472% is considered in reconciliation of Current Tax Expense.

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Deferred Tax Liability
Property, Plant & Equipment 28,831.69 22,520.84
Sub Total 28,831.69 22,520.84
Deferred tax Assets
Any Section 40a(ia) Disallowance - -
Any Section 43B Disallowance - -
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 45418 449.81
MAT Credit entitlement 50,930.42 56,698.24
Movement in Defined Benefit Plan 6.79 (0.95)
Dimunition in Investment 1,048.32 1,038.24
Others 237.12 237.12
Sub Total 52,676.83 58,422.46
Net Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) 23,845.14 35,901.62
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Movement in deferred tax balances during the year

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Balance as at Recognised in Recognised As at
April 1,2019 profit & loss in OCI Mar 31, 2020
Property, plant and equipment (22,520.84) (6,310.85) -28,831.69
Employee benefits (0.95) (4.45) 12.19 6.79
TDS Disallowance - - 0.00
Provisions 449.81 437 45418
MAT Credit Entitlement * 56,698.24 (5,767.82) 50,930.42
Others 237.12 - 23712
Dimunition in Investments 1,038.24 10.08 1,048.32
Total 35,901.62 (12,068.66) 12.19 23,845.14

* Movement in MAT Credit Entitlement includes reversal of a sum of Rs. 7513.30 lakhs which represents excess MAT Credit
recognised in the books of accounts in earlier years.

Particulars Balance as at Recognised in Recognised Balance As at
April 1, 2018 profit & loss in OCI Mar 31, 2019
Property, plant and equipment (22,175.05) (345.79) -22,520.84
Employee benefits 2.77 (3.72) -0.95
TDS Disallowance - 0.00
Provisions 449.81 - 44981
MAT Credit Entitlement 49,360.24 7,338.00 56,698.24
Others 237.12 237.12
Dimunition in Investments 1,038.24 1,038.24
Total 28,913.13 6,988.49 - 35,901.62
Unrecognised Deferred tax assets
Deffered tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Deductible temporary differences 0.00 0.00
Tax losses 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00
11. Other Assets
(Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Non-Current
Advance to Contractors 0.00 0.00
Advance for Capital Expenditure 10,108.65 13,434.92
Prepaid Lease Rental 0.00 0.00
Deferred Employee Cost 137.78 126.04
Deferred Fair Valuation Gain - Security Deposits 173.40 0.00
Advance against Arbitration Award 0.00 170.14
Balance with Government Authorities 453.49 134.17
Total 10,873.32 13,865.28
Current
Advance to Contractors 971.86 0.00
Prepaid Expenses 96.30 251.57
Service Tax Input Credit/GST 761.92 1,566.92
Deferred Employee Cost 0.00 0.00
Amount Recoverable from Others 188.69 829.21
Total 2,018.77 2,647.70

Advance for Capital expenditure under Non-currentincludes Rs.4509.50 lakhs being excess payment to Project contractors
referred to High Court of Madras at the time of taken over the Assets and liabilities from Chennai Port Trust on 22.06.2001.
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Balances with Government Authorities under Non-Current portion includes advance payment of Rs.16.75 lakhs paid
towards “Sabka Vishwas Scheme”. Further, it includes refund of Rs. 436.74 lakhs receivable from Service Tax Department,
being amount paid on Original works as per relevant Notification which was subsequently received on 12t June 2020.

Advance against Arbitration Award includes 75% of the disputed amount paid as per the guidelines of NITI Aayog in
Escrow account in respect of pending dispute with ECPP contractor. The case was decided in favour of the ECPP contractor
in the High Court of Madaras before the year end and consequently, the Company entered a Settlement Agreement with

the ECPP contractor on 26.05.2020.

12.Trade Receivables

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31,2019
Trade receivables
Debtors outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the
date they become due for payment

- Unsecured - Considered good 854.82 3.03

- Doubtful 1,299.74 1,299.74
Other debtors (Less than six months)

- Unsecured - Considered good 3,961.76 3,035.12
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts -1,299.74 -1,299.74
Total 4,816.59 3,038.16

13. Cash & Cash Equivalents (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Cash on hand 0.00 0.00
Cheques, Drafts on hand 0.00 0.00
Balances with Banks 2,920.80 1,683.93
Sub-total (A) 2,920.80 1,683.93
Other Bank Balances
- Term Deposit
- Less than 3 months 0.00 1,500.00
- More than 3 months but less than 12 months 7,000.00 0.00
Sub-total (B) 7,000.00 1,500.00
Total 9,920.80 3,183.93
14. Current Tax Assets (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31,2019
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source 66,006.00 58,664.36
Provision for Income Tax -65,617.23 -57,790.00
Total 388.77 874.36
15. Equity Share Capital (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Authorized
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
500,000,000 equity shares 50,000.00 50,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
300,000,000 equity shares 30,000.00 30,000.00
30,000.00 30,000.00
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Reconciliation of Share Capital:

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020
No of Shares Amount
Opening Equity Shares 300000000 3000000000
Add: -No. of Shares, Share Capital issued/ subscribed during the year 0 0
Closing balance 300000000 3000000000
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2019
No of Shares Amount
Opening Equity Shares 300000000 3000000000
Add: -No. of Shares, Share Capital issued/ subscribed during the year 0 0
Closing balance 300000000 3000000000

Shares in the Company held by shareholder holding more

than 5 percent

Name of the Shareholder % As at Mar 31,2020 Asat Mar 31,2019
Government of India 0% 0 20,000
Chennai Port Trust 100% 30,000 10,000

Government of India disinvested its entire Equity shares held in the Company to Chennai Port Trust through Share

Purchase Agreement entered on 25.03.2020.

16. Borrowings

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
SECURED - LONG TERM
Term Loan
Chennai Port Trust 22,807.50 25,108.75
Foreign Currency Loan from Axis Bank 8,868.90 16,264.82
Tax Free Bonds
(i) Series 2012-13 9,416.85 9,404.88
(ii) Series 2013-14 36,428.84 36,417.59
Total 77,522.09 87,196.04

Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Bonds

(i) Redeemable at par, 829334 Nos of 10 Year Bonds of Face
value - Rs.1000/- each amounting to Rs.82,93,34,000/-
are due on 25.03.2023 and 117156 Nos of 15 Year
bonds of Face Value - Rs.1000/- each amounting to
Rs.11,71,56,000/- are due on 25.03.2028 with interest
rates @ 7.51% and 7.67% to Retail Investors and 7.01%
and 7.17% to others respectively, payable annually. The
bonds are secured against the assets of the Company
viz. Small Craft Jetty - 1, 2 and 3 and General Cargo Berth
pursuant to the terms of the Bond Trust Deed registered
on 25.03.2013.

(i) Redeemable at par, 794951 Nos of 10 Year
Bonds of Face value - Rs.1000/- each amounting to
Rs.79,49,51,000/- are due on 25.03.2024 and 1916630
Nos of 15 Year bonds of Face Value - Rs.1000/- each
amounting to Rs.191,66,30,000/- are due on 25.03.2029
and 943142 Nos of 20 Year Bonds of Face Value - Rs.1000/-

100

each amount to Rs.94,31,42,000/- are due on 25.03.2034
with interest rates @ 8.61%, 9% and 9% respectively to
Retail Investors and 8.36%, 8.75% and 8.75% respectively
to others, payable annually. The bonds are secured
against the assets of the Company viz. North Break Water
pursuant to the terms of the Bond Trust Deed registered
on 19.03.2014.

Term loan from Chennai Port Trust

Term Loan due to Chennai Port Trust converted at the
time of taken over of assets & liabilities in the year 2001-
02 and is repayable in 60 Equated Quarterly instalments
commencing from 30.06.2012. The instalments are paid
up to date during this period. The above loan is secured
by hypothecation of specifically earmarked immovable
fixed assets of the Company. The Company has borrowed
an additional amount of Rs.70 crs and Rs 20 crs on
18.06.2018 and 29.09.2018 respectively on the same
terms and conditions of the original loan.



Foreign Currency Loan from Axis Bank

Axis Bank has sanctioned Foreign Currency Loan
(FCL) 100 USD Million on 30.03.2017 against Trade
receivables @ interest rate of 6M Libor Plus 195
BPS repayable within Five Year including one year
moratorium. The Company has availed 47 USD Million
during the year 2017-18. The Company also hedged
the 6M Libor Rate in excess of 250 basis points (bps)
has been hedged in order to protect Interest Rate Risk.

17. Other Financial Liabilities
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Overdraft Facility from State Bank of India

State Bank of India sanctioned clean Overdraft
facilities of Rs.50 Crores towards Fund Based and
Rs.10 Crores towards Non-fund based limits @ One
year MCLR Plus 0.15%. The Company has entered
loan agreement on 31¢ January, 2020.

However, no facilities were availed as on 315t March
2020.

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31,2020 AsatMar31,2019
Long Term
Security Deposits 275.97 265.87
Retention Money Payable 290.18 3345
Total 566.15 299.32
Short term
Current maturies of long term debt
- Chennai Port Trust 2,301.25 2,301.25
- Foreign Currency Loan from Axis Bank 8,935.25 8,129.83
Security Deposits 260.63 140.98
Retention Money Payable 350.98 675.38
Amount Payable to Employees 0.48 0.84
Other Liabilities 198.86 219.95
Total 12,047.45 11,468.23
18. Provisions (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Non- Current
FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Leave Encashment 0.00 0.00
Gratuity 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00
Current
FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Leave Encashment 7.65 5.21
Gratuity 11.79 20.09
Performance Related Pay 200.00 299.10
Sub Total (A) 219.44 324.40
OTHER
Expenses
- Revenue 748.79 583.73
- Capital 65.27 366.97
Sub Total (B) 814.06 950.70
Total(A+B) 1,033.50 1,275.11
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19. Other Liabilities

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Non-Current
Income Received in Advance 6,956.78 7,494.71
Advance Lease Charges 781.21 826.21
Other Liabilities 0.00 1,827.43
Deferred Fair Valuation Gain - Security Deposits 588.85 604.06
Government Grant 8.14 27.81
Total 8,334.98 10,780.21
Current
Income Received in Advance 814.61 597.00
Other Statutory Payables 1,313.69 2,034.46
Advance Received from Customers 1,981.23 1,353.66
Advance Lease Charges 45.00 45.00
Total 4,154.53 4,030.12

Income received in advance of Rs.6956.78 lakhs under Non-Current includes an amount from Indian Oil LNG Private
Limited towards upfront licence fees for 30 years for 5,20,000 sq.m. Land allotted for the construction of LNG Terminal

as per the Licence Agreement dated 31 July 2015.

20.Trade Payables

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020 As at Mar 31, 2019
Total outstanding dues of micro and small scale Industrial Undertaking(s). 0.00 0.00
(Due over 30 days " Nil/-)
Total outstanding dues of Medium scale Industrial Undertaking(s). 0.00 0.00
(Due over 30 days " Nil/-)

Others 1,229.15 5,523.20
Total 1,229.15 5,523.20
21. Revenue From Operations (Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019

Lease Income
Composite Tariff on Coal 21,361.49 25,568.34
Estate Income 4,473.35 3215.36
Revenue Share 19,182.64 20,454.02
Marine Services
Vessel Related Income 17,616.88 16,318.16
Cargo Related Service
Wharfage 6,922.01 50,88.82
Royalty 622.36 -
Other Operating Revenues
Other Services 138.76 153.51
Total 70,317.50 70,798.21
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(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019

Interest from Banks 415.85 4540
Interest on Staff Advances 4261 34.98
Interest - Others 164.68 210.57
Short Term Gain from Mutual Fund 148.83 349.55
Dividend received 51.01 0.00
Other non operating income

Sale of Tender Documents 0.08 0.15
Personnel & Vehicle Entry Pass 65.76 75.18
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 0.00
Liquidated Damages 1,892.30 0.00
Other Income 269.37 202.89
Total 3,050.49 918.73

Liquidated damages represents Rs.1892.30 lakhs received from BOT Operators for delay in commissioning of

operations.

Other income includes a sum of Rs.19.66 lakhs being depreciation charged on the asset (Oil Spill Response
Equpment) shown under Plant & Machinery procured out of Government Grant as per accounting policy of

the Company.
23. Operating Cost (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019

Time Charter Crafts 3,293.86 3139.16
Consultancy Services - Operations 364.85 213.89
Power & Water charges 215.90 224.96
Environment 473.75 264.26
Research & Development Expenses 0.00 6.42
Fuel Expense 769.46 833.03
Manning Services 646.55 603.56
Survey & Maintenance Dredging 8.58 13.22
Pilotage Expense 0.00 0.00
Repairs and Maintenance 815.62 906.23
Maintenance Dredging 94.12 0.00
Incentive 1,231.23 1,986.95
Insurance 244.96 116.48
Total 8,158.88 8,308.15

24, Employee Benefits (Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019

Salaries and Wages 1,400.68 1,369.93
Contribution to Provident Fund 117.17 105.07
Staff Welfare expenses 21.98 7.24
Performance Related Pay 152.99 100.00
Employee Medical expenses 75.30 85.72
Terminal Benefits 290.71 315.99
Total 2,058.83 1,983.95




KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

25. Finance Cost

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Interest Expense :
- From Banks 1,038.42 2,224.22
- Tax Free Bonds - 2012-13 686.11 685.43
- Tax Free Bonds - 2013-14 3,225.18 3,233.72
- Others 2,780.64 2,724.86
Other Borrowing Costs :
- Tax Free Bond Expenses 9.32 5.85
Net loss on Foreign currency transaction and translation to the extent 725.17 240.85
treated as Borrowing costs.
Total 8,464.84 9,114.93
26. Depreciation And Amortization Expenses (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Depreciation / Amortisation for the year
Tangible Assets 4,975.92 4,520.41
Right- of- Use Assets 86.02 88.35
Intagible Assets 151.10 147.99
Total 5,213.04 4,756.75
27.Other Expenses (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
AMC - Software Expenses 65.52 36.61
Auditors' remuneration
- Statutory audit 3.00 3.00
- Tax Audit Fees 0.50 0.50
- Payment for other Services 0.50 0.59
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.30 0.30
Books and periodicals 2.75 1.93
Electricity & Water Charges 122.86 99.34
Legal & Professional Charges 165.46 171.28
Miscellaneous Expense 124.42 149.78
Printing and stationery 17.19 32.34
Rent, Rates & Taxes 55.38 81.61
Safety & security expenses 1,277.89 1,043.35
Seminars & conference expenses 15.64 14.45
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 810.54 468.65
Subscription & Membership fees 119.58 155.92
Communication Expenses 62.22 73.83
Travelling and conveyance 44.71 38.65
Vehicle running expenses 294.73 300.10
Advertising and promotional expenses 47.59 116.86
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss 688.16 1,199.50
R & M Office 331.44 338.90
Total 4,250.38 4,327.49
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(@) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
(b) Amount spent during the year on :
(Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars In Cash EEettebeipaiclin
cash
Construction / acquisition of any asset 0.00 0.00
on purposes other than (i) above 810.54 0.00
810.54 0.00
28. Exceptional Items (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Interest paid on Arbitration/ Service tax 144.27 8383.04
Creek Maintenance 161.63 457.72
Service Tax Deposit - Dispute settlement 117.42 0.00
Total 423.32 8840.76

Interest on arbitration claims settled during the year with ECPP contractor, M/s. Afcons as per the guidelines of

Niti Aayog is shown under Exceptional items.

29, Earnings per Share
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 2492549819 3401590685
Weighted average number of shares - Basic 300000000 300000000
Weighted average number of shares - Diluted 300000000 300000000
Earnings per Share - Basic 8.31 11.34
Earnings per Share - Diluted 8.31 11.34
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Note 30 : Disclosure Notes

lll of the Companies Act, 2013

1. Commitments:

3. Additional information pursuant to Schedule

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Capital Commitments: Sl. Particulars 2019-20 | 2018-19
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to A |Expenditure in Foreign
be executed on Capital Expenditure (net of currency on: - -
advances) and not provided for Rs.23175.21 i. Professional and - 0.22
lakhs (Previous Year. Rs.30598.59 lakhs) consultancy fee 1,038.42 | 2,224.22
2. Payment to the Statutory Auditors ii. Tours and Travels i i
(Rupees in Lakhs) iii. Interest on FCL
Particulars 2019-20 | 2018-19 including Hedging
Audit Fees 3.00 3.00 iv. Others
Tax Audit Fees 0.50 0.50 B |Earnings in Foreign| 15.15 Nil
Certification fees 0.50 0.50 Exchange

Reimbursements:
- Out of Pocket Expenses 0.30 0.30
- Service Tax / GST 0.09 0.09

4. Information in respect of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 315 March 2020:

(In Rs. Lakhs)

Sl. Particulars 2019-20 | 2018-19
1 Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:
a) Principal Amount Nil Nil
b) Interest due thereon
2 | Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount paid Nil Nil
to the supplier beyond the appointed day;
3 | Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the Nil Nil
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;
4 | Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid Nil Nil
5 | Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a Nil Nil
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Classification of Vendors into Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been made to the extent information
is available with the Company

Disclosure requirements of Indian Accounting Standards

5.

Disclosures in respect of Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments

5.1 Financial Instruments by Categories
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories were as follows:
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(Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2020)

Financial assets | Financial assets/ Total
. Amortized | / liabilities at fair | liabilities at fair . Total fair
Particulars carrying
cost value through | value through value
value
profit or loss (0]d]
Assets:
Non-current Investment (Ref Note No.7) - - 4,148.04 4,148.04 4,148.04
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Ref Note No.13) 9,920.80 - - 9,920.80 9,920.80
Trade Receivable (Ref Note No. 12) 4,816.59 - 4,816.59 4,816.59
Loans and Advances (Ref Note No. 8) 461.68 - 461.68 461.68
Other Financial Assets (Ref Note No. 9) 370.54 370.54 370.54
Liabilities:
Term loan from Chennai Port Trust 25,108.75 25,108.75 | 25,108.75
(Ref Note No. 16 & 17)
Tax Free bonds (Ref Note No. 16) 45,845.69 45,845.69 | 45,845.69
Loan from Axis Bank (Ref Note No.16 & 17) 17,804.15 - 17,804.15 | 17,804.15
Trade Payables (Ref Note No. 20) 1,229.15 - 1,229.15 1,229.15
Other Financial Liabilities (Ref Note No.17) 1,377.10 - 1,377.10 1,377.10
(Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2019)
Financial assets | Financial assets/ Total
. Amortized | /liabilities at fair | liabilities at fair . Total fair
Particulars carrying
cost value through | value through I value
profit or loss (o]d] value
Assets:
Non-current Investment (Ref Note No.7) - - 4,123.00 4,123.00| 4,123.00
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Ref Note No.13) 3,183.93 - - 3,183.93 | 3,183.93
Trade Receivable (Ref Note No. 12) 3,038.16 - - 3,038.16 | 3,038.16
Loans and Advances (Ref Note No. 8) 418.07 - - 418.07 418.07
Other Financial Assets (Ref Note No. 9) 187.01 - - 187.01 187.01
Liabilities:
Term loan from Chennai Port Trust 27,410.00 - - 27,410.00 | 27,410.00
(Ref Note No. 16 & 17)
Tax Free bonds (Ref Note No. 16) 45,822.47 - - 45,822.47 | 45,822.47
Loan from Axis Bank 24,394.64 - - 24,394.64 | 24,394.64
Trade Payables (Ref Note No. 21) 5,523.20 - - 5,523.20 [ 5,523.20
Other Financial Liabilities (Ref Note No.17) 220.79 220.79 220.79

5.2. FairValue Hierarchy

e Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
o Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
o Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
The following tables presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the year 31.03.2020 For the year 31.03.2019
Particulars Level 1 Level2 | Level3 Total Level1 |Level2 | Level3 Total
Financial Assets
Investments in unquoted - - 4,123 4,123 - - 4,123 4,123
equity instruments
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5.3 Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Company's activities are exposed to limited financial
risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability
of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

a) Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future
cash flow of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market price.

The Company has interest rate risk as the Market
risk. The Company does not have price risk on its
financial instruments since Company does not have
any derivative financial asset.

Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company has availed Foreign Currency Loan of
USD 47 Million out of sanctioned loan of USD 100
Million from Axis Bank in four tranches @ LIBOR plus
195 BPS during the year 2017-18. However, LIBOR
rate in excess of 250 basis points (bps) has been
hedged in order to protect Interest Rate Risk.
Further, the Company has interest rate risk on
the loans obtained from Chennai Port Trust as
the annual interest rate reset is pegged to the
movement in MCLR rate of State Bank of India.

As at the reporting date, the interest rate profile
of the Company’s interest-bearing financial
instruments are as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 31 Mar 31=Mar
2020 2019
Fixed Rate Instruments
Financial Asset
- Fixed Deposit with Bank 7,000.00 1,500.00

- Employee Advance 459.27 400.24

Financial Liabilities

- Tax Free Bonds 45,845.69| 45,822.87

Variable Rate Instruments

- Loan from Chennai Port Trust | 25,108.75( 27,410.00

- Foreign Currency Loan 17,804.15| 24,394.64
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b) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation
by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. Since
the Company generally stipulates pre-payment with
respect to its income for major port services, there is
normally no credit offered to anyone. In such cases
there is no credit default risk. However, where the
Company is rendering certain ancillary / support services
the invoices are raised, as and when the services are
rendered and in cases of disagreement on user charges,
licence fee etc. on settlement of disputes and in these
cases, there could be an element of credit default risk.

Trade Receivables

The Company has outstanding trade receivables
amountingtoRs.4676.15Lakhsand3038.16 Lakhsas
of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, respectively.
Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are
derived from revenue accrual from customers.

Since most of the port services are rendered on pre
recovery basis by collecting in advance accumulation
of such debts are insignificant. Provision for disputed
debts arising on account of interpretation of certain
clausesin the concessionaire agreements, are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and provided for on a
case to case basis.

Credit risk exposure

An age-wise analysis of trade receivables at each
reporting date is summarized below:

(Rupees in Lakhs)
March 31,2020 | March 31,2019

Particulars . .
Gross |Impairment| Gross | Impairment
Not past due -
Past due less than 2,791.23 -1 3,034.85
three months
Past due more than 1,166.47 - 0.20

three months but not
more than six months

Past due more than 440 - N
six months but not
more than one year

More than one year 2,154.57 1,299.74 | 1,299.74 1,299.74
Total 6,116.67 | 1,299.74 | 4,337.90| 1,299.74
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
on a case to case basis is made in the year when
recoverability is assessed as doubtful based on
the recovery analysis performed by the Company
or is based on likely outcome of disputes over
the interpretation of certain clauses in the




concessionaire agreements.The Company considers
all other financial assets which are not impaired and
past due for each reporting dates under review are
of good credit quality.

Other financial assets

Credit risk relating to cash and cash equivalents is
considered negligible because our counterparties are
banks. We consider the credit quality of term deposits
with banks which are subjected to the regulatory
oversight of the Reserve Bank of India to be good,
and we review these banking relationships on an
ongoing basis. Credit risk related to employee loans
are considered negligible since loan is secured either as
mortgage of the title deed of the property or by way of
hypothecation of the vehicle for which these loans have
been granted to the employees. Besides, the Company
has appropriation right over the terminal benefits due
to the employees. Therefore, there is no requirement
for impairment provision for these financial assets. We
consider all the above financial assets as at the reporting
dates to be of good credit quality.

c) Liquidity Risk

Our liquidity needs are monitored on the basis of
monthly and yearly projections. The Company’s
principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash
equivalents, cash generated from operations.
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We manage our liquidity needs by continuously
monitoring cash inflows and by maintaining
adequate cash and cash equivalents. Net cash
requirements are compared to available cash in
order to determine any shortfalls.

Short term liquidity requirement consists mainly of
resources required to settle trade payables, expenses
payable, employee dues, repayment of current maturities
of loans, etc., arising during the normal course of
business as of each reporting date. We maintain
sufficient balance in cash and cash equivalents to
meet our short term liquidity requirements.

We assess long term liquidity requirements on
a periodical basis and manage them through
internal accruals. Our non-current liabilities include
borrowings from Chennai Port trust, Tax Free
Bonds, and Foreign Currency Loan from Axis Banks,
Retention money payable and Security deposits.

The table below provides details regarding the
contractual maturities of non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Company
can be required to pay. The table includes both
principal & interest cash flows.

(Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2020)

. Less than 6 6 months More than 5
Particulars 1-3 years 3-5 years Total
months to 1 year years
Chennai Port Trust Loan 1,150.62 1,150.62 4,602.48 4,602.48 13,602.56 | 25,108.76
Loan from Axis bank 4,467.63 4,467.63 8,868.90 - - 17,804.15
Tax Free Bonds - - - 8,293.34 37,552.35 45,845.69
Retention money - 350.98 290.18 - - 641.16
Security Deposits - 260.63 275.97 - - 536.60
Trade Payables - 1,229.15 - - - 1,229.15
Other Liabilities - 199.34 - - - 199.34
Total 5,618.25 7,658.35 | 14,037.53 12,895.82 51154.91 91,364.86
(Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2019)
Particulars SOBHUEIG) || OMELTELD 1-3 years 3-5 years LB T Total
months 1 year 5 years
Chennai Port Trust Loan 1,150.62 1,150.62 4,602.48 4,602.48 15,903.8 27,410.00
Loan from Axis bank 4,064.92 4,064.91 16,264.82 - - 24,394.65
Tax Free Bonds 8,293.34 37,529.13 45,822.47
Retention money - 675.38 33.45 - 708.83
Security Deposits - 140.98 265.87 - 406.85
Trade Payables - 5,523.20 - - - 5523.20
Other Liabilities - - 220.79 - - 220.79
Total 5,215.54 11,555.09 21,387.41 12,895.82 53,432.93( 1,04,486.79
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6. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-21 “The Effects of
changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”

The amount of exchange differences (net) debited
to the Statement of Profit & Loss Rs.688.16 lakhs
(PY.Rs. 1199.50 Lakhs) under Other Expenses.

7. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-36 “Impairment of assets”

During the year, the Company has reviewed its
Fixed Assets for impairment of assets as per Ind AS-
36 and has observed no impairment of assets in the
current Financial year (Previous year — NIL).

8. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-20 “Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance”

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Grant received for 2019-20 2018-19
Government Grants Nil Nil
Total Grants Received Nil Nil

9. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-19 “Employee Benefits”

a. General description of various employee’s
benefit schemes are as under:

a) Provident Fund:

The Company’s Provident Fund is deposited with
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The
Company pays fixed contribution to provident fund
at pre-determined rate.

b) Gratuity:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan.
Every employee who has rendered continuous
service of five years or more is entitled to get gratuity
@ 15 days salary (15/26 x last drawn basic pay plus
dearness allowance) for each completed year of
service on superannuation, resignation, termination,
anddisablementorondeath. Atrust has been formed
for this purpose. This scheme is being managed by
the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) for which
the Company has taken a Master Policy.

The scheme is funded by the Company and the
contributions are paid to the insurer, i.e., the Life
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Insurance Corporation of India as per the demand
made by them. The recognition of net obligation
for the defined benefit plan and the disclosure of
information as required under Ind AS-19 is made in
accordance with the actuarial valuation report.

¢) Superannuation Scheme:

The Company has implemented a non-contributory
Employee’s Group Superannuation Pension Scheme
which is also managed by LIC of India. Contributions
@ 12% of Basic Pay plus dearness allowance of the
enrolled employee is made to the Corporation.

The contribution to the scheme for the period
is grouped under Employee Cost on accrual
basis. In respect of employees on deputation,
pension contribution is calculated as per lending
organization/Govt. of India Rules and is accounted
for on accrual basis.

d) Leave:

The Company provides for Earned Leave benefits
and Half-Pay Leave to the employees of the
Company, which accrue annually at 30 days & 20
days respectively. The Earned Leave is encashable
once in a calendar year while in service for a period
of maximum 30 days and on Superannuation, the
maximum limited to 300 days.

The liability on Earned leave is recognized on the
basis of actuarial valuation.

b. The summarized position of various
defined benefits recognized in the Statement of
Profit & Loss, Other Comprehensive Income(OCI)
and Balance Sheet & other disclosures are as under:

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Gratuity | Leave

Particulars (Funded) | (Funded)
Defined Benefit CY. | 35438 | 31572
Obligation PY. | 23258 | 22648

C.Y. | 346.74 303.93
PY. 211.64 221.27

Funded Status [Surplus/ [ C-.Y. | (7.64) (11.79)

Fair Value of Plan Assets

(Deficit)] PY. | (20.09) | (5.21)
C.Y. 0 0
Effect of asset ceiling
PY. 0 0
Net Defined Benefit C.Y. 7.64 (11.79)
Assets/(Liabilities) PY. (20.09) (5.21)




Movement in defined benefit obligation

(Rupees in Lakhs)
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Particulars Gratuity | Leave
(Funded) | (Funded)
Defined benefit C.Y. 272.70 226.48
obligation - Beginning of by 232.08 223.98
the year -l
. C.Y. 33.53 16.07
Current service cost
PY. 28.50 19.80
C.Y. 20.88 17.55
Interest Cost
PY. 16.26 14.78
. CY. | (661) 0
Benefits Paid
PY. 0 (25.54)
Re-measurements -|GY. | 2372 (30.67)
actuarial loss/(gain) PY. (4.35) (6.55)
Defined benefit C.Y. 354.38 315.72
obligation - End of the by 272.69 226.47
year s
Movement in plan asset
(Rupees in Lakhs)
. Gratuity [ Leave
Particulars (Funded) | (Funded)
Fair value of plan assetsat | C.Y. | 346.73 | 221.27
beginning of year PY. | 25260 | 21898
) CY.| 2239 19.63
Interest income
PY. 14.81 15.47
o CY.| 7934 64.04
Employer contributions
PY. 23.62 11.37
, CY.| (6.61) 0
Benefits paid
PY. 0 (25.54)
Re-measurements — cy.| (099 (1.01)
Return on plan assets PY. 252 1.00
Fair value of plan assetsat | C.Y. | 346.74 | 303.93
end of year PY. | 25260 | 221.26

Amount Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity | Leave
(Funded) | (Funded)
) C.Y.| 33.53 16.08
Current service cost
PY. 28.50 19.80
Past Service Cost — Plan | C.Y. 0 0
Amendment PY. 0 0
) . C.Y. 0 0
Curtailment cost/(credit)
PY. 0 0

Particulars Gratuity | Leave
(Funded) | (Funded)
] C.Y. 0 0
Settlement cost/(credit)
PY. 0 0
. Cc.Y. 33.53 16.08
Service Cost (A)
PY. 28.50 19.80
Net Interest on Net|C.Y. (1.52) (2.08)
Defined Benefit Liability/
Cost Recognized in P&L | C.Y. | 32.01 14.00
(A+B) PY. 29.94 19.12

Sensitivity Analysis

(Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2020)

Assumption Change.in Gratuity Leave
Assumption | (Funded) | (Funded)
Discount rate +1.00% 325.58 303.25
-1.00% 387.92 329.40
Salary growth +1.00% 386.10 329.33
rate -1.00% 325.68 303.06
Withdrawal +1.00% 358.57 316.75
rate -1.00% 349.70 314.59
(Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2019)
Assumption Change.in Gratuity Leave
Assumption | (Funded) | (Funded)
Discount rate +1.00% 251.10 210.50
-1.00% 297.71 244.83
Salary growth +1.00% 297.57 246.31
rate -1.00% 250.87 208.96
Withdrawal +1.00% 277.96 234.16
rate -1.00% 266.77 217.95
Actuarial Assumption
. Gratuit Leave
Particulars (Fundec)i,) (Funded)
Method used C.Y. PuC Puc
PY. PUC PUC
. C.Y. 6.75% 6.75%
Discount rate
PY. 7.75% 7.75%
Rate of salary C.Y. 5% 5%
increase PY. 5% 5%
Rate of return of C.Y. 6.75% 6.75%
plan Asset PY. 7.75% 7.75%
Withdrawal Rate CY. | 1%to3% 1% to 3%
PY. 1% to 3% 1% to 3%
Retirement Age C.Y. 60 Years 60 Years
PY. 60 Years 60 Years
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Particulars Gratuity Leave
(Funded) | (Funded)
Average Future C.Y. 16.05 16.05
Service
PY. 16.14 16.14
C.Y. IALM
(2012-14) IALM (212-
. Table 14) Table
Mortality rate Py IALM IALM (2006-
(2006-08) 08) Table
Table
C.Y | Noexplicit | No explicit
Disability Rate PY. | loading loading
Category of investment in Plan assets
P :
Category of Investment UG L
assets
Insurance Policies 100%

10. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
standard (Ind AS)-108:“Operating Segments”

The Company primarily operates in one segment
- Port Services and there is no reportable
Geographical segment either.

The Company derives revenues from the following
customers which accounts for 10 per cent or more
of Company’s revenues. In respect of the other
customers, their individual share is less than 10% of
the Company'’s revenues

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the year For the year
Customer ended ended

31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
TANGEDCO 14,990.94 15,986.47
NTECL (JV of 8,338.10 9,581.87
Tangedco & NTPCL)
Chettinad 12,023.54 13,499.73
International Coal
Terminal Private
Limited

11. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard 23 “Borrowing Costs”

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year is Rs. Nil
(Previous Year Rs.205.70 lakhs) in the respective
carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment
/ Capital works in Progress (CWIP).
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12. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard 24 “Related Parties Disclosures”

a. Disclosures for Other than Govt. Related
Entities
a. List of Related parties:
Key Managerial Persons:

Name
Shri Sunil Paliwal, IAS.,

Designation

Chairman-cum-Managing
Director (From 16.09.2019)

Shri P. Raveendran, IRTS., Chairman-cum-Managing

Director (Upto 15.09.2019 )

Shri M. Gunasekaran, General Manager (Finance)

cum CFO

Smt. Jayalakshmi Srinivasan | Company Secretary

Other Entities:
= M/s. Kanniyakumari Port Limited

Compensation of key management personnel

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the For the
. year ended | year ended
Particulars March 31, | March 31,
2020 2019
Remuneration and Short- 94.61 48.84
term benefits
Post-employment 8.61 7.79
benefits
Other long-term benefits - -
Share-based payments - -
Termination benefits - -
Sitting fee - -
Total 103.22 56.63
Recovery of Loans & - -
Advances during the year
Advances released during - -
the year
Closing Balance of Loans - -
& Advances

*  Shri.P.Raveendran, IRTS. Chairman, Chennai
Port Trust is given Additional Charge as Chairman
cum Managing Director of KPL from 13.06.2018 to
15.09.2019. Hence his remunerationis notincluded.



b. Chennai Port trust

Transaction with other related parties:
(Rupees in Lakhs)
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years from Chennai Port Trust on upfront premium

lease payments.
ii. Asalessor

e Future minimum

lease receivables under
non-cancellable operating lease

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the For the
- year ended | year ended
IR IS March 31, | March 31,
2020 2019

Not later than 1 year 2,421.13 2,305.84

Later than 1 year and not 14,047.20 13,378.29
later than 5 years

Later than 5 years 56,508.51 59,598.56

For the For the
. ear ended | year ended
Particulars yMarch 31, yMarch 31,
2020 2019

Interest Paid 2,758.93 2,656.07
Loan Repaid 2,301.25 2,301.25
Lease Rent Expenses 40.31 39.98
Project Management 47.75 93.96
Services
Advance Lease Rent 193.76 88.34
Dividend paid for FY 2,500.00 2,500.00
1819
Interim Dividend paid - 1,500.00
for FY 1819
CSR Expenses - 100.00
Others 49.11 7.52
Closing Balance of Term 25,108.75 27,410.00
Loan

13. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
standard (Ind AS) 17 “Leases”

a. Operating lease

i) As alLessee

e Future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases excluding upfront

fee payments

(Rupees in Lakhs)

later than 5 years

For the For the
. year ended | year ended
Particulars March 31, | March 31,
2020 2019
Not later than 1 year 15.48 40.55
Later than 1 year and not 11.47 36.72

Later than 5 years

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the For the
. year ended | year ended
Particulars March 31, | March 31,
2020 2019
Minimum lease payments * 40.55 128.89

*Includes portion of upfront lease payment charged off.

Leasing arrangement:

The Company has leased Motor Vehicles for the use
of officials. The lease has been taken for four years.
The Company has leased office premises for 30

e Leasing arrangement:

As per the business model adopted by the
Company, the development, operation, marketing
and maintenance of cargo terminals are left with
the Captive / PPP BOT operators on 30 years Licence
/ Concession Agreement. The Company leased out
water front and land area for development of Berths
through BOT operators / Captive users as per the
Licence / Concession Agreement.

14. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-33 “Earnings Per Share (EPS)”
a) Basic EPS

The earnings and weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic EPS
is as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the
For the year ded
Particulars ended March | Y&2" ende
31,2020 March 31,
2019
Profit (loss) for the 24,925.51 34,015.91
year, attributable to
the owners of the
Company
Earnings used in 24,925.51 34,015.91
calculation of basic
earnings per share(A)
Weighted average 30,00,00,000 | 30,00,00,000
number of ordinary
shares for the purpose
of basic earnings per
share(B)
Basic EPS(A/B) - Rs. 8.31 11.34
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b) Diluted EPS

The earnings and weighted average number of

ordinary shares used in the calculation of Diluted
EPS is as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the
For the year ear ended
Particulars ended March y
31,2020 March 31,
! 2019

Profit (loss) for the year, 24,925.51 34,015.91
attributable to the owners
of the Company
Earnings used in 24,925.51 34,015.91

calculation of basic
earnings per share(A)

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings
per share(B)

30,00,00,000 | 30,00,00,000

Basic EPS(A/B) 8.31 11.34

15. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”

Contingent Liabilities

(i) Disputed Tax demand:

Disputed tax matters amounting to Rs. 910.74 lakhs
(Previous year Rs.2036.98 lakhs) are being contested
before Appellate authorities.

(ii) ECPP Liabilities :

The claim made by the contractor during the
construction of Port is pending with Appellate
authorities amounting to Rs. Nil (Previous year
Rs.323.30 lakhs). During the year, the Company has
settled the claim with the approval of competent
authority.

(iii) Contract/supply works:

Some of the contractors for construction / supply
and execution of works at our projects have made
claims on the Company aggregating to Rs. 11308.00
lakhs (Previous Year : 16059.87 lakhs) seeking
enhancement of the contract price, revision of work
schedule with price escalation, compensation for
extended period of work, idle charges etc. These
claims are being contested by the Company as
being not admissible in terms of the provision of
the respective contracts.
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The Company is pursuing various options under
the dispute resolution mechanism available in the
contract for settlement of these claims.

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 2019-20 | 2018-19

Disputed Tax Demand but not

acknowledged as debt 910.74| 2,036.98

Claims against the Company

not acknowledged as debt 834.60 -
-NGT - 323.30
- ECPP Liabilities 11,308.00 | 16,059.89
- Contract / supply works

Total 13,053.34 | 18,420.17

16. Confirmation of balances:

Trade Receivables/Payables, Term Loans and
Advances, Service tax input credit/GST and Deposits
are subject to confirmation and Reconciliation.

17. Capital Management:

The Company’s capital comprises equity share
capital, retained earnings and other equity
attributable to equity holders.The primary objective
of Company’s capital management is to maximize
shareholders value. The Company manages its
capital and makes adjustment to it in the light of
the changes in economic and market conditions.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net
debt. Net debt comprises of long term and short
term borrowings less cash and bank balances.
Equity includes equity share capital and reserves
that are managed as capital. The gearing at the end
of the reporting period was as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Asat31st | Asat 31+
Particulars March, March,
2020 2019

Total Debt 88,758.58 | 97,627.11
Less : Cash and cash 9,920.80 3,183.95
equivalent
Net Debt 78,837.78 | 94,443.18
Total Equity 2,37,906.66 | 2,22,104.30
Net debt to equity ratio 33.14% 42.52%

18. Note on COVID 19

Coronavirus (COVID-19) has been described as an
unprecedented Human, Economic and Financial



Crisis facing the world. This pandemic has resulted
in widespread economic uncertainty and disruption
of businesses.

Government of India had issued order No.40-3/2020
DM-I(A) dated 24.3.2020 to impose lockdown for a
period of 21 days to contain COVID 19 pandemic
in the country. Government of India has further
extended the lockdown up to 3 May 2020 and
thereafter in Containment Zones up to 30" June
permitting all activities outside containment zones
in a phased manner.

Since the pandemic and consequent lockdown
have disturbed the economic activities towards
the end of the Financial year 2019-20, there was no
significant impact in the Financials of 2019-20.

The economic effect of COVID 19 would be felt
significantly from the FY 2020-21. Although the
Ministry of Home Affairs (MHA) has released a
fresh order dated 30" May with revised guidelines
to regulate different activities based on the risk

For KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

SUNIL PALIWAL, I.A.S.,
Chairman cum Managing Director
DIN: 01310101

M. GUNASEKARAN
Chief Financial Officer & Compliance Officer

Place: Chennai
Date : 29" June 2020

P. RAVEENDRAN
Director
DIN: 07640613

JAYALAKSHMI SRINIVASAN
Company Secretary
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profiling of the districts of the country and permit
unrestricted inter-state and intra-state movement
of persons and goods, however, due to reduced
demand and decrease in production, the impact on
domestic and EXIM trade will be expected in short
to medium term.

Ports are also expected to experience reduced
traffic volumes decreasing the overall utilisation
level and revenues in short to medium term.

Ministry of Shipping issued series of directions/
guidelines to major ports to extend certain
Exemptions/Remission to EXIM trade and the impact
of these Exemptions/ Remission will be known in the
FY 2020-21.

19. Previous year’s figures have been
regrouped wherever necessary.

20. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board
of directors and authorised for issue on 29 June 2020.

For B. THIAGARAJAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants,
FRN .004371S

RAM SRINIVASAN
Partner, M.No. 220112
UDIN: 20220112AAAABG1939
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A7 & g e A gfg At )

A TR & & T A 8 GO 2, S 13 TS i
FEMRAT TR T Fa HEd 8C 7,500 fohaiet ot qer &, it
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AT e B T STIHH e

2008-09 % forffar wehe & a1, hifare-19 T & TTferd TR,
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EEESI N1 1,22,499 | 1,15,402 6.15
FHe: 7,04,822 | 6,99,099 0.82

WA o TSF o TlTfcdl STl STl 4 /1= 2020 H T o EIh
704.82 fuferam = (wwdh) st wure, St foh ot 0.8 widerd 6
T Jfg TS AT 2, 313 AN H e € T

T T SETTEl § G Y 7 1,524.91 Hifgw o FT w Hwre
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Ot TSI T T o A TR Ll & fof T ohig STIIeT 2,
T 3 ST 31 AT TR T forem o a1et # forelT qerem T it
o I i STafyr 1 i e i At fe m R

TR T

At |t aEt % oI wehet mrrar ST T gfYsior @ e 2,
SR UEl S FH qed I ufEufi & TS H s
ottt e A e afeafE o SwRT o SRR s
sfafafic e ol Tge-siw-aet giwufEr s & e e
TR ! HT=rar et )

i) ST T arfareRr

ST T T IEATT T ARG (@, 3T % o sfafifed wuf
ST B 31 TRRG) H & IHANT 3h i ("STRAT TEHE") i
TEATAT B STFNT Y ST STt G ahl ST 9L /797 STrar 2, foret
o S FoaTe TR BT o T bl W fohaT SITdT &, ST ag i

Rttt o foreft oft g wm o fo7e wwmenfor fope St 21 v
1 Tt Hafr ht AN T AT ITH GET <Farel shi [T, SAHfH
TeIeT AnTd, 3 IRy fafer & veer a1 Se@ vee fhw U ug %
AT St €, S fRet oft ug ot e ewred § 9 A 0
1 srafer S afeeaferlt & ST ST Siiee % ST T TE
Hrelt W@ % TR T ST AT S arelt qiEiEt 1 qease
fopar ST 21

afe ofiet stafer a1 T & 3iq § gz W & e ufwfty # e
Ut <RI EETaRd & ST 2, dF @iig foshed % S1vTe sl guiidT &,
TEETE T T Hef o STTHIT ST S s 39T e
STt 21 Wt 3w <t wuft oft w1 % st § @ (1) # M-foxfrr
Tufet i g1 o for erater fifat @ da <l

ii) Tt SR

g %1 JEATA hl ARG H, o1 A A 1 T qed T A
TS T T St B S Sl STt & sifre g ug % A
fféra sprar (vered 2 spram afeq) a foreft off wgr sieame
ST, TTE- 1T Tt ST e 8 St gerehish a1 o T fsft e
&, S STafe wo o T % qEd YA Al S ATt TimE st
HTEAT 6T ST 31 T2 % A F HAT G AN R S e
Giie forshed o1 smam oo i et ST @ 37K 72 i HHI H
o foTe & o1 WTaT™, AT TeT W18 ST hl THTH T o6 forehed 1
I LA T 3T 31 SRuee o e St forelt Seam I e ™
ol 72 210 €, 5% ST EE % &9 U U1 AT @ (99 a R
T IR o T @ 72 o STt ©) 38 S7a e o <1 ra™
3T B1AT 21 T A o FaT 7o 3hi TOMT 3, 3ot ofis T
fafor v srot afgefier I &€ 1 3w At & F R s 7
ffea sarst et s @ fraffe 7 et 81wy Y artte & 1re,
oIt et <t i sare i rfiraf i gwi % fow g ST @
3R o T SIS AT % foTC 6 &1 STt 31 56k S¥ema, s
1 STt oAl e TR Rl T & 7Tt ST & I s dwive grar
2, A1 oftst s1afer § s, i e § aeare (3T % oY, Th
TSH AT W TEAd o THOTHEET B Aol Wi & A o
SEATE)| 36 A& % Ug M) A1 Hafifed aiedf aiied & fog
T foshen o Heaied § aqarma) oS aaeTiEt i " fot
TR % TEd T fohaT T 21 Sl et e fot
SFRTRET" o qd e foraT T 2|

iiii) STCURTICTR Ug 3R W Iod i TRETTEl & ug

T STCUHTIeTh SISt HTrdT ol 3104 STahIicTeh Ugi (THT, 3T
IEt o A el 7, e ofist srafer 12 Wi A el e At R,




forae wiier =1 fashew 72 g1ar 2) 3R wliert «1 fashed 72 grar
1 9% - Al Ffer AT B¢ o T2 i oft ARy e & o
T HHT ST 2] ACTHIcreh gl 0 gl A ST FH qed i
i o Ug i fisT STaIfer o STTUT o el T o TR e
% &9 H wr=ar 4 S 2

TF UEER K &N

T ug S st vt w5 & weft Siiawt s i @ @
HI afeddfer o TaTiHed % TUEaRRT ol TRETe T8t o &9 § aifishd
fora sTrar 31 ufeer ug @ foRar it 31 ot wwfiTeR ug St ety
% TR W T HTeft 7@ 3 TR T AT & STt 81 SR ot
T ST S ST SIaeT i § AT Teged dTd ofise Tee
ST e T H S & Sreft @ 7R ofist o & s1fersk for it s 36
TR 9T W= ITH el 21 STTeh{Heh R T 36 i § e
o & H w2 € et & oo o w1l fore s #)

gt o for ugh % & 1 afiepd fom ST & S St & ugar
EaTfires edieror o wft St St quehr vty &9 & firerd € vgt
ST o Taet THeRT oX ST UEi o &9 § o get o Hor oF
1 ferte forarm ST 21 for ugt 11 ol oraierd e1afer o fore smreifea
foRaT ST & Tfeh Tg o el & srepra 315, e W i straferes &
=t yfcfsifera foam s aeh)

3.20. SAHTT / TR-SHTT STeR0T ;

FHO ST/ TRAGAM SffeRto o ATUR W Seie 3l § dufy it
SAQTIET T S AT 2l AT Felfer bl FAHH 6 T F Ffiepd R
‘WT%:

() T o AT TR =Tk | 6T UEdTE 9T ST 9T ST
Torar T R 7;

(@) IT HE 9§ SATIR % I3 % (A ATAAA {1 ST €

(M) TT THETH ST % S8 IRE HeHT o Mt Heey e i
TuTeT 7, AT

(%) TE TS AT TS GAGET © T I b T THEES [RT S

Qufasifera T&t foram sar & o1 fifén safr S s wsm @ A
TG ST ok Tl T ST ot FHI9e st o for SuimT ferarm ST 2

1=y weft afrEafE st A-adeT & &9 § affehd foam mam 21

TS QT1Ied kT SdHT o & H afiehd foham a2

(%) T8 GIET= AfeTer =5k § safeard g i 3rfie 8

(@) I &I T Y AR & e & SRS fofa S 2;

(M) aHteeT STafy % 91 anE we % fidt 38k a9 g A
YT 8,

(1) Tranfém srafr 3 are 0 & 0 e HE o 3aT o Faem
T T o ToT 31 SRR et 2l

317 |ft SETTE BT T o &9 § affehd foram T 21

SR =gk THERT 3T Tohel S Tohe THRET H STeh! JTH

& T it & rftmr & e 1 a9 81 S %1 e

IR =ik oE HEH 1 2

3.21. JERYTERT T AATHIIT Ferawor

FrewTeR tedt gRT SEdTierd aTHier i fahe faraort & wrrar ura ardt
ST QPR ST AR 31T 3 & STAted faam S 21
3.22. Mg @@=

ST TR o e Toeal 21 bt =T A | STerT o faar s @ 3
sfitre et +ft TR E. 20,000 / - & A 2

3.23. WREFATS o f7g stfersTes

AN o IRFATST AT 36 forelt +ff feedt o for tferyesh ot o 3e
a9 ¥ fore AT 3 &9 § T STt 2 FSTe B Ts) ot T g 2l

3.24, afEuTa gt
e aff 1 TR sTrem o e foram Sar 81 Sfved Teeaew

& Geiel |, GHM ht IRETTT sht dTa 9 A foRam s oK e
Tuft qTHSAT §, T ol 317 3T o &9 § HT=4aT &1 718 2|

3.25. Thg e foaRor

e ToIer 3T IWANT e el FATE shl FeT af STl &) Fohat
STaITE foraroT o6 SRitSHT o foTe, Fohe A eha Foded H el e
Brt B, sfept o 3fiT bt o ey fewie feuifsre, sepman S fatge
T I[E S AT T LR AT AT & S HHT o AR Fee STt
1 TEdT WA ST 2




4. TU, TATE 3R SUHIOT

(%. @ H)
- a;iifg:;ﬂ - fem | 319, 2020 7 agaﬁﬁ%ﬂ; o form Cierac] 3;?%22:?1? 31 9T, 2020
o 5899447 496161 63,956.08 - - - 63,956.08
9, W S 3 H 11,22541| 115999 -60.80| 12,324.60 889.29 300.64 253 1,18740| 11,137.20
e S HTY 64,36947|  537.50| -421.07| 64,485.90 505752| 1553279 11299  6577.32| 57,9088
R 8,55895|  361.04 8,919.99 1,437.06 55095 -l 198801 693198
e ¢ A fomafet fireen 7,660.95 - 7,660.95 1,765.42 493.64 2259.06| 5401.89
e, daew, i a s e | 5758156 56.30 57,637.86 11,143.33 753.87 11,897.20|  45,740.66
et o e 381.67 - 381.67 28377 6.61 29038 91.29
kLl 111,63 72.84 184.47 28.19 13.91 42,10 142.37
ferga v 171676 14526 1,862.02 925.07 135.33 1,060.40 801.62
e, {3 T o 3 ferg 306.19 306.19 141.08 8.69 149.77 156.42
TIIHT
GRS 192.48 6.12 198.60 91,67 1693 108.60 90.00
FATET ITH 177.98 11.05 189.03 129.99 14.80 144.79 4424
e e 921.56 9.23 930.79 34545 74.11 41956 51123
F 849.36 7.30 856.66 305.09 121.79 426.88 429.78
i ST S e 79743.49| 5177.27 84,920.76 4,669.10 800.89 5469.99| 79,450.77
e e 1,099.46 - 1,099.46 567.80 160.35 728.15 37131
stfa st 5371 1138 65.09 46,07 6.14 5221 12.88
Gl 2,93,945.10| 12,516.89 | (481.87)| 3,05,980.12 27,82591|  4,991.44 (1552)| 32,801.82{2,73,178.30

W) HUHT o I SireTeie, feugsl, foget  ofit Hiee favm, anfursy vt @ stftmifed 2802.49 T sfiM R, R ©2787.27 e Ul Fwe H R
ST Y 15.22 Tehg SIHIT YT FHoslT HET sTeh 2

T A fegaht & 950 Tee S T, foem & 297.98 Tehg ST o 1 9T dsiehd 81 T8 71T 1 Usfoor ST 7t 1 ot 3 SASIgeR § 1092.20 THE
S 3T e T, s & 995.05 TS T o T T USiRd B T8 S I USeRor ST W ) st 7 Hiee feurdie @ 712.42 wwhe S @i,
ST & 682.66 TS SHIT 30T o T T Hsfisha off 3R 31 it defertor S 81 St F qiierTg SR ¥ 47.87 THg S o st T, o
¥ 32.65 g STH foreh fore wat short o A o s g 3R S iy s 21

at ot 5 offiT T AT 134600, 542524, 472460, 384780 (I [ L), 171611, 520000 (F FHATEH 550.05 T $) 1 {131 Tl S14iq faw
TR 3 2fifae urgae fafiee, fod SginTe SersHa sid fifaa Trgae fafiee ot fud waudiua st 2 efiqe fafies, fud s shemt
Zfifet wrgae fefies, e wgiTe so ofifre Tae fafits it emseidt vaums gae ffis r smmEfea i )

e / gureis o wifiret € foh st 3 e AT o e o A STl s 0T A R T e o skt St o ot grerm arer fer o, form w
forguafonfe stier & weet ifer om S w3 wnarer 3 & §, 36 Heter o et @ 6 gEde § w6 T of 3 g st gt b o
Tt o o 3 stiepa foham Tram el fetish 16.03.2020 o ST o e FThI TR0 ST 436,74 TR T3 2hT SRy oo shL € 8 @ S 21 45,12 w1
TR S ShaR § e forg T ST o AT R R H forhet 1 AegE, w9 3 TfRT 31 71, 2020 T STEet HfRT o Gt sqlten o 11T 481.86 ARG
THRATT f3RT 7T &) THH W T HerR Jeerd S . 15.52 @ 8, Rl o & eere & g wmmEf B

&fh)

€




(%. @ H)
| T fwm | 319, 2019 7 W o ferm fuemy ST LR 31 9T, 2019
foamm e Tehed T Eul [ERCIRERIKC T Tt T
WA | Tt i e TEH L IRIEC] T ShiT e
oy 59,033.03 000 (3855)| 5899447 0.00| 5899447
¥, 1 T 3 W 788337| 3342.03|  000| 1122541 64821 241.08 0.00 889.29| 10,336.12
H1Z 3 e 3511372 2925575|  000| 64,369.47 3643.14| 141438 000|  505752| 59,311.95
ES) 506455| 349440 000 855895 1098.03 339.03 000| 143706 7121.89
T o A Tt fireem 724771 41324 000|  7,660.95 1285.90 47951 000|  1,76542| 589553
<, e, frd Ao | 53,155.03|  442633|  0.00|  57,581.56 10,389.54 753.79 000 11,14333| 4643823
qret
e 3 wer 27727 10440| 000 38167 27727 6.50 0.00 28377 97.90
e 111,63 000| 000 111,63 15.84 1235 0.00 28.19 83.44
forgga v 1,711.22 555|  000| 171676 797.55 127.52 0.00 925.07 791.69
T, {3 3 i 306.19 000| 000 306.19 132.39 8.69 0.00 141.08 165.11
forw T
forega e 187.13 535|000 19248 7474 1693 0.00 91,67 100.81
FTTer ST 168.57 941 0.00 177.98 112,03 17.96 0.00 129.99 47.99
it Tt 79105 13051 0.00 92156 27467 70.79 0.00 34545 576.11
FR 71878 13058 000 849.36 196.32 108.77 0.00 305.09 544.26
I Sfl i o el 79,743.49 000  000| 7974349 391228 756.82 000  4669.10| 7507439
wete @ wef 1,099.46 000| 000| 109946 407.44 160.35 0.00 567.80 531.66
et gt 53.71 000| 000 53.71 4013 5.94 0.00 46.07 7.64
il 2,52,666.10 | 4131756 (38.55)| 2,93,945.11 2330548  4,520.41 000 27,825.90 | 2,66,119.21
4 (T) IRETRIAT o6 SUFNT T TR
(& TR H)
e 1 8% 2019 7R - m 31 9T, 2020 T agaﬁﬂ%?m & ferm m 3;@%2312::? 31 9T, 2020 7
ekt HiT O TR hICT A T Eiuk
e A 2,002.42 - 2,002.42 341.18 86.02 - 427.20 1,575.22
fore efver et
T 2,002.42 0.00 0.00| 2,002.42 341.18 86.02 0.00 427.20 1,575.22




5. SRTAYIE Uit
(& TRE H)
T 132:%019 T I AfarwEmEee | s e | 319 2020 FR v
Hrescgarmid - wa, g 3 371 H=Td 1,810.17 790.39 -1,386.37 1,214.19
iesegATst! - H1e S Hemd 6.90 0.00 0.00 6.90
dreseg At - Hgeh 859.28 3,741.38 -337.16 4,263.50
g TEd - Yot ¢ o ittt fpeew 2,709.93 1,196.12 0.00 3,906.05
Hresegaedl- S, Hiared, fierd 7 sie aftet 24.15 0.00 0.00 24.15
Hrescgarmid)- Ao % germs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hrgseg3ed! - I 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
gyt - foregd Tm 34.91 195.61 -167.54 62.98
HieoegaS! - e, Eew S ré o forg T 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hrese TSl - forg ek 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hiescgarmid - e ST 450 11.38 -15.88 0.00
Hreargemif - e 0.32 0.04 -0.37 0.00
et - 1 e F e S 4,443.98 877.87 -5,177.27 144.58
Hiesegamé - e i wef 0.00 1,139.53 0.00 1,139.53
Hieseg TSt et HideaaR 042 0.00 -042 0.00
FA 9,894.56 7,952.32 (7,085.03) 10,761.88
HAteT it
(& AE H)
EE] 13?:,;;)18 T o I AfRwATEee | A g aeE | 31w 2019 T 9w
HSSTTE - W, IS S =T T 3,206.77 1,945.43 -3,342.04 1,810.17
rgseg ATt - =1 S Hemd 28,443.70 818.95 -29,255.75 6.90
HesegaTsd - Heh 2,252.52 2,101.16 -3,494.40 859.28
e TS - {eTel ¢ o fifef fireem 1,912.00 1,211.17 -413.24 2,709.93
Hiesegaédi. <, diarey, fid o 5 dter 24.15 0.00 0.00 24.15
Hrescgaéd- e % Terw 62.64 4176 -104.40 0.00
Higacaedt - e 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
HiesegasT! - fored T 4152 -1.26 -5.35 3491
e TE! - Tct, HaR 7 TS 3 fore s 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hhegcgamift - fored 3w 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
HieaeaeHt - Fratert e 0.00 525 -0.75 4.50
e - Fgz 8237 14.12 -96.16 032
HresegATE - U1 AR T o S 144.58 4,299.40 0.00 4,443.98
Hieecgei - wi S it 0.00 0.00 -0.00 0.00
st - et HiTeea 0.00 95.54 -95.12 0.42
g - weffer it fefen 0.00 1.80 -1.80 0.00
FA 36,170.25 10,533.31| (36,809.02) 9,894.55




6. aTerd TRt — HiweaR

& A H)
Tereror 31 AT 2020 TR 31 |T=K 2019 TR
1 3T e Tehel ShTCT Hod 1,077.01 981.90
SHT 0.13 95.11
EErAE e EIRISE) 0.00
31 UTS qeh Tehet K0T Hed 1,077.14 1,077.01
01 3T Tk STHT TohAT AT Teag ™ 317.18 169.19
ELEATIY 151.10 147.99
ERMAE RS EIRIEE)
31 HTel @k STHT fehalT TaIT Hoagr 468.28 317.18
31 9T, 2020 T KT T 608.86 759.84
7. fEw
(®. A )
fereor 31 |T= 2020 TR 31 9T= 2019 Tk
W Faq=
et o fawr-aatefee
T & SISAT S F 10000 IR 25.04 0.00
(31 9T 2020 T TSR 794 - £.14,54,500 / -)
et o faer - iR fEe
AEEH AR TS % 3fadt IRR 3,000.00 3,000.00
. e 3 e # weier o fore s -3,000.00 -3,000.00
T TR U1 U St fetfies o it IR 3,400.00 3,400.00
A U1 Y i ferfiee 3 sfedt SRR 720.00 720.00
FATHAR U1 ferfiree % 3t SR 2.00 2.00
STETT Sl OIS § e 1.00 1.00
B 4,148.04 4,123.00
TAA
fafee v i faw 0.00 0.00
et 0.00 0.00

# ST o AT Helted! =ATATer, YRA o et T fedie 14.09.2007 @ ST e wofiia € R qa & 3@ TIEiSHT § AT Hig S 727 g3 8, oo 4

aqesH e ffies o sfeedt S | frerer s fawm # wedm wem i &)

8. S/UT T W
(. A H)
fereror 31 |T=K 2020 Tk 31 |T=T 2019 TR
Srufarfer
TEHT (3T<8T HHT ST 3)
FHETE o AW (Frew fafeeT w1fim) 394.59 334.77
AT 1 A (Fred sfim) 14.15 117
He 408.74 335.94
g At
G (37T 71 ST )
Fe=nicEt bt Tm (grew fafee s1fim) 4498 57.51
FHeTiEt s AT (@reT 21fim) 5.56 6.78
AT T 2.40 17.83
Oyl 52.94 82.13

)




9. 3= fo=ftar ufEafrat (%, TR )
feraroT 31 6T 2020 % 31 |7 2019 9

Hatatr

ST 187.20 166.82

1 it ST 0.00 0.00

fafvrer arféat & st 0.00 0.00

FA 187.20 166.82

EEEEIE

TH YT IS oA

e yafer 9.94 20.19

-farfvrer rféat & siform 0.00 0.00

T T 0.00 0.00

FA 9.94 20.19

10. S T

AT S BT 3 Forareur | wefiend st (& TR )
feraroT 31 9T 2020 9% 31 9T 2019 9%

T kT S H FEATT

TIfiTe 7,827.23 7,338.00

STET TaHe! sh SeqT I araet 0.00

3T HA () 7,827.23 7,338.00

RICIET RN R IECRE

U FA () 12,068.66 -6,988.49

A (T -+

T FA (T

TAfiTe T . 12,068.66 - 6,988.49

FFeTH HAWET sht Jeqt AR STt 19,895.89 349.51

I SATAH AT H T hel (7. AT )
fereror 31 9T 2020 G 31 HT=F 2019 dk

Treifea @m s sfwifere @ (gTH) -12.19 -4.88

e & e & sheft 0.00 0.00

F -12.19 -4.88

Sl THTET ST ST T STAHT L 559 o ETHSTET H HIHT ST 2

* ot ST AT, 1961 % 31 €T 80LA T B 31 ITAT L et & Ot AT ST o THULT WA o ded L i I 2 & 2l 17.472%

AT oY wufr 3T e fmferfiae o forg e &: (& = 1)
et 31 |T=r 2020 T 31 A= 2019 Tk
THE foettad e agar
e wetie o ST 28,831.69 22,520.84
JTFA 28,831.69 22,520.84
HATEAR T g
I3 O 40 T (iT) STEATHiT - -
IS T 4381 A STHfT - -
TS S e B0 61 AT 454.18 449.81
THTE ShieE T 50,930.42 56,698.24
I ST ST § S 6.79 (0.95)
foere & eft 1,048.32 1,038.24
e 237.12 237.12
ITFA 52,676.83 58,422.46
I, ATEARTA Bt TRt / () 23,845.14 35,901.62




T & TR JTEATA T 370 | T=rerT

(%. =@ H)

foramor 1 31T, 2019 Tk T AT R T | Tfiepia ﬁ;:gﬁ 31 HT=A, 2020 Tk IS

Hf, Wi 3 3T (22,520.84) (6,310.85) -28,831.69
R e (0.95) (4.45) 12.19 6.79
ey foered - - 0.00
BIEEIE] 449.81 437 454.18
e shfee wfafy * 56,698.24 (5,767.82) 50,930.42
= 237.12 - 237.12
[EENEET] 1,038.24 10.08 1,048.32
Fe 35,901.62 (12,068.66) 12.19 23,845.14

* Qe shiee dfeete # Sreme 5 €. 7513.30 T feawier It & St ueet o s § @i i et 7 &t 3Affieh et shfee st wfafieree e 2|

fereror 1 37T, 2018 ek T N SR T & TR aﬁv':aréﬁ u 31 |T=A, 2019 Tk IS
HI, WA ST STHTT (22,175.05) (345.79) -22,520.84
HUERT AT 2.77 (3.72) -0.95
ey foered - 0.00
BlcRIE) 449.81 - 449 81
TS Shfee Uerseaie 49,360.24 7,338.00 56,698.24
= 237.12 237.12
forarmr o =elt 1,038.24 1,038.24
Ead 28,913.13 6,988.49 - 35,901.62
Y Tl TR TR &Y @t
Tl aeqett & Hee & STeurfid o Uit ot Titehd Ta1 (ehdl T4 §
fereror 31 |T=K 2020 Tk 31 |T=K 2019 Tk
STt STETET S 0.00 0.00
LT BT 0.00 0.00
B 0.00 0.00
11. 1= yiEa =T
(®. AT H)
Teramor 31 HT=H 2020 R 31 HT=E 2019 TR
TR IdATT
SohaTl =Rl HAH 0.00 0.00
SfiTTe = o fore ST 10,108.65 13,434.92
e efier i 0.00 0.00
AR AT AT 137.78 126.04
FATefird f-rouey qeeisr o - gfavfa s 173.40 0.00
TERTEAT R o fore 1fim 0.00 170.14
T ST & | 9 453.49 134.17
Ead 10,873.32 13,865.28
TAATT
Sehardl 1 Afm 971.86 0.00
wfitre @ 96.30 251.57
T Y shiee / Seaedt 761.92 1,566.92
ST AT AT 0.00 0.00
TH o gt Fm 188.69 829.21
Ead 2,018.77 2,647.70

TAAH o e YSfiTd o2 o o 317 7 22.06.2001 T == 91 & & afeufrl ST Saaretl s SWTer o §Hd 75T oo <mTerd & wefid eeae
SHATL I %.4509.50 TG T ST I e 2|



TR AT % TEd TR TRl o wrer 99 iy & <wereht forehmer Aemr & fAg % .16.75 g 1 1fm sprar wfier 31 e ST, 366 8ar
TorIT & ST 436.74 TG T T THS M 2| Helfer ST o STTET et il 0% ST fohal ST <1 & ST 1S # 12 ST 2020 1 T8 g3 ol

HEFERIAT YT o o A3 7 geltoielt Soham & wrer wiford forae o wefer # weeh! @rd & ifq ST o feenfiesi & STam o s 78 foafaq w5
75% IMTHT 81 9 o 37 W Iect HE & S AT eIt Shar 3 Ual § 0THeT qof foRaT T 97 3T %el&a®y, ot 3 26.05.2020 i geidid} 3ehar

o T Uk Tmgiar 3R
12. SR 91X (%. @@ )
oo 31 9T 2020 T 31 9T 2019 AR
IR SR A
TR STaT % foru o <t A & o v & srfires Y sraf 3 forg e ¥

- TG - ST AT ST & 854.82 3.03

- wfewer 1,299.74 1,299.74
3T ISR (ST WL | &)

- TG - STT AT ST & 3,961.76 3,035.12
9 widrer KT o forw s -1,299.74 -1,299.74
% 4,816.59 3,038.16

13. RS & ke AAT & ema i)
Tereror 31 9T 2020 dh 31 WK 2019 TR
BT T SET 0.00 0.00
T H =, gTHe 0.00 0.00
SRt o |1 2T 2,920.80 1,683.93
39- F () 2,920.80 1,683.93
=T ek 9w
- STHT S
-3 TER 0.00 1,500.00
-3 TER A SART AR 12 A A 7,000.00 0.00
39-Fe (&) 7,000.00 1,500.00
k3l 9,920.80 3,183.93
14. IAUT T afEg T (2. @ H)
e 31 9T= 2020 Tk 31 9T= 2019 Tk
A T 3T T | H1eT T 66,006.00 58,664.36
TR % foTe e -65,617.23 -57,790.00
F 388.77 874.36
15. 3Torret vre’ gt (&, =ITE )
Tereron 31 9T 2020 dh 31 9T 2019 dh
et
T 10/- A % 3iad! I
500,000,000 3ferret R 50,000.00 50,000.00
ST TR T, FotehTEeS SO TE § A fora
10/- Tedieh 393 o 3fererel IR
300,000,000 3fFEreT TR 30,000.00 30,000.00
30,000.00 30,000.00




I YAt T ATHE:
& 31 HT=I 2020 R
IERE <hT ST T
T gferel TR 300000000 3000000000
SIS: - X1 hT T, TN oF ST / FEhTEe shi 71§ A IS 0 0
FAT 9 300000000 3000000000
& 31 |T= 2019 Tk
WIERL kT HEAT Tt
gt it o 300000000 3000000000
SIS - SR oY T, T % SRT / HoHshIEe i TS I gl 0 0
FAT 9 300000000 3000000000
yfaera & 2tferes Al FIeST YRR R Hut ¥ 97
TERYER hT 17 % 31 HT=H 2020 TR 31 |T= 2019 TR
T TR 0% 0 20,000
= g 100% 30,000 10,000
I LT A I GG AHSTA oh AT W < WIS 22 H shoidT 8 ST 79 9 3fsrdt IR T 25.03.2020 i &t o)
16. 30T . mﬁ)
Teramor 31 |T=E 2020 TR 31 |T= 2019 TR
e - A ot
ST /T
ERRich 22,807.50 25,108.75
ferere oieh & feraeft s sHor 8,868.90 16,264.82
FTLYH IS
(i) =T 2012-13 9,416.85 9,404.88
(i) T 2013-14 36,428.84 36,417.59
E3d 77,522.09 87,196.04
wfawfa fdie o iR-afada dre o UIE TEE A TH AR

() wAqed W fedim arm, Siferd e & 10 a9 % 829334 digd - &
82,93,34,000/- T TRT T %. 1000/- TAH 25.03.2023 T T
& i sifora qear & 159 % 117156 98 - 7. 11,71,56,000/-
FT TR F %, 1000/~ TAF 25.03.2023 T 37 7| e o shw:
fRA AT R AN R @ 7.51% 3T 7.67% 3T 311 o fefw
7.01% 3T 7.17% i ®9 & AT 2| =ie Hut il Gufer
forw wicrferd & a7fq 25.03.2013 i dSfierd sife g i i
ST o STTHR THIC ST SIET - 1, 2 ST 3 T ST &t o 2

(if) SR W NEHaA] %, 79,49,51,000/- T THRT o 3ifeha qea-2.
1000/- % 10 T % 794951 SwgH 25.03.2024 T 37 & 3T
%. 191,66,30,000/- 3T TRT % Hfeha &8, 1000/-- % 15 €A
% 1916630 F-gH 25-03-2029 T 37 & T E. 94,31,42,000/-
T TRT % Afhd qea-2. 1000/ 20 AT & 943142 dFed
25.03.2034 T 37 2] feet saE & fou anffes &9 @ 37
FHI: 8.61%, 9% I 9% =TS T 3R 1T o foTw shwa:
8.36%, 8.75% 3T 8.75% o ¥l 19.03.2014 T e
SiigH 2% IS o ST | St hi afEat sterfa I <1
aret 3 for wfersfera &

I UK T % HROT T AN Y 2001-02 H uREuiEr 7w e o
7ferep o Ty o et 21 T 3T 30.06.2012 ¥ Y B Tt 60 T
TormTe foretl 3 <ohit 21T 21 5 SAaIfer oh QIO fofeet] oht ST o STt
1 IHIh BT ST o foriy & & fuifa st st & e @
T 81 ST 18.06.2018 3 29.09.2018 =1 A 80T shi GHI e
SR 7T W E.70 S IR 20 IS TG il Affes T Sum it )
uferrer S & fareft war swor

TR S 7 30.03.2017 1 et q3T K0T (THETTE) 100 USD
firforar =t wolt < 1 2, foret wh o it stfereer wfeq aie a1 &
offa 6M e et 195 sfidiug it s97eT 2T @ % |1 SATar T 2
U T 2017-18 3 SR 47 USD Tafera st <mT samm 81 st 3
TS & SRgT ¥ s/ o AT 250 S uige (sfidfiee) & s1fee 6
o foreit e o oft ket i 21

IRATT W S 4 [l o 3mem W 7 50 g 3N TH-%e e
AT T AT E 10 FS Hi oo ATagiwe gt w w5l 1 @
THTRIUAST & 0.15%| 39T 31 STaRT, 2020 3 =0T HHgiT 3R 21

BT, 31 HTe 2020 T IS Grorem T <t 75 off



31 |T=H 2020 TR 31 AT 2019 dF
Sratatr
ST S 275.97 265.87
ERELCEIE LR 290.18 33.45
Ead 566.15 299.32
g AT
el 7Y 3 SROT oY STAHT qRTeFaT
-9 AR 2,301.25 2,301.25
- Uferere st ¥ feraRiT g w07 8,935.25 8,129.83
frafer ST 260.63 140.98
fm w3 350.98 675.38
HETIET =l 37 THRT 0.48 0.84
3 ST 198.86 219.95
Ead 12,047.45 11,468.23
18. g1 (&, A )
31 HT=H 2020 TR 31 |T= 2019 TR
- TAHT
HHAT o & foru
SIEESEaEC 0.00 0.00
=g 0.00 0.00
Ead 0.00 0.00
Eceic)
HUERT o o e
SIEESENILTS 7.65 5.21
= 11.79 20.09
ECHERECIRERUGIC) 200.00 299.10
STFA (T 219.44 324.40
AT
Ep)
- TSTE 748.79 583.73
- gsft 65.27 366.97
3T FA (&) 814.06 950.70
el (T+7T) 1,033.50 1,275.11
19. 31 ATy (%, o )
31 HT=F 2020 TR 31 |T= 2019 Tk
W adH=
AT o STH 6,956.78 7,494.71
TEA i =TSt 781.21 826.21
T AT 0.00 1,827.43
T et eaioh T Sfrf S 588.85 604.06
TR STEH 8.14 27.81
Ead 8,334.98 10,780.21
TAHTT
AT 5 9T S 814.61 597.00
T JHTF A 1,313.69 2,034.46
TTEehT § STH HATH 1,981.23 1,353.66
TEA i =St 45.00 45.00
Ead 4,154.53 4,030.12
AT 3 T8 %. 6956.78 ARG o AT T I H 5,20,000 THITH 30 871 o ferw 24T wrgde e o foe feam 3iiaet weuss urgee

fafiree & wmw afty e 21 werestt 2 fife & fmior & forg smmeifed il amsde qwsid % STER 31 ST 2015 & T



20. ITH I SATIR

(2. e H)
Tereror 31 |T=E 2020 Tk 31 | 2019 Th
e 3R T JAT T T SUSHHT 1 e o7 sk (30 forAi & e v/ —) 0.00 0.00
T TR o ST SUsHRAT 1 et S o7 (30 ot & siferes x/-) 0.00 0.00
S 1,229.15 5,523.20
& 1,229.15 5,523.20
21. TETEAAT & T (&, )
A = 31, 2020 T 31, 2019
Y THTH 99 <k foTT T THTH o9 o T
T
AT R qHT R 21,361.49 25,568.34
dufer it o 4,473.35 3215.36
3T T 91T 19,182.64 20,454.02
g
AT FaIfrq 17,616.88 16,318.16
HTT Gl fora Far
TS 6,922.01 50,88.82
et 622.36 -
T AT T
=T TaTg 138.76 153.51
HA 70,317.50 70,798.21
22, 3T A (5. @ )
f— T= 31, 2020 uT= 31, 2019
! T 99 o fou ! T 99 o fou
St T = 415.85 45.40
% M W s 4261 34.98
N - 31T 164.68 210.57
A 6 U T TH T 148.83 349.55
AT ITH F3T 51.01 0.00
I TR Uf=rmer o
Fiferer gwamast i forshi 0.08 0.15
FH1ftieh ST TR T I 65.76 75.18
T wirew ot fosft we amy 0.00 0.00
EECEIEER IR 1,892.30 0.00
Y AT 269.37 202.89
wHel 3,050.49 918.73

STEITE T S[R3 H 3 3 Forg sftefidh wemerent & T %.1892.30 @G aXet &fd 2

3T AT H T hT T AT o STTER ThRT FTEH § STH S SR AR o q8d @ T4 Su i (o1 e Safshar Sieon) o g

forT ST ATt ® 19.66 R shi THRT I Rl




23. TATAT ARTT (& A= )
= 31, 2020 = 31, 2019
Y THTH 9 % forw Y THTH 9 % forw
T =TT ey 3,293.86 3139.16
e fdast - gt 364.85 213.89
Torstett {1 oT=t %7 3k 215.90 224.96
ERICIu] 473.75 264.26
FAFEUT SR forshrer =7 0.00 6.42
ST 769.46 833.03
A wfdes 646.55 603.56
HoeTor 3R T gisi 8.58 13.22
TS TH 0.00 0.00
T 3T TS 815.62 906.23
T S 94.12 0.00
SiewTed 1,231.23 1,986.95
Eital) 244.96 116.48
et 8,158.88 8,308.15
24, FHHAT 19 (%, AT i)
= 31, 2020 = 31, 2019
Y THTH T4 % forg Y THTH 9 3 forg
EEE ST 1,400.68 1,369.93
sifersy f3fer & e 11717 105.07
FHUET FHT G 21.98 7.24
TR © Heiferd e 152.99 100.00
e faferdar =g 75.30 85.72
EEESISIC 290.71 315.99
% 2,058.83 1,983.95
T=r 31, 2020 T 31, 2019
Y THTE 9 5 forw Y THTE 9 5 forw
SIS Y ;
-SRI 1,038.42 2,224.22
- & A - 2012-13 686.11 685.43
- FAH a(S - 2013-14 3,225.18 3,233.72
-3 2,780.64 2,724.86
I BY AN
R e e 9.32 5.85
Y T 1 AR o T H R HT T3 EHT T =il 72T T SR TR WIS 725.17 240.85
TR
) 8,464.84 9,114.93
26. TeagT AR TRt = (&, =T )
= 31, 2020 = 31, 2019
Y THTH 9 % forw Y THTH 9 % forw
¥ o o qeag / aietes
d guftr 4,975.92 4,520.41
52 ATh- I THEH 86.02 88.35
A "t 151.10 147.99
FHA 5,213.04 4,756.75




27. 3T T (& A )
Ry 1= 31, 2020 1= 31, 2019
! qUTH 99 < foTu Y THTH 99 o foru
TUHHT - HT9EaRR @9 65.52 36.61
@ wiereht & qriefies
- ifarferer o - wleT 3.00 3.00
- g JHifge Fim 0.50 0.50
- 311 G 3 fore sy 0.50 0.59
- o7 o et 0.30 0.30
TR ST T8 2.75 1.93
forstett 31 Tt %1 3o 122.86 99.34
I SR AT ek 165.46 171.28
[EIERCECE] 124.42 149.78
BUTE 3R G et 17.19 32.34
Tortra, &t S 55.38 81.61
LT SR e @ 1,277.89 1,043.35
YFR IR T 1 T 15.64 14.45
TS AT STiice =53 810.54 468.65
HEwaT 37N HEwI e 119.58 155.92
AN g 62.22 73.83
JTAT AR FAAG 4471 38.65
TR A T T 294.73 300.10
Torsroet SR SR = 4759 116.86
Tora=ft 7z 7 SAR-=GTE THE 688.16 1,199.50
IR Ug T ST 331.44 338.90
FHA 4,250.38 4,327.49
IS BTHTSTeR gTfrcd s
() <ot T Y ok SR Tl sht ST STt Hehed T
EDELEETERCEEIR R UER
(& A )
feraror TR H et TeRg § AT foRa ST 2
Tereft oft wiut skt fmtor / srfermeor 0.00 0.00
S (i) o AT 3 Iegh 0 810.54 0.00
810.54 0.00
28. JTETIRUT 7S (%, I )
- = 31, 2020 T=r 31, 2019
T THTH I o fo1g T THTH I o fo1g
TERREIAT / T 3 UK 1T 1T STl 144.27 8383.04
Shish TEETE 161.63 457.72
T T 5T - farag fgem 117.42 0.00
o 423.32 8840.76
<fifer AT < fomm faRT o STTET SRt Sohar, e THE o |1 I o SN He T TTC HEreeldT STa T ST ohi STETROT Jeqal o ded feemr
=R
29. ATT Tfd I
T Ter 31, 2020 Ter 31, 2019
1 THTH 99 & foTu T GHTH 99 o T
Y % foTg et =TT TR 2492549819 3401590685
R ST T e we - i 300000000 300000000
el Y T Sfed we - srefes 300000000 300000000
e TR 3T - e 8.31 11.34
I S 1 - Srefee 8.31 11.34




AE 30: TheTHRITT AT 3. ot arfafer, 2013 A e 11 % sgER st
1. uﬁargmq ekl
o e T ATt A S — o T
Wm(@mw&r@m £l i i
STt TR 3T & 23175.21 @@ (frmel @ & % 30598.59 — 201920 | 2018-19
T ST ¥ Th 5:
W)%%Qmﬁaﬁﬂéél . e o T ae ]
2. TR ST adtereRt it AT (2. @ H) i 4t e ) 022
feraor 2019-20 | 2018-19 i, SR ofed wedE W | 103842 | 222422
@ - FET Y[eeh 3.00 3.00 S - -
39 ifee i 0.50 0.50 iv. $
STV Yok 0.50 0.50 | forefiazrd ama 15.11 =
o T I
- S @ & ST 0.30 0.30
- QaT T / SuEe 0.09 0.09
4. 31 9T 2020 T A, 7Y R TLA7 I o e H TEAT: (%. AT )
. feraror 2019-20 2018-19
1 | foreft STfefarat sh1 31 sehraT TR = bg]
) qe TR
) SAW 3T TS
2 |149a a7 8 9 SATqfderal ! sPram %1 778 TR % 919 &, 77 7R 7w e faerd AATm, 2006 F | I =
RT 16 % Ha 7 13T 7T 9151 1
3 | AT SR H ol sht Saifer o fore st sht < Uit AR e (S i fep e g il Al s aRm e few | v =
) AfeR H&H, T TR HeAH I e A, 2006 o 8 HiGw a1t i SIS forr,;
4 | =TSt & i TR SR T 3 = =
5 | IR a3 37 SR e el ST Sl R, W, T, Hea Iew Tk fefEm, 2006 i em 23 % faid = RG]
I T S o AT T el 6 3evdl o foT0 SIS JeH ah1 ATeaial H e ohl 713 SISt o6 Tl T 2

TEH, BIC 3R TEH IeHT H S T 10T HuT o T ITTee] SHFR] o ST foham 7 &
AT TRET TR <hT Tehe [hTUT ATITIhRATE
5. IS UTH 107 & Herer § Tehe TehiuT— faiiar anem
5.1 srfora gw fowfter arem
£TORIT g forefar e ot e 3 7R 3ferd g g o
(31 9T, 2020 T ARG H M)

AT AR % aTtaTE
gfetera eEw W 3t eEw o 3t et 3terd
Teremor FATATET |
o o o farfrr T | o T

dufh/ ettt | duf/ et
giEatE:
R I AT (e 7 3E) - 4,148.04 4,148.04 4,148.04
TR ST Tohg U (1 13 W) 9,920.80 9,920.80 9,920.80
SR 9T (1T 12 3©) 4,816.59 4,816.59 4,816.59
0T 3R AW (A2 § 3W) 461.68 461.68 461.68
1= forfer ufeufcrn (e 9 3@) 370.54 370.54 370.54
9aT:
I UTE I T T KT (1S 16 377 17 3) 25,108.75 25,108.75|  25,108.75
LI S-S (A1 16 7E) 45,845.69 45,845.69|  45,845.69
UfeRE S W /0T (A 16 9 17 3@) 17,804.15 17,804.15|  17,804.15
T MR (AT 20 <) 1,229.15 1,229.15 1,229.15
1= forfiar g (e 17 <@) 1,377.10 1,377.10 1,377.10




(31 9T, 2019 T ARG | M)

AT T BT sireftos
& AN A Safom -
oo ofenfo e | shmaem | FeraEt ki
o Tea T o e e
T gt/ q.;ﬁ” N ° °
eTtEt

uftgat:
A g e (e 7 39) - 4,123.00 4,123.00 4,123.00
Tohe I Tohe U (A1E 13 <E) 3,183.93 3,183.93 3,183.93
TR 9T (1T 12 W) 3,038.16 3,038.16 3,038.16
0T 3R A (A2 § 3W) 418.07 418.07 418.07
o= forfiar afgafmn (e 9 39) 187.01 187.01 187.01
JYATT:
I U T HT AR /T (A 16 3T 17 27,410.00 27,410.00 27,410.00
)
I 1S (A1 16 7d) 45,822.47 45,822.47 45,822.47
uferrE S o 24,394.64 24,394.64 24,394.64
T MR (AT 20 <) 5,523.20 5,523.20 5,523.20
1= forfiar gamd (e 17 <@) 220.79 220.79 220.79

5.2 3fod 7o uaTIwA

TR | - A FREf a1 e & g afor STemi # 3gd 7o (S1gfa))
TR 2 - T 1 36 i et FohT 71T 35 Ao o STETa 3711 $YC S EUel AT <27l 6 FoIg SIeret 8, (Wered ®9 & (Shidi o & ) 7 STed

Fq Y (I AT S I

TR 3 - | AT AT 6 ToTT FTIE S SAeATHA AT AR ST (ST $TY2) T ST e 8

ﬁmﬁ?@ﬁwﬁsﬁlﬁwwwwuﬁaﬁﬁqﬂﬁmﬁmwwmw%

& A H)
Toramor Y 31.03.2020 o o1 ¥ 31.03.2019 = forw
Toretar wat w1 w2 w3 FHA Lus! w2 w3 T
ffdiama sforeret Suehon # foeer
foraor 4,123 4,123 4,123 4,123
5.3 Torfra Siftem weiem e ¥ T yaTE § AR Y S ot & Seed ¥ FROT IaW-
fordfra wirfRaw weew TS | STSIR ST & H AiE o SHRaH o Eeh 3 7 &9 &

st <ttt diftra foxfrr siftan wfier € ; srsmesifes, svor
SRem 3R aRetdT SR =T 61 Trerties e ot ey <
SAYCATIRTAAT hi L HTAT & HIT 8ok foreitar Feei o dwiferd wfcspet
TS sl S T 2

T) IR ARTH

TSR S 578 Saw & el SR e § giead o Hreor o
T o Wl Tehd! TaTE o 3fed g § San-erd gl

TSI ST % &9 § o) shY 4TSl T 1 SRad grar 81 ot o
foreftar @reret ot qeor S TEf & wifen ot & o hig Sqea=1
ferefier wafer 7 21

T 3 ARaw

TS T S 98 e @ S ueh foredi | o 3fd wea an

ST ST U o H1Y STeenTioTeh AT STfical & Helferd 2

O 3 A 2017-18 3 SN =R oyl @ TeriedieiIaTi w195
e o ufores s & 100 e sTish! Ser & wied ®UH
47 Tafera Tt STer % foraeft 731 07 61 AT 33T 2| TTeifep,
ST & SIRGH & S/ o fIT 250 e 37kt (sfidium) & ek
1 TATS TSR T H el hl 18 Bl

TGk STATT, ST BT == IIE 26 H TH K0T I AT & T SITaH
2 Fifer aTf¥ieh saTT €T 8T hT WA L2 sfoh Y THETATR &
% foTu et ST 21
Tt feifer o STTET, ST o STt o el ford i |t i =TS
IS a2



(®. T )
fereror 31 HT=N 2020 | 31 HT=F 2019

TR ST AT
forcfrar wfafer
- 5% o 1Y fheree feifse 7,000.00 1,500.00
- U A 459.27 400.24
forcfrar aefcat

- S ST
IR & dTe
- 1S I U R0
- foreeft 31 =80T
EDERS e
0T SNifaw 1 waers fdust g 31 3R W fewiee & sifem
4 2, forees aftomreasy fomfr 21 &t 81 =ffer st s di
T I SETTTE HarsAl o e 1ot o1 o wefyr o syra
Frerifea et 2, safaw smad w et =i oft 318 shfee 7= fean
ST 81 UH HIHAT | s shise fewice Siiftaw Tt 81 gTctifen, Siei
Ot e T / TR HaTSt i Nfare o & 2, I8t e
TQIT AT &, S8 7R e YaT¢ Y= il STt & 37 foyamat o fFoem
T ITANTHAT [, TATEHY Yo TS T STEEH o HHAT H T
37 Ol |, shige fewice Sftaw & gehar 21

ITHATT STAR

ST % UTE 4676.15 TG AN 3038.16 TG HAI: 31 A, 2020
37T 31 AT, 2019 Tk STHET SATYR T B] SATIR I STHAR T
ST BN & ST e & ST TSR § STH &I 3

={foh 30 e 6 0 o ST T H T ek AT TN STER
T OIE Tt T e o St @) fermrdeRdt enEtd § ¥ @et
T IRSAT % FOT 39~ fSaTiee KON T T, J2ieh st e
ferfor shr wrefteq it STl @ SFiT ATt % STTER W YeM i ST’
SHUT ARG HTa0T

e Rt fafer o = st 1 e Sg-aw fawor i
He'?rqﬁrwﬁww%

45,845.69 45,822.87

25,108.75
17,804.15

27,410.00
24,394.64

(®. <TG )
31 9T 2020 319 2019
oo Tehel HE) el HIE)
& | IS oF Al
A & g o | 2,791.23 -| 3,034.85
o wE @ tfres, AR BT | 1,166.47 - 0.20
T ¥ st i T
T e Wi st e 4.40 - 3.11
A Ao T & arfr
T
T TS A ST 2,154.57(1,299.74 | 1,299.74 | 1,299.74
A 6,116.67|1,299.74 | 4,337.90 | 1,299.74

HTHA 3 AT 9 et et o S it <6t 21 o1 Jrarer sq
a § fora SITT 2 ST et T ATher ST S R T frapart
TrSEeOT 3 ST T HIRTEdg o & H feram STraT & =1 farardht ewiiat
%D WSl i AT T @t o gt wftomT ot i grar
R ot o weft forfrar afteaftrn ot fomme sneeft @ St aeftemefa
AT % T forTeT g 7R e 7 9 €, 3Tt e ure B
o= fofar wutr

TR 37T Tohe THHAT § Hid shfge SR sl T10 W1 SITaT &
FAifeR THT THHET sfoh & B 3T Sehl o GT AT ST hT shige
T T o i &, S Wi R s o framen e &
3T €, 3TN TH 1= STUR W 3 SISk Hefeli T Teftear sid 2
AT KON A Gsiferd SHor SRIA AT T AT ST & Fifeh Ko
1 Eafer o Sfieer foreia o sferen % &9 § gefara fora smar @ ar o
aTe % fore SH=iE =Rt 3 o1 fow w2 38ek e, et
% 0T S AT 9T St T ferf stfrew R) safery, 3
fordfrer afeatat o fore =l Srarerm st 18 strawrshar 72 1 &
39tk gt fareftar wigaftat st feaifén ariat & &9 3 Jra & s
=BT hfee TUrET i 2

) averar Saw

T AT STELAi i Y w1fires ST anfies STgAmT o 3R
T T ST ) ST o AT o T | Ahe IR e TR,
AT W 39— Aohe] 8, 8 bl Jare ot et fmert e 3t
TATH Tehdl ST Tohd] THEHET ST T ST aeTdT shT SIddl T
et shid 81 forelt oft speft st Ferifea e & forw Suersy Tendt it
T H 3[5 T9he SATARIHATSA o1 e bt ST 2

e o fAfafsdt i srrawashar § 97 ®9 ¥ AR % IaH
! SR hH o fIT TTawes GHTEH, =99 o, hAar] S,
0T 3 AT e Y i TS e 8, S e ffé
frfr 3 TR ST 3 W i o S IeaT BN 8 & T
HTTHITToh LA STTLIRATHT Bl T A o [T AoheT S ARt
el H T Eqe SHTE @ B

T U @ AU W SHhlicTh aiardl ATavaeharatl
TR hLd & TR STafeh TG % HTEam & IehT Tee
B TN -adu et # =9 01 gwe, 3o Y siive 3fi uferr
Sopt & farft Ta1 SRor, wfoemor a3 R g S @ SR
smiftre &

& 13 e g fadla SeTiEl & erged det
aftagreraret w1 fereror 21 dtfetent sl foxfiar SeTiE & e Tehel
TATE % HATER T AR fohar mm &, T8 ot ot i s o
T STITIHAT 81 Tl ol ATCTRT § AT S AT Tohal TaTe a1
smiftret &




(31 9T, 2020 T ARG H M)

foraor 6VENE®A | 6WENA1aN [ 1-3°d 3599 | 5o arfen &
I S T AN 1,150.62 1,150.62 4,602.48 4,602.48 13,602.56 25,108.76
ufered S O A 4,467.63 4,467.63 8,868.90 - - 17,804.15
FIE 1S - 8,293.34 37,552.35 45,845.69
TermoT e 350.98 290.18 641.16
LT ST 260.63 275.97 536.60
IR Tt 1,229.15 1,229.15
I eIt 199.34 - - 199.34
HA 5,618.25 7,658.35 14,037.53 1,2895.82 51,154.91 91,364.86
(31 9T, 2019 T ARG H TR
Foramor (FENE®HA | 6HER H 1AW 1-3 o 3-5a9 599 | arferh &
I O T AN 1,150.62 1,150.62 4,602.48 4,602.48 15,903.8|  27,410.00
e S o o 4,064.92 4,064.91 16,264.82 - - 24,394.65
T q1S 8,293.34 37,529.13|  45,822.47
gfereror g 675.38 33.45 - 708.83
LT SHT 140.98 265.87 406.85
IR ST 5,523.20 - 5,523.20
A ST - 220.79 - 220.79
A 5,215.54 11555.09 21,387.41 12,895.82 53,432.93 | 1,04,486.79

6. WRAT IET AFH (3 UOHA)-21 o T T Tehe iUl

"ereelt wET & § aiterd o aTE
31 =59 o qed AT I BT o foraor o fee fafoma siae frafyr
%. 688.16 WG (Ifd a9 %.1199.50 <ATE) R

7. AR SET AT (3T TTH)-36 “HUTT <hT ST o Harer

T TR TehTuT

Y o S, ST §8 TUH -36 o STER TR Al T o fg
F [herES THTH shl FHIET ohl 8 ST =ITe] ford o (foreset a - 31)
¥ gfeeafaar i IS a1 T8 ot 7% 2
8. VAT il W (3 UTH) - 20 o Hefel H Tehe [eh{uT "EehRT
T % ToTu erErter St TRen TeTardT sl Teheranur”

(®. <TG )
ST UTH gAT 2019-20 | 2018-19
FT ST STH g3 hil bl

9. WRAT SIET U (3T UTH)—19 & TS T Tehe TehIuT

T, farfi et e et o e e R 2

%) e fafer:

At ot ey ffer et sfera ffer s1ryeh o6 arer St fepar S
B S d-Feia @ W sl fif § Bfia dem & e

FAT R
) ﬁ?ﬂ'ﬁ:

ST o UTE T TTCATIG T =l AISMT 2 Weieh hwar fore
i W AT 36 3fre Y e ST e o €, 3% I @ 15
fo 7 T (15/26 x AW SRR q S I WETS W) STH A

T THAR 2 ST Tk a9 Y 9aT o fore darfgfe, eamres, gwify
ST ST e O o AT 21§90 39 b [o7¢ Ueh 26 o1 713 fehaly
TIT B T8 ST AT e ST e (Teret) g weifer o1 =i
T ® foraes for shoet 3 weh areet diferet off 81

39 ASET B e g fomr it R Srar @ o AeeRdt
sfirendt, I YR St sar o o 9 grn B 72w
% FTET A TR ST 81 afeariid & JiemT o+ e 31
ST ST AT=IaT 3T SIS UUH -19 o dd Savde STHHRT &
SeRSTARLOT 2T S Teheh Heatieh TdTe o S| ST AT &)
U)Wﬁﬁ'ﬂ:

AT 3 T -SIERA FHHEr GE GRARH ¥ AT A
? Ford e 3 wertet g oft eifere foram st &) fFrm o wmifera
AT o qel I U 129 HETTS ST 21 AN {2 St 2
srafer & foTT 3@ ST § Tee ot FHER AN & IR 1)
aeffepar fopa T 81 wiafafte et & ey F, S aees
AT IO SRUT §1S / FHR o STTEI T ST 8] WA o 2wl &
TR W 37K 36 fore fomem 2

RIEEEINK

ST, ST o SHETICT b STTSIq STshTST AT ST SATEIT S STTehTIT
& L &, ST SAET: 30 o 31t 20 & & aretrn g Brar 21 it
STAHTIT hetel Y T Teh T KT A7 BIft & S Afershan 30 faai
T 7Ry S G W AR 300 fat 7 Wi o forg 21
AT STTHRT T I I THFINAA SIURM o TR T A=l
& STt 21

at, T R g, 3T AR AT (ATEHTRATE) IR T e vie
IR 3T TehTeTuT o TeraruT ® wregar umw farfi afvnfya
It <ht wiferw Rufy Fremgem 2:




(. A ) TR 3R BT o foreruT & wr=grar ame st (%. @ 1)
=Tt | rEeRTIr =TSt | AR
feramor L2 . ferawor o .
(wfee) | (Ffe) wfee) | (wfee)
aftaTiie & i C.Y. | 35438 | 31572 A el AT C.Y. | 3353 | 16.08
P.Y. | 23258 | 226.48 P.Y. 28.50 | 19.80
Ao o RE F S g | C.Y. | 34674 | 30393 formTal Heft ATt - AT EAE | CLY. 0 0
P.Y. 211.64 221.27 P.Y. 0 0
forer oifir fearfer [orfeme/ @fy) | CLY. | (7.64) | (11.79) HLCTTHE T / (hIE2) C.y. 0 0
PY. | (20.09) | (521) P.Y. 0 0
Hfer HfAT 1 g C.Y. 0 0 e e / Geie) C.Y. 0 0
Y. 0 0 - PY. 0 0
18 T o afwafEi /| CLY. 7.64 (11.79) e (@ CY. 33.33 16.08
(37aTd) PY. | (20.09) (5.21) ‘ P.Y. 28.50 | 19.80
: . g g e e/ IR | ey, | (152) | (2.08)
uftertfere @ gt # ot (. @ ) 15 =T (o)
:ﬁa;z"} STIRTIT P.Y. 1.44 (0.68)
(HES) | (HfES) figwe @+ da=raram | C.Y. | 32.01 14.00
P.Y. | 23228 | 22398
Hagaviterar farspuor
TAUH TaT AT C.Y. | 33.53 16.07 .
(31 9T, 2020 T <TG T TR
PY. | 2850 19.80 i
RO § Teger | ATHTI
TS AN Y. . 17.55 o . ;
C.Y.| 2088 i &y | @)
PY. | 1626 14.78 AR +1.00% 325.58| 303.25
AT T ST foha CY.| (6.61) 0 -1.00% 387.92| 329.40
PY. 0 (25.54) ELEE TG +1.00% 386.10| 32933
o - SRR A @) [ CY. | 2372 | (30.67) -1.00% 325.68| 303.06
Frepredt X +1.00% 358.57| 316.75
PY. | (4.35) (6.55)
ry— -1.00% 349.70| 314.59
fFutfa e e -ad 3@ | C.Y. | 354.38 | 315.72 31774, 2019 7% v )
P.Y. | 272.69 | 22647 pom— e
. . RO 2 )
et gfEgt & i (. T ) TREdT (®fEe) (wfee)
v TR | STt AR +1.00% 251.10|  210.50
e | (whe) -1.00% 297.71 244.83
e <t sreeT W AieET afEatE |y, | 346.73 | 221.27 I FE +1.00% 297.57 246.31
1 3fad gt Py | 25060 | 218.98 -1.00% 250.87|  208.96
0,
s cx.| 2% | 16 P = o | 3ma6] mele
Py 14.81 15.47 -1.00% 77 -
_ i
TFRrarteTeT Lot
et T FnTE CY.| 7934 64.04 > :
PY. | 23.62 11.37 foremor P X wRE)
AT T T fohar CY.| (6.61) 0
° cy. | frEh e
PY. 0 (25.54) farfer =1 o fomam oy ﬁ?;a"f ﬁ;?ﬁ
T A1 - AT h HO R & |y, | (0.99) (1.01) o oy | 675% 575%
P.Y. 2.52 1.00 R P.Y. 7.75% 7.75%
T F FATH AT UREAE AT [CY. | 346.74 | 303.93 S CY. 5% 5%
3 e PY. | 252.60 | 221.26 < PY. 5% 5%
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e [ a— & TEeh St
wigg) | (wfee) Tm g
AT AT A e 0% | 675% ot efiet TefterTer, sTTsuTE | steme-ge-vey 29 (16.09.2019 §)
P.Y. 775% 7.75% St Y. Wi, Srediuy | Teue-T-yey (e (15.09.2019 )
= CY. | 1%t03% | 1% to 3% :
PY. | 1%t03% | 1% to 3% o T, TR ETe (fore) W Hwa
S - C.Y. 60 o 60 I Aot Sraef) e | ot afere
PY. 60 60 o T T
sivee s C.Y. 16.05 16.05 At P
P.Y. 16.14 16.14 . Rt
qeg T CY. | Uuueuw | Yuoeew > > .
PY. | (2012-14) | (2012-14) (. T #)
— a— 319, 2020 | 31 9T, 2019
e | Yuwew ferawor HIAATH Y | R GHTH T
(2006-08) | (2006-08) % ferg & forg
39 e it SR STeehTictah AT 94.61 48.84
CY | ey | whom TSR ok ST o T 8.61 7.79
fraretiTaT € PY. | @fenad | At 1 Aeiehicreh &y
; et & R €1 Sroft I ST A
—— Trfteror e
Frdon o Saoft USRI RIS e
e 1%
o Fo 103.22 56.63
e it 100% % 35 21 T S A
10. ST SIET O (32 U0H) -108 % Haer § Tehe 15T gt
I RC T o < ST feRe T S1fim
HOA T T § TF S - WS Hiaast § i w8 3R A 0T AT AT T AT

afiiferes &t oft e R
Y FrefaTRad aresht & TTes ITH ) ©, ST ST o TSt o
10 SfdsTa a1 3EE 3AfteR 81 3= UTehi o a9l H, STeh! SATHITd

TeeteTd st o TS % 10% S HA 2
(®. TG )
31 |T=F 2020 T | 31 HT=F 2019 ST
ST T Y % fg | awTH a9 % fom
TR 14,990.94 15,986.47
THEISHITA (SIS 8,338.10 9,581.87
i T s
St
IFHTE AT FA 12,023.54 13,499.73
=it e fafiee

11. YR SRET U 23 3 Hael H Tehe 1ehuT "I hl ArTa ™
Y o SR ST AT AT TRT S0, wfe 37 sfaamie / Hfved
ok (ST (ETSocae) H Halferd of ST sht iRy &, I (fursetr o
%. 205.70 ) B
12. WA TG AT 24 o TS T Tehe [ehI0T "OTET Haifera
TeheTehTuT"
U, W{hR U T 31T Sh1SaT el TeheTehiuT
T, waifera wedt ot g

* oft ot Tefies, SATEIRAITH, 3Tee, I U1 TR Rl 13.06.2018 °

15.09.2019 T T o 3TeeT T TaieT fereh o ¥ 1§ Afdfn
v e e 21 gafere e urftfires st 7€ R

I e e T
=T G fera vert o T Aae:
(®. ARI )
31 HT=, 2020 | 31 6T, 2019
Terawor HIAATA TG & | I THTT I9
g & forg
RETICIE] 2,758.93 2,656.07
0T TR 2,301.25 2,301.25
SIERCEaRCE] 40.31 39.98
TREFISHT S FaTg 47.75 93.96
TS i @ 193.76 88.34
fereta e 18-19 3 forw @rvimr 2,500.00 2,500.00
AT
forefier o 18-19 3 forw =ghar 1,500.00
e RN
HgaTR a= 100.00
= 49.11 7.52
TIRT 0T T FATST SR 25,108.75 27,410.00

101




13. VRS G WTeh oh el H Tehd [ehTUT (3 UTH) 17 <oA= (®. TE )
T, gfeaTerT ot 314, 2020 | 31 9T, 2019
i) ohw i ww oot aﬁw&aﬁﬁa aﬁw%aﬁéa
: aﬁuwof 1 BTG T, T offt 3 e el T o fou e (=), ot 24,925.51 34,015.91
T TS T T Rt 3
(%, & ) TR TR T AT ol AT F 24,925.51 34,015.91
& 31 HT=L, 2020 SHT | 31 |, 2019 T ITANT Y A ATEAT AT (T)
TUTH 99 o foru | game aw & forg iR AR AT F R E | 30,00,00,000|  30,00,00,000
iR E e 15.48 40.55 HTEROT IR 6T Wifka sfea
| | & 3o 31 5 | 11.47 36.72 AT (B)
T arfren e guTed (T/ &) - % 8.31 11.34
59T ¥ e - &
. ) SETEfEe gATA
S Srcgfee Sfiew s TR # ST R ST Aot ErE S o
o 31 9T, 2020 ST | 31 HTSE, 2019 T 3T ST 9T 3free G 39 I 2
FHTH 98 & forw | wwTH a9 & foru (& TE )
T S T * 40.55 128.89 31 |T=L, 2020 | 31 A=, 2019
* st effer Gife 1 e fewa amfiver 2 o o AATH I | Y AT a
ST Shi STTEAT: = fou o foru
st 3 st 3 S 3 for wiew ame ot W fra # ot it 3 fere e (erf), el 24925511 3401591
) ATfoTeh! o HIOT
IR G o forg ot 18 21 Shat T 31w diferem st e == i
> T R T AT T T ST 24,925.51 34,015.91
qﬁz‘gwﬁwma%ﬁmﬁwwﬁwﬁmm%m%l N
ii. Th AR R T H fer SR siferer 317 % 3898 @ | | 30,00,00,000 | 30,00,00,000
o 3 afeTe oSt % e Ao & <A o st I 6t Wit Sfted Eer (B)
(& @ §) o sfem (/) - = 8.31 11.34
o 31 |T=L, 2020 ST | 31 AT, 2019 Y 15. WRAE SIET AT (3 UUH) -37 & W § Tehe (0T
TUTH 99 o {070 | OHTH a9 & oY "I, TR TEH SAATT S TR e du
1 79 & 31ferer T 2,421.13 2,305.84 TR e AT
1 91 § 3ferh A1 S 14,047.20 13,378.29 '
T & Ak et (i) Terafea e wi:
SRUNRIRED 56,508.51 59,598.56 %, 910.74 @@ (frset ad .2036.98 @) #i Ul & farfed
o ST Shl ST el # el AfteriE o wuet faare I @Rl

T SR ST 7T HETT HISH o HATHR, FT ZHAAT o [T,
e, foaur 3R we@mE @ Shiteg / fididt stendt Aaed &
Y 30 T o Argaw / FEmd ausia = srg foar St 81 ot
T orgeE / fem e % STgER el il / e
STARTRATS % ATeAs ¥ et o forehr o forw STt & i wfy &
T st o feam

14. R T AT (S8 TTH)-33 o Hefer | Tehe Tehtur "gfer

Srer T it
) siftrers $ofioa
R S ol O STRIRT R ST STt ATETT SRRT AT AT
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(i) SEYTT ZgaTe:

91 % fomior ok S Soham grT forg e %, v (et a . 323.30
AT o 3Ta ATl AR % ure wiferd 2| a & <, shoet
T&T TTTRhTY ot TSt o |rer T 1 e foram 21

(iif) STTEE / AT A

T wfEsEre § fmi / emafd st T & free & foae
eI H ¥ F® A Ol T, 11308.00 T (e aw: 16059.87
ATE) 3T T T Foraw sTsie g 7 gfg, qed afG o a1 e
SFFEA e, F At forafa srafer & forg geras, Fftw
o TS T | STt 1 3 2T Heiferq Sigeieil % Trae & deie
Ot g7 TR el 8 % fore fRe ST 1 1



1§ qTE o6 e o foTe s1sier W Sucrey foame e soret 18. IS 19 WA
0 e fafiry foremest it ot 2 2 . FIRATIRRE (FHfE-19) % HROT G forg snvgaqd wrea, sl
(%. <Ta ) 3R forcfir Hehe T THAT X BT 21 30 HRWRY 7 AT SAdh
Forazor 201920 | 2018-19 SAFITErT 3R et s R R

'dd"nggﬁﬂm%w]} 910.74|  2,036.98 A THTT A 2 & Hifere 19 T 1 bt % ferw 21 Foeff

p— e — mﬁﬁﬁfwz ARSI T o Tl T AT G 40-3 / 2020 STH-T
NP £34.60 ) (@) femter 24.3.2020 SR foram om WG R T 3 7 2020 6

- TS 323.30 AThe 3?@@%@%@?3@31330333’05 heatie S |

_ Sefrefrft ey 11,308.00|  16,059.89 TROTG, Aok H T Tt sh s sht STAfa & @)

- ST/ STTYf hrd feh TRTATY 37 TRoTHEEY wiehers 7 o a 2019-20 % 3@

Tt 13,053.34|  18,420.17 & Sl Tieferferdt a6 JeheT wgeTE 8, TEfeTT 2019-20 S foref

16. wwhHT gwE: TReorfer © 2TE HeTauT TTE T o)

AT ST | T, STler 01 S A, § AL AT iy 10 71 iy o A 2020-21 % FE A

it S s fr 9fe 3 gere o o1l 2 BTCATTR, T8 HATEHT (THUAT) 3 30 WS 2l Ush AT 1A ST forarm 2,

17. Ui e TS <=1 o ST 2T e FoR o SATER 9 farfire oot s

AT T Ot 7 3ot SR oS, e Tt T s o 3Rt
ST o6 ShITOT 3T Sieraet ST €1 shorft o it Srfer a7 srerfiren
IeYI ST o YT T SAHAH FEAT 2| hHT 7oA ISt B
Tere Tl & 3N referaee g aeir i feufa § secdma & qeTsr
TEH THTSH T 2

AT Tt STaTe <61 SR sk YSft sht Pt st 2, St s
=0T Afed Fat gsit gr fornfo 38 607 21 38 w0 7 defemiforen
R AR IR HH hdt 3 S 3y wferer ) sheet &
gferardt S st 31t sTmeeror sifirer & o sft % & 8 waiferer foam
ST 2| Fetfém sht stafer o sia 7 Rt g6 wem off:

fafvafia 0 % fow genfaa feen-fdy fow o & of srufaefa
HATST R AT o SEGHAT AT Tares hr STgaf <
TT$ 2| BTeAifoR, S HIT TR IeaTEH § T o HIoT, W] TR ufor
ST O JTe Hegw 3Taer 3 forw ovm 2 ot sefie 2y

it 8 I8 off ST sl STt @ foh S oA AT HIS SRt SUINT 3R 3T
T STANT o T ol ShH L S T S & foft Torea A 7|
iere HETer J TR SR i % 92 / T o % o v
SETTTET ol fammiasT ST fopg 31 3 et / Feamara o i o fort
a9 2020-21 | STHET S|

(%. TG ) . .
. Tuoor a9 & ofiehe! o STat WY STTavaeh B, Tehiad forar
forewor 31 |T=H, 2020 9 | 31 €T=, 2019 Tk 1 3 Al =,
e RO 88,758.58 97,627.11 Rl
FH: THT IR TS TR 9,920.80 3,183.95 20. e foraoti @6t sraiE
e ot Zmiorso| T Pl e e aw srpifea e o 29 5,
et ST # 3 33.14% 42.52% 2020 F1 ST 3 fere ey e e
HITSR q1e ferfires & foo Y. TR U shuT & foru
2 , TR ot ol :ﬁjm 004371
STETE T e PR foRern : -
f&7: 01310101 f&7: 07640613 o ofifEr
R,
T, U . M?'“("'igj"ﬁa'““ W H.220112
e forftr sfer AT SRR aﬁ&q:r:zozzouzqqqqaﬁ‘m”
AT : I

TR : 29 5, 2020







Construction of Public Library building at Panapakkam, Velllore District, Tamil Nadu under CSR.
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